

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem • Mark Bond 


Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • John Steckler • Stephanie Vignal 
   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days prior to 
the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and residency for 
the official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2019-846 


Next Resolution No. 2019-578 


February 26, 2019 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 


B. City Staff Recognition  


  


• 2017 Larry F. Davis Award 


• 2017 Police Officer of the Year  


• Police Department Commendation Medal 


• 2018 Larry F. Davis Award  


• 2018 Police Officer of the Year  







• 2018 Employee of the Year   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 


C. Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforcement 


(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 


D. 2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award 


(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)   
 
STUDY SESSION 
 


E. The Farm Development Agreement 


(Christi Amrine, Senior Planner)   
 


F. Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to 
Facility Use Fees  


(Joni Kirk, Director of Communications & Marketing)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


G. Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount of 
$754,960.91 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Steckler and Councilmember Cavaleri)  
 


H. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $284,459.87 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Steckler and Councilmember Cavaleri)   
I. City Council Meeting Minutes of October 9, 2018   


 
J. City Council Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2018  


 
REPORTS 
 


K. Mayor/Council  
 


L. City Manager 


• Council Planning Schedule  


• Council Liaison Positions   
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


M. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 


(Confidential Session of the Council)  
 


N. To discuss potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)  


  


Action may or may not be taken by the Council.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 153







v
"4 ,


/-x/L‘ Agenda Item # C/CITY OF


Creek Meeting Date: February 26,2019
WASHINGTON


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL
CODE RELATED TO CODE ENFORCEMENT


PROPOSED MOTION:


Adopt Ordinance 2019-
Code Enforcement.


amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) related to


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The City Council reviewed the proposed amendments to the Mill Creek Municipal Code relating
to Code Enforcement at their regular meeting on February I9, 2019. It was the consensus of
Council to add expired tabs as one of the factors to be considered in determining if a vehicle is a
Junk Vehicle. Staff is recommending that the de?nition ofJunl< Vehicle still only need to meet
three ofthe requirements, which will make it easier to classify a vehicle as a Junk Vehicle.


Based on a suggestion by Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw, and to improve clarity, staff has
incorporated the proposed amendments into the Council Ordinance rather than only including
them as an attachment to the Planning Commission Resolution. The revised Ordinance is
attached.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Adopt the attached ordinance amending the MCMC related to Code Enforcement.


ATTACHMENTS:


- Proposed Ordinance Adopting Amendments to the MCMC


/XB<6be1tS. Stowe
‘ Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 3 of 153







ORDINANCE NO. 2019-


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON,
AMENDING MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 14.01.030
DEFINITIONS, SECTION 17.22.080 VEHICLE PARKING, AND SECTION
l7.24.030 MAINTENANCE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.


WHEREAS, RCW 36.7OA.04Oand 36.7OA.12Orequire the City of Mill Creek (“City”) to


adopt development regulations, including zoning regulations, to implementthe City's


ComprehensivePlan; and


WHEREAS, the proposed amendments set forth below and included in the Plarming


Commission Resolution attached at Exhibit A (“Proposed Amendments”) are intended to clarify


and better communicate the intent of the Mill Creek Municipal Code (“Code”) and improve staff’s


ability to enforce the Code; and


WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018, the City issued a SEPA thresholdDeterminationof Non-


Signi?cance for the Proposed Amendments to the Development Code; and


WHEREAS, on November 7, 2018, the comment period for the Determination of Non-


Signi?cance expired and no comments were received; and


WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018, the Proposed Amendments were submitted to the


Washington State Department of Commerce for review, as required by RCW 36.70A.106; and


WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing before the Planning Commission on the Proposed


Amendments was duly posted at City Hall on November 6, 2018, pursuant to MCMC Section


14.07.030(A); and


WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing before the Planning Commission on the Proposed


Amendments was duly advertised in the Everett Herald on November 8, 2018, pursuant to MCMC


Section 14.07.030(A); and


WHEREAS, on November 15, 2018, the Planning Commission duly held a public hearing


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 4 of 153







on the Proposed Amendments; and


WHEREAS, all persons desiring to comment on the Proposed Amendments were given a


full and completeopportunityto be heard; and


WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Plarming Commission adopted Resolution


2018-165 recommending approval of the Proposed Amendments to the City Council; and


WHEREAS, the City Council has determinedthat adoption of the ProposedAmendments


to the Mill Creek MunicipalCode are in the best interestsof the public health, safety and general


welfare;


NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK,
WASHINGTON, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:


Section 1. Findings. Upon considerationof and based on the foregoing recitals of this
Ordinance, the City Council ?nds that the Proposed Amendments set forth in Exhibit A are: (a)
consistentwith state law and the Mill Creek Comprehensive Plan; (b) substantiallyrelated to the
publichealth, safety, and welfare;and (c) consistentwith the best interestof the citizens, residents
and property owners of the City.


Section 2. Based on the foregoing, the City Council herewith adopts the amendments to


Titles 14 and 17 of the Mill Creek MunicipalCode as set forth in Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 of this
Ordinance.


Section 3. Subsection B of MCMC Section l7.22.080, entitled Vehicle parking, is hereby
amended to read as follows:


B. No recreation vehicle,boat, trailer, or ineperableatehielejunk vehicle shall
be parked or stored in any front yard or front yard setback area including the
driveway, except that recreation vehicles and boats may be temporarily parked in
the front yard setback area for pu_rposesof cleaning and/or loading for a period not


to exceed 72 hours. Any vehiclesstored in a side yard shallbe fully screened from
view from any public right-of—way;see MCMC l7.22.070.


Section 4. Subsection C of MCMC Section 17.22.080, entitled Vehicle parking, is hereby
amended to read as follows:


C. Commercial Vehicles. No commercial vehicles or combination of
commercial vehicle and trailer


,
or any type of


motorized construction eguipment shall be parked on any lot in a residentialzone


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 5 of 153







except for motorized construction eguipment currently being used in conjunction
with an approved constructionproject.


Section 5. Subsection I of MCMC Section 17.23.060, entitled Minimum standards, is
hereby amendedto read as follows:


I. All parking shall be o?-street, and shall be accommodated by the on-site
garage and driveway. Gross vehicle weight of any one vehicle shall not exceed
6;09(-)10,000pounds.


Section 6. Subsections A and B of MCMC Section 17.24.030, entitled Maintenance, is
hereby amended to read as follows:


A. All buildingsand other structures shallbe maintainedby the property owner
in good repair with respect to exterior
appearance and landscaping.


B. All landscaped and open space areas and LID landscape features on or
adjacent to the property, excluding public sidewalks and public rights-of-way
subject to Chapter 12.06 MCMC, shall be maintained by the property owner, and
shall be:


1. Kept tree of litter, debris,invasive vegetation/weedsand obstructions.
2. Maintained in a clean, neat and orderly fashion.
3. Maintained consistent with design review board and other approved


landscapeplans if applicable.
4. Kept free of inoperableLug vehicles.


5. Maintained so that all deposited materials in garbage and recycle
containers are wholly contained within the structure as required by MCMC
17.22.070. No litter or recyclable material shall be allowed to accumulate outside
said containers. Containers shall be kept clean, free of odors and pests, shall not
constitute a publicnuisanceand shall be maintained to meet the conditions of the
design review board and/or other conditionsof approval.


Section 7. Subsections I, C and J of MCMC Section 14.01.030, entitled De?nitions, are
amended to delete the de?nition of “Inoperable motor vehicle” and add de?nitions of “Commercial
vehicle” and “Junk vehicle” and to read as follows:


I. “I” De?nitions


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 6 of 153







C. “C” De?nitions


“Commercial vehicle” means any vehicle that is used or maintained for the
transportationof persons for hire or compensation, or for pro?t, or is designed,
used, or maintained primarily for the transportation of prope?, goods and
commodities and


1. Is a motor vehicle having a declared gross weight of ten thousand pounds or
11101‘C,’01'


2. Is a motor vehicle having three or more axles.


J. “J” De?nitions


“Junk Vehicle” means a vehicle certi?ed under RCW 46.55.230 as meeting at


least three of the following reguirements:


(a) is three years old or older;


gb) is extensively damaged, such damage including but not limited to any of the
following: a broken window or windshield,or missing doors, hoods, wheels, tires,
motor or transmission‘


(c) is apparently inoperable’,


(d) has an approximate fair market value equal only to the approximatevalue of
the scrap in it;


(e) has expired tabs.


Section 8. The City Clerk is directed to take steps as required to implement and effectuate
the terms of this Ordinance and incorporate the foregoing changes into the Mill Creek Municipal
Code. The Clerk is authorized to correct scrivener's errors, internal references, and the like.


Section 9. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinanceshould be held to be
invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionally of any other section, sentence,


clause, or phrase of this ordinance.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 7 of 153







Section 10. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ?ve days after publication of
a summary hereof consisting of the title of this Ordinance, in accordance with RCW 35A.13.200.


Adopted this day of , 2019, by a vote of for,
against, and abstaining.


APPROVED:


MAYOR PAM PRUITT


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


GINA PFISTER, CITY CLERK


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SCOTT M. MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:


PUBLISHED:


EFFECTIVE DATE:


ORDINANCE NO.:


Attachments: EXHIBIT A — Planning CommissionResolution 2018-165


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 8 of 153







PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2018-165


A RESOLUTIONOF THE CITY OF MILLCREEK )
PLANNINGCOMMISSION, RECOMMENDING )
APPROVAL To THE MILL CREEK CITY COUNCIL )
OF AMENDMENTS TO THE MILLCREEK ) FINDINGS,
MUNICIPALCODE SECTION14.01.030 . ) REASONS AND
DEFINITIONS,SECTION l7.22.080VEHICLE ) RECOMMENDATIONS
PARKING, ANDSECTION 17.24.o30 )
MAINTENANCE. )


)


WHEREAS, the PlarmingCommission is chargedwith the responsibilityfor conducting


public hearingson proposed regulationsconcerning the use of land in the City of Mill Creek or


amendmentsto existing regulations and for making recommendationsto the City Council for


appropriateactionon such proposed land use regulations,as set forth in RCW chapter35A.63and


MillCreekMunicipalCode Chapters4.10 and 14.03;and


WHEREAS,RCW 36.7OA.040and 36.70A.120,portionsof the Growth Management Act,


requirethe City to adoptdevelopmentregulations,includingzoningregulations,to implementthe


City's ComprehensivePlan; and


WHEREAS, the intent of the amendmentsis to clarify and better communicatethe intent


of the Codeand improvestaff’s ability to enforcethe Code; and


WHEREAS,on October23, 2018,theCity issueda SEPA thresholdDetenninationofNon-


Signi?cancefor the proposedamendmentsto the DevelopmentCode;and


WHEREAS, on November 7, 2018, the comment period for the Detennination of Non-


Signi?canceexpired. No comments were received;and


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 9 of 153







WHEREAS,notice of a public hearing before the PlanningCommissionon the proposed


amendmentswas duly posted at City Hall on November 6, 2018, pursuant to MCMC Section


14.07.030(A);and


WHEREAS,noticeof the publichearingbeforethe PlarmingCommissionon the proposed


amendmentswas duly advertised in the Everett Heraldon November 8, 2018, in accordancewith


MCMC 14.07.030;and


WHEREAS,on October23, 2018, the proposedamendmentswere submitted to the


Washington State Department of Commerce for review, as requiredby RCW 36.70A.l06; and


WHEREAS,a staff report to the Planning Commissionwas prepared to present, analyze,


and recommendto the Planning Commission adoption of the proposed amendments to the


developmentcode;and


WHEREAS,.onNovember 15, 2018, the PlarmingCommission held a public hearing on


the proposedamendmentsto the developmentcode;and


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered the staff report, attached hereto as


Exhibit A and incorporatedin full by this reference,and the proposedamendments to the MCMC


and foundthat the proposed amendmentsare consistentwith the City’s ComprehensivePlan, the


Growth Management Act, MCMC Chapter 17.38, and other applicable state and federal law,


includingthe Comprehensive Plan, and willbene?t thepublichealth, safety, and welfare.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNINGCOMMISSION OF
THE CITYOF MILLCREEK AS FOLLOWS:


Section 1: ThePlanningCommission?nds the proposedamendmentsas describedwithin
the Planning Commission staff report, attachedand incorporatedin ?ill by this reference as
Exhibit A, are consistentwith and implementthe policiesof the ComprehensivePlan, the Growth
Management Act, and other applicable state and federal law, and further ?nds that the proposed
Amendments make appropriate provisions for and further the public health, safety and general
welfare.


Section 2: The Planning Commission adopts the ?ndings, conclusions, and
recommendationscontained in the staff report, attachedas Exhibit A, except as may be expressly
modi?edhereinby Exhibit B, attachedand incorporatedin full by this reference.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 10 of 153







Section 3: The Planning Commission thcrcl'orerecommends to the City Council adoption
of the proposed Amendments as set forth in Exhibit A and us may be further modi?ed by speci?c
actionofthe Planning Commission as set forth in Exhibit B.


Passed in open meeting this 15"‘day of November 2018, by it vote of ___/Lfor,
0 against and (2 abstaining.


CITY OF MILL CREEK PLANNING COMMISSION


/Iléi51¢
STAN EISNER,PLANNING COMMISSIONCHAIR


TOM/ROGERS,PLANNING COMMISSION SECRETARY


ATTACHMENT: Exhibit A — Staff Report
Exhibit B — Planning CommissionMotion


G:\PLANNlNG\\\11\RcsolulimIs\Z0l8\Cndt:l€nl'on:cnm-nt /\mcnt||m:nls.clocx


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 11 of 153







» EXHIBIT A
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT


STAFF REPORT
TO THE MILL CREEK PLANNING COMMISSION


PART I - SUMMARY INFORMATION


PUBLICHEARING: November 15, 2018


REQUESTEDACTION: Review of Mill Creek Municipal Code Amendments that have been
proposed to clarify and better communicate the intent of the Code
with regard to Code Enforcement and improve staffs ability to


_
enforce the Code. The proposed regulations will apply citywide.


SITE LOCATION: City of Mill Creek


PROPONENT: City of Mill Creek
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012


COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN DESIGNATION: Not applicable.


ZONING DISTRICT: Not applicable.


PART II - STATUTORY RE UIREMENTS


SEPA COMPLIANCE:


The proposed amendments to the MCMC are subject to the provisions of the State
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). The City’s SEPA Of?cial has determined that the proposed
code amendmentswill not have a probable signi?cant adverse impact on the environment. Thus,
an Enviromnental Impact Statement (EIS) was not required.


On October 23, 2018, a Determination of Non-signi?cance (DNS) was issued on the proposed
code amendments. The comment period ended on November7, 2018. No comments were
received.


PUBLIC NOTICE:


Pursuant to Section14.07.030 Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC),a notice of the public
hearing was posted at Mill Creek City Hall on November 6, 2018, and published in the Everett
Herald on November 8, 2018. All legal requirements for public notice have been satis?ed.


{EFMl8l5l42.DOCX;l/05739.000002/ } 1


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 12 of 153







PART III - DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS
TO THE MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE


ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT:


The provisions governing amendments to the text of the Development Code are found in Section
17.38.020, MCMC. This section states that text amendments may be initiated by the City
Council, the Flaming Commission, or City staff The proposed amendments listed below have
been initiated by City staff.


MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL‘ CODE AMENDMENTS RELATED TO CODE
ENFORCEMENT


In 2017 the responsibility for land use code enforcement transitioned from the Police Department
to the Development Services Department. Upon taking responsibility for code enforcement,
Development Services staff reviewed the Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) and detemiined
that it could be modified to clarify and better communicate the intent of the Code and improve
staff s ability to enforce the Code. Following are several minor amendments that staff is proposing:


SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS:


.St.af.ERepo1;t«Key


0 Proposed new text is shown with a bold and underline. Deleted text is shown in
red—s§Hlie-through:


§Q‘d,eA:m 11‘gln1ent~#1— MGMCSectionl"7.22;.080.B Vehicle Parking,


Issue: The MCMC prohibits recreational vehicles, boats, trailers, and inoperable vehicles
from being stored in the front yard including the driveway. There have been some


challenges enforcing the Code with regard to inoperable vehicles. The current de?nition of
inoperable vehicle includes cars with invalid licensing. This means that an operable car in
good repair would be considered inoperable simply because it does not have current tabs.
There are a variety of reasons why the owner may not currently be using the vehicle and
may have chosen not to renew the tabs, including the following recent examples:


- Someone deployed in the anned forces
0 Grandparent saving the vehicle for a grandchild Owner works internationally or is


gone for extended periods


Staff Recommendation: The intent ofthe MCMC is to not allowjunk vehicles to be
stored in the front yard/driveway. This can be addressed by deleting the term “inoperable
vehicle” from the pertinent code section and replacing it with “junk vehicle.” A definition
of junk vehicle will need be added to MCMC 14.01 — see Code Amendment #4 below.


(EFMl815142.DOCX;l/O5739.000002/ } 2


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 13 of 153







Issue: The MCMC also prohibits recreational vehicles and boats from being stored in the
front yard. However, owners of an RV or boat that is generally stored off site in
accordance with the Code periodically may want to temporarily park their RV or boat at


their house for purposes of cleaning and/or loading.


Staff Recommendation: Add an exception to allow temporary parking of RVs and boats
for purposes of loading and/or cleaning for a period not to exceed 72 hours.


Proposed Text Amendments:
17.22.080.B Vehicle parking.


B. No recreation vehicle, boat, trailer, or junk vehicle shall be parked
or stored in any front yard or front yard setback area including the driveway, except that
recreation vehicles and boats may be temporarily parked in the front yard setback
area for purposes of cleaning and/or loading for a period not to exceed 72 hours. Any
vehicles stored in a side yard shall be fully screened from view from any public right-of-
way; see MCMC 17.22.070.


Co_deA~1n,end-m4,ent;#2 — MCMC Section 17.2_2,080.C VehicleParking'_,
, -


Issue: The MCMC currently prohibits Commercial Vehicles in excess of 6,000 pounds
total gross weight from being parked on any lot in a residential zone. The 6,000 pound
distinction is unrealistic since a large truck meets this de?nition (e.g., a Ford F350 weighs
8,000 pounds).


Staff Recommendation: Remove the 6,000 pound quali?er and add a de?nition of
Commercial Vehicle to the MCMC 14.01 de?nition section — see Amendment #4 below.


Issue: The MCMC does not currently prohibit construction equipment from being parked
on a residential lot.


Staff Recommendation: Add motorized construction equipment to the list of Commercial
Vehicles that cannot be parked on a residential lot, with the exception of equipment
currently being used in conjunction with an approved constructionproject.


Proposed Text Amendments:


17.22.080.C Vehicle parking.
C. Commercial Vehicles. No commercial vehicles or combination of commercial vehicle


and trailer
,


or any type of motorized construction
eguipment shall be parked on any lot in a residential zone except for motorized
construction eguipment currently being used in conjunction with an approved
construction project. (Ord. 2010-717 § 2 (Exh. B); Ord. 2005-609 § 2)


17.23.0601 Minimum Standards
1. All parking shall be off—street,and shall be accommodated by the on—sitegarage and
driveway. Gross vehicle weight of any one vehicle shall not exceed 6300010,00Q_pounds.


{EFM1815l42.[)OCX:l/05739.000002/) 3


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 14 of 153







Code Amendment #3 — MCMC Section 17.24.03!) Maintenance
Issue: The MCMC currently requires all buildings and structures to be maintained in
original or better than original condition. This is an unrealistic expectation and is
problematic to enforce.


Staff Recommendation: The intent of the Code is to ensure that all buildings and
structures be maintained in good repair so staff proposes to change the Code to re?ect that.


Proposed Text Amendments:


17.24.030 Maintenance.


A. All buildings and other structures shall be maintained by the property owner in good
repair with respect to exterior appearance and
landscaping.


B. All landscaped and open space areas and LID landscape features on or adjacent to the
property, excluding public sidewalks and public rights-of-way subject to Chapter M
MCMC, shall be maintained by the property owner, and shall be:


1. Kept free of litter, debris, invasive vegetation/weeds and obstructions.
2. Maintained in a clean, neat and orderly fashion.
3. Maintainedconsistent with design review board and other approved landscape


plans if applicable.
4. Kept free of‘ junk vehicles.
5. Maintained so that all deposited materials in garbage and recycle containers are


wholly contained within the structure as required by MCMC l7.22.070. No litter or


recyclable material shall be allowed to accumulate outside said containers. Containers shall
be kept clean, free of odors and pests, shall not constitute a public nuisance and shall be
maintained to meet the conditions of the design review board and/or other conditions of
approval.


CodeAmendment#4 — MCMC 14.0I1.030— D‘efinitions~
Issue: The MCMC does not currently contain a de?nition for Commercial Vehicle.


Staff Recommendation: Add the following de?nition for Commercial Vehicle to MCMC
14.01 of the Code, which is based on the Department of Transportation de?nition.


Proposed Text Amendments:


“Commercial vehicle” means anv vehicle that is used or maintained for the
transportation of persons for hire or compensation, or for pro?t, or is designed, used,
or maintained primarily for the transportation of property, goods and commodities;
and


(El-‘M1815142.DOCX;l/05739.000()02/ ‘, 4


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 15 of 153







1. Is a motor vehicle having a declared gross weight of ten thousandpounds or


more; or
2. Is a motor vehicle having three or more axles.


Issue: The MCMC currently uses the term “inoperable vehicle” and as mentioned in Code
Amendment #1 above, staff is proposing to replace inoperablevehicle with “jtmk vehicle.”


Staff Recommendation: Delete de?nition of “Inoperable Vehicle” in its entirety and
replace with a new de?nition for Junk Vehicle, based on the RCW de?nition.


Proposed Text Amendments:


“Junk Vehicle” means a vehicle certified under RCW 46.55.230 as meeting at least
three of the following reguirements:


(a) is three years old or older,‘
(b) is extensively damaged, such damage including but not limited to any of the
following: a broken window or windshield, or missing doors, hoods, wheels,
tires, motor, or transmission;
(c) is apparently inoperable;
(d) has an approximate fair market value egual only to the approximate value
of the scrap in it.


PART IV — FINDINGS CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION


The proposedamendmentsto the City’sMunicipalCode have been preparedto be consistentwith
the Growth Management Act, applicablestate and federal regulations,the City’s Comprehensive
Plan, and the City’s developmentcode amendmentprocess containedin Chapter 17.38. As
re?ected below, the proposedamendmentshave beenreviewedfor consistencywith these
requirementsand are found to be consistentwith applicablelocal, state and federal regulations.


FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS:


1. In accordancewith the Growth Management Act (GMA), speci?cally RCW 36.70A.040 and
36.70A.120, the City is required to adopt development regulations, including development
regulations,to implementthe City's ComprehensivePlan.


In accordancewith the Mill Creek MunicipalCode (MCMC) Chapter 17.38, the City has the
authority to initiate amendments to the code.


A review of the MCMC revealed that certain housekeeping amendments would clarify the
Code with respect to Code Enforcement provisions and improve staffs ability to enforce the
Code.


In accordance to MCMC Chapter 18.04, the proposed code amendments are subject to the
provisions of the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). The City’s SEPA Of?cial has


{EFM l 815l42.DOCX;l/05739.000002/} 5


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 16 of 153







determined that the proposed code amendments will not have a probable signi?cant adverse
impacton the environment. Therefore, an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) was not
required.


5. On October 23, 2018, a Determinationof Non-signi?cance (DNS) was issued on the
. proposedcode amendments. The comment period ended November 9, 2018. No comments
were received and the DNS is deemed ?nal.


6. Pursuant to Section 14.07.03OMill Creek MunicipalCode (MCMC), notice of public hearing
was posted at Mill Creek City Hall on‘ November 6, 2018, and published in the Everett
Herald on November 8, 2018. All legal requirementsfor public notice have been satis?ed.


7. On October 23, 2018, the proposedamendments were submitted to the Washington State
Department of Commerce for review, as required by RCW 36.70A.106.


8. In accordance withChapter 35A.63 RCW and MCMC Chapters 2.04 and 14.03, the_City
Council is charged with the responsibilityof making decisions on amendments to the existing
Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) regulations.


9. The proposed amendments are consistentwith the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Growth
Management Act, MCMC Chapter 17.38,and other applicablestate and federal law, will
implementthe ComprehensivePlan, and will bene?t the publichealth, safety, and welfare.


STAFF RECOMMENDATION:


Notwithstanding citizen testimony and revisions made by the Planning Commission in response
to said testimony, staff recommends that the Mill Creek Planning Commission adopt the preceding
?ndings and conclusions and recommend to the Mill Creek City Council adoption of the proposed
code amendments set forth herein.


G:\PLANNING\wp\CodeAmendments\20l7\StaffReport Code Enforcementdocx


{EFM1815l42.DOCX;l/05739.000002/} - 6


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 17 of 153







1


CITY or ‘
Agenda Item #L


W A S H I N G T 0 N Meeting Date: February 26, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: 2019 STREET PAVEMENT MARKING PROGRAM —AWARD
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT


PROPOSED MOTION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Apply A-Line, LLC for the construction
of the 2019 Street Pavement Marking Program in an amount not to exceed $139,720.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The bid package was divided into a base bid and four additive alternates by taking into
consideration factors such as roadway classi?cation, condition of the existing pavement
markings, and safety. Bid package components included:


- Base Bid (basis of award) ~Thermop1astic:
Installation of thermoplastic pavement marking items such as stop bars, pedestrian
crosswalk bars, arrows and stencils on school routes and collectors/arterials including
Village Green Drive, 148"‘Street, Trillium Boulevard, Mill Creek Boulevard and Main
Street.


I Additive A (Thermoplastic):
Installation of thermoplastic pavement marking items such as stop bars, pedestrian
crosswalk bars, arrows and stencils on residential streets, Dumas Road and North Creek
Drive.


0 Additive B (Paint Striping):
Installation of paint striping items such as double yellow center line, two way left turn


lane and edge lines on arterial and collectors.


0 Additive C (Raised Pavement Markers):
Installation of Type 1 and Type 2 raised pavement markers as needed on arterials and
collectors.


0 Additive D (Paint):
Installation of temporary paint pavement marking items such as stop bars, pedestrian
crosswalk bars and arrows on Seattle Hill Road.


The project was advertised in late January and bids were opened on February 19, 2019. Three
bids were received as summarized in Table 1.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 18 of 153







Table 1. 2019 Street Pavement Marking Program Bids (Summary)
“em


Engineers Estimate Stripe Rite, Inc. Apply-A-Line Specialized Pavement Marking,Inc.
BASE BID (Thermoplastic) $73,221.00 $77,300.34 $74,545.00 $99,013.00


ADDl'l'NE A (Thermoplastic) $35,032.00 $38,199.96 $35,746.00 $47,102.00


ADDITNE B (Pain! Striping) $59,525.00 $40,875.00 $36,525.00 $43,625.00


ADDITNE c (Raised Pavement Markers) $26,199.00 $39,633.00 S28.650.00 $44,000.00


ADDITNE 0 (Paint) $3,712.00 $7,467.00 $5,345.00 $6,507.00


Total Bid $197,609.00 $203.563.30 $181,811.00 $241,047.00


Funding


Construction inspection will be conducted by City staff. Given the straight forward nature of
the project, a modest 5% contingency is considered appropriate by staff. Hence, the total
estimated construction cost is $146,706.00 as shown in Table 2. This is within the project
budget of$1S0,000 as identi?ed in the City’s adopted 2019-2020 Budget.


Table 2. Construction Phase Total Cost Estimate
Item Contract Amount


1 Apply A-Line, LLC . *$139,720.00
2 Contingency (5%) $6,986.00


Total $146,706.00
*Additive A (Thermoplastic) and Additive D (Paint) not included. Work included in Additive D
could be added as a change order at a later time if funds are available.


The total construction contract time is 30 working days and construction is planned to begin in
Spring 2019. Staff has checked references and information included in the supplemental bidder
responsibility forms and has con?rmed that Apply A—Line,LLC is the lowest responsible bidder.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorize the City Manager, to execute a contract with Apply A—Line,LLC for construction of
the 2019 Street Pavement Marking Program in an amount not to exceed $139,720 to include the
Base Bid (Thermoplastic), Additive B (Paint Striping) and Additive C (Raised Pavement
Markers).


ATTACHMENTS:


Attachment: Contract 2019-X Construction Contract —ApplyA—Line,LLC


/Robert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 19 of 153







Please note that because this is a construction project the contract itselfconsists ofthe contract
document that incorporates the callfor bids, the contractor ’sproposal, including bid schedules,
informationrequired ofbidder, proposal bond and all required certificatesand a?idavits, the
performance bond, the Public WorksPayment Bond, the contract provisions included within the
bidpackage, theplans and specifications,addendumsandfuturechange orders. The entire
package has been reviewed by staffand CityAttorney ’sOfficeprior to bid. Due to the size and
technical nature ofthese documents, they are not included as part ofthis agenda item; however,
the contract templateincluded in the bidpackage that incorporates the aforementioned
documents is included as a reference.Whenthe contract isformally authorized by Council, the
stajj’and contractor will effectuatethe various provisions ofthe documents.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 20 of 153







CITYOF MILLCREEK CONTRACTNO.
SMALL PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT


FOR
2019 STREET PAVEMENT MARKINGPROGRAM


THIS SMALLPUBLICWORKS CONTRACT ("Contract")dated March , 2019 is effective on the date
the Contractis fullyexecuted_bythe Parties. The Parties to this Contract are the CITY OF MILL CREEK, a
Washington municipal corporation ("City")and, [Contractor], [Address] ("Contractor").


A. The Citydesires to retain Contractor to furnish all labor and materials necessary to perform the 2019
Street Pavement Marking Program ("Project"), and


B. The Contractor desires to furnish all labor and materials necessary to perform the Project pursuant
to the terms contained in this Contract, and Contractor has the requisite skilland experience to perform such work.


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties ("Parties") agree to the following terms and conditions:


1. SERVICES BY CONTRACTOR


1.1 Description of Work. Contractor shall perfonn all work and furnish all tools, materials, supplies,
equipment, labor and other items incidental thereto necessary for completion of the Project as described in the
Contract Plans with Location Maps and Site Listings, which are attached hereto and incorporated by this reference
as _El(_Ii_bl'J("Work"). The Work shall be completed to the City's satisfaction no later than the Completion Date stated
in Section 2. No Work shall be performed before the effective date of this Contract.


1.2 Perfonnance Standard. Contractor shall perform the Work in a manner consistent with accepted
practices for other properly licensed contractors.


1.3 Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with all applicable federal,
state and City laws, including but not limitedto all City ordinances, resolutions, standards or policies, as now existing
or hereafter adopted or amended, and obtain all necessary permits and pay all permit, inspection or other fees, at its
sole cost and expense.


1.4 Change Orders. The City may, at any time, without notice to sureties, order changes within the
scope of the Work. Contractor agrees to fully perform any such alterations or additions to the Work. Allsuch change
orders shall be in the form of the Contract Change Order Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B, which shall be
signed by both the Contractor and the City, shall specifically state the change in the Work, the completion date for
such changed Work, and any increase or decrease in the compensation to be paid to Contractor as a result of such
change in the Work. Adjustments to the completion date and compensation for any change agreed to by the City
and Contractor on a particular change order shall constitute fulland total compensation for such change and for the
cumulative effect of that and previous changes, and no other claim or cost shall be made on as a result of such
change. if Contractor disagrees with the adjustments to the completion date and compensation, it must provide the
City with a notice of claim as stated in Section 1.5. Oral change orders shall not be binding upon the City unless
con?rmed in writing by the City.


1.5 Notice of Claims. If the Contractor intends to assert a claim against the City, including claims for
additional payment or time extension, Contractor shall, within ?ve (5) days after the event giving rise to the claim,
submit to the City a written statement setting forth the general nature and monetary extent of such claim; provided
the City, in its sole discretion, may extend such five (5) day submittal period upon request by the Contractor. The
Contractor shall supply such supporting documents and analysis for the claims as the City may require to determine
ifthe claims and costs have merit. Contractor waives the right to make a claim for any costs incurred more than ?ve
(5) days before the Contractor gives written notice as required. Contractor also waives the right to recover on any
claims that are not asserted with the required notice until after ?nal payment under thisContract.


1.6 Work and Materials Omitted. The Contractor shall, when directed in writing by the City, omit work,
services, and materials to be furnished under the Contract and the value of the omitted work and materials will be


{AET1854502.DOCX;1I05739.000003/} Page 1 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 21 of 153







deducted from the Contract Price and the Contract Time willbe reviewed if appropriate. The value of the omitted
work, servicesand materialswillbe a lump sum or unitprice, as mutually agreed upon in writing by the Contractor
and the City. Ifthepartiescannot agree on an appropriate deduction, the City reserves the right to issue a unilateral
change order adjusting the price and the delivery schedule.


1.7
.


Contractor is responsible for locating any underground utilitiesaffected by the Work
and is deemed to be an excavator for purposes of Chapter 19.122 RCW, as amended. Contractor shall be
responsible for compliance with Chapter 19.122 RCW, including utilizationof the "one call" locator system before
commencing any excavation activities.


1.8
.


Contractor shall fully cover any and all loads of loose construction materials
includingwithout limitation,sand, dirt, gravel, asphalt, excavated materials, construction debris, etc., to protect said
materials from air exposure and to minimize emission of airborne particles to the ambient air environment withinthe
City of MillCreek.


2. CONTRACT TIME


2.1 Completion Date. This Contract shall commence on the effective date of this Contract and continue
until the Work is completed, but no later than August 30"‘.2019 ("Completion Date"). or as othen/vise agreed to in
writing by the parties. The time between the effective date and the Completion Date shall be the "Contract Time."


2.2 Liguidated Damages. Contractor acknowledges the Citywillforeseeably suffer damages in the event
Contractor fails to timely achieve the Completion Date. Thus, ifContractor fails to complete the Work within the time
specified, including any authorized extension thereof, then Contactor and its surety hereby agree, as a part
consideration for the awarding of this Contract, to pay the City per WSDOT Spec., Sec. 1-08.9 for each consecutive
calendar day the Work remains uncompleted after the Completion Date, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages.
The parties agree that such sum represents a genuine and reasonable pre—estimateof the damages the City will
suffer from Contractor's failure to timely deliver the conforming Work. Damages under this Section 2.2 may be
deducted by the City from any payment owing to Contractor, or are otherwise payable by Contractor to the City within
thirty (30) days after demand.


3. WARRANTY


3.1 Reguisite Skill. The Contractor warrants that it has the requisite skill to complete the Work, and is
appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities, including but not limited
to being registered to do business in the City of MillCreek by obtaining a City of MillCreek business license.
Contractor represents that it has visited the site and is familiar with all of the plans and specifications in connection
with the completion of the Work.


3.2 Defective Work. The Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, correct all Work which the City
deems to have defects in workmanship and material discovered within one (1) year after the City's ?nal acceptance
of the Work.


4. COMPENSATION


4.1 Total Compensation. The City agrees to pay the Contractor as set forth in the Bid Form submitted
by the Contractor and attached and incorporated by reference as Exhibit C, including local and Washington State
sales tax that the Contractor is required by law to collect from the City for the Work. In any event, the total
compensation paid to Contractor shall not exceed , which includes applicable local and
Washington State sales tax ("Contract Price"). The Project Cost shall not exceed this amount without prior written
authorization from the City in accordance with City Policy No. CCP 96-002.


4.2 Method of Payment. Subject to the total compensation described in Section 4.1, the City willmake
payment based on the actual quantities properly performed by the Contractor as such quantities are determined by
the City's inspector, multiplied by the unit prices stated in the Bid Form attached as Exhibit C. Payment for Work
performed by the Contractor during any month shall be made by the City withinthirty (30) days after the end of that


{AET1854502.DOCX;1l05739.000003/} Page 2 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 22 of 153







:nonth,and be subject to retainage and the City's right to withhold payment pursuant to this Contract or applicable
aw.


4.3 Contractor Res onsible for Taxes. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.1. the Contractor shall
be solely responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawfuljurisdiction as a result of the performance
and payment of thisContract.


4.4
.


The Cityshall have the right to withhold payment to the Contractor for any of the Work
not completed in a workmanlike manner, in the City's sole discretion, which shall be withheld until such time as
Contractor modi?es or repairs the Work so that the Work is acceptable to the City.


4.5
.


Pursuant to Chapter 60.28 RCW, five percent (5%) of all payments to the Contractor
shall be retained by the City to assure payment of Contractor's state taxes as well as payment of subcontractors,
suppliers and laborers. Pursuant to Section 10, this amount may be increased to ten percent (10%) for projects with
a Contract Price of $150,000 or less. Upon execution of this Contract, Contractor shall complete, execute and deliver
to the City the Contractor's Retainage Agreementattached hereto as Exhibit D. Ifthe form is not returned before the
first payment is due, Contractor agrees to retainage being held in a non-interest bearing fund by the public body until
released in accordance withapplicable state statutes. IfContractor has met all requirements of applicable laws and
regulations regarding release of retainage, and all claims filed against retainage have been resolved, the City will
release retainage 60 days following the Completion Date.


5. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER


in all Contractor services, programs or activities, and all Contractor hiringand employment made possible by
or resulting from this Contract, there shall be no discriminationby Contractor or by Contractor's employees, agents,
subcontractors or representatives against any person because of sex, sexual orientation, age (except minimum age
and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status or the presence of any disability, including
sensory, mental or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona ?de occupational qualification in relationship to
hiring and employment. This requirement shall apply. but not be limited to the following: employment, advertising,
layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection fortraining, including apprenticeship.
Contractor shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VIIof the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the
Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or any other applicable federal, state or
local law or regulation regarding non-discrimination.Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for
termination of this Contract by the City and, in the case of the Contractor's breach, may result in ineligibilityfor further
City agreements.


6. INDEPENDENTCONTRACTORICONFLICTOF INTEREST


It is the intention and understanding of the Parties that the Contractor shall be an independent contractor and
that the City shall be neither liable nor obligated to pay Contractor sick leave, vacation pay or any other benefit of
employment, nor to pay any social security or other tax which may arise as an incident of employment. The Contractor
shall pay all income and other taxes as due. Industrial or any other insurance which is purchased for the bene?t of
the City, regardless of whether such may provide a secondary or incidental benefit to the Contractor.shall not be
deemed to convert this Contract to an employment contract. Itis recognized that Contractor may perform work during
the Term of this Contract for other third parties; provided. however, that such performance of other work shall not
conflict with or interfere with the Contractor's ability to perform the Work. Contractor agrees to resolve any such
conflicts of interest in favor of the City.


{AET1854502.DOCX:1/O5739.000003/} Page 3 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 23 of 153







7. TERMINATION


Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Contract may be terminated immediately, with or without cause by
the City. In the event of termination by the City where the Contractor has not breached its obligations, the City will
pay the Contractor for the value of the Work properly performed prior to termination, and in no event shall such
amount exceed the Contract Price, including executed Change Orders. In the event of termination by the City for
cause, the City may, without prejudice to any other remedy the City may have, take possession of the Site and of all
materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by Contractor and may finish
the Work by whatever method the City may deem expedient. If the costs of finishing the Work exceed the unpaid
balance of the Contract Price owed to Contractor for work properly performed, Contractor shall pay the difference to
the City within thirty (30) days of receipt of the City's invoice.


8. INDEMNIFICATION


8.1 Contractor Indemni?cation. The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold the City, its elected
of?cials, of?cers, employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, demands, losses, actions and
liabilities(including costs and all attorney fees associated therewith or associated with successfully establishing the
rightto indemnification) to or by any and all persons or entities arising out of, resulting from Contractor, its Work under
this Contract, or its default of this Contract.


To the extent of the foregoing indemnity, and solely as respects bodily injury claims by employees of Contractor or
its Subcontractors that fall within the scope of the foregoing indemnity, Contractor expressly waives its immunity
under industrialinsurance laws, including but not limitedto Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, with respect
to injuries or death suffered by employees of Contractor or any Subcontractor thereof.


CONTRACTOR AND CITY EXPRESSLY AGREE THAT EACH HAS READ AND REVIEWEDTHIS SECTION
ENTITLEDINDEMNIFICATION,THAT THIS SECTION HAS BEEN THE SUBJECT OF NEGOTIATION BETWEEN
THE PARTIES, ANDTHAT CONTRACTOR AGREES TO BE BOUND BYTHE TERMS THEREOF.


Nothing contained in this Section 8.1 shall require Contractor to hold harmless, pay the defense costs, or indemnify
the City for the sole negligence of the City, its agents, or employees. Further, in the case of concurrent negligence
of (a) the Contractor, its agents, or employees; and (b) the City, its agents, or employees, this Section 8.1 shall only
require Contractor to hold harmless, pay the defense costs, and indemnify the City to the extent of the negligence of
the Contractor, its agents, or employees.


8.2 Survival. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract
with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination.


9. INSURANCE


The Contractor agrees to carry as a minimum, the following insurance against claims for injuries to persons
or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Work by Contractor, its
agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors with a carriers having a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:Vl|:


9.1 Workers‘ Compensation and Employer’s LiabilityInsurance inamounts suf?cient pursuant to the laws
of the State of Washington.


9.2 Commercialgeneral liabilityinsurance shall be written on Insurance Services Of?ce (ISO) occurrence
form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-
completed operations, stop gap liability,personal injuryand advertising injury, and liabilityassumed under an insured
contract. The Commercial General Liability insurance shall be endorsed to provide the Aggregate per Project
Endorsement ISO form CG 25 03 11 85. There shall be no endorsement or modi?cation of the Commercial General
Liabilityinsurance for liabilityarising from explosion, collapse or underground property damage. The City shall be
named as an insured under the Commercial General Liabilityinsurance policy with respect to the Work performed


{AET1854502.DOCX;1/O5739.000003/} Page 4 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 24 of 153







for the City using ISO Additional Insured endorsement CG 20 10 10 01 and Additional Insured Completed Operations
endorsement CG 20 37 10 01 or substitute endorsements providing equivalent coverage with limits of no less than
$1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate and a $2,000,000 products-completed operations
aggregate limit.


9.3 Automobile liabilityinsurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased vehicles. Coverage
shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liabilitycoverage. Ifnecessary, the
policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual liabilitycoverage with combined single limits for bodily injury and
property damage of not less than $1,000,000 per accident.


9.4 Asbestos Abatement or Hazardous Materials. Ifasbestos abatement or hazardous materials work
is performed, Contractor shall review coverage with the City's attorney and provide scope and limitsof coverage that
are appropriate for the scope of Work and are satisfactory to the City. Contractor shall not commence any Work until
its coverage has been approved by the City Attorney.


9.5 The City shall be named as additional insured on all such insurance policies, with the exception of
workers‘ compensation coverages. All insurance provided by the Contractor under this Section 9 shall be primary
and non-contributory with any of City's insurance. Contractor shall provide certi?cates of insurance, concurrent with
the execution of this Contract, evidencing the required coverage and, at City's request, furnish the Citywith copies of
all insurance policies and with evidence of payment of premiums or fees of such policies. Allinsurance policies shall
contain a clause of endorsement providing that they may not be terminated or materially amended during the Term
of this Contract, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City. Contractor shall include all subcontractors
as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certi?cates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All
coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the same insurance requirements as stated herein for the
Contractor. Contractor's failure to maintain such insurance policies shall be grounds for the City's immediate
termination of this Contract.


The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract with respect to any
event occurring prior to such expiration or termination.


10. PERFORMANCEIPAYMENT BOND OR ADDITIONALRETAINAGE


Pursuant to RCW 39.08.010 and priorto commencing work on each awarded project, Contractor shall provide
the City witha Performance/Payment Bond in an amount sufficient to fullycover the Contractor's performance of all
provisions of this Contract and the payment of all laborers and suppliers for each project to which the Contract bond
applies. The Contract bond(s) shall be in a form attached hereto as Exhibit E. The Contract bond(s) shall assure that
the Contractor will faithfully perform all of the provisions of the Contract as well as pay all laborers, mechanic
subcontractors, materialmen and suppliers. Contractor's obligations under this Contract shall not be limited to the
bond amount(s). lf Contract Price is $150,000 of less, Contractor authorizes the City, in lieu of the bond, to retain
10% of the Contract Price in accordance with RCW 39.08.010(3).


11. SAFETY


Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of its employees on the work site and shall
comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and municipal safety and health laws and codes, including
without limitation,all OSHAIWISHA requirements, Safety and Health Standards for Construction Work (Chapter 296-
155 WAC), General Safety and Health Standards (Chapter 296-24 WAC), and General Occupational Health
Standards (Chapter 296-62 WAC). Contractor shall erect and properly maintain, at all times, all necessary guards,
barricades, signals and other safeguards at all unsafe places at or near the Work for the protection of its employees
and the public, safe passageways at all road crossings, crosswalks, street intersections, post danger signs warning
against known or unusual hazards and do all other things necessary to prevent accident or loss of any kind.
Contractor shall protect from damage all water, sewer, gas, steam or other pipes or conduits, and all hydrants and
all other property that is likely to become displaced or damaged by the execution of the Work. The Contractor shall,
at its own expense, secure and maintain a safe storage place for its materials and equipment and is solely responsible
for the same.


{AET1854502.DOCX;1/05739.000003/} Page 5 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 25 of 153







12. PREVAILING WAGES


12.1
.


This Contract is subject to the minimum wage requirements of Chapter 39.12
of the Revised Code of Washington, as now existing or hereafter amended or supplemented. In the payment of
hourly wages and fringe benefits to be paid to any of Contractor's laborers, workpersons and/or mechanics,
Contractor shall not pay less than the "prevailing rate of wage" for an hour's work in the same trade or occupation in
the locality within the State of Washington where such labor is performed, as determined by the Industrial Statistician
of the Department of Labor and Industries of the State of Washington, which "prevailing rates of wage" are available
on the Department of Labor and Industries website at:
httg://www.|ni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/PrevWageNVageRatesldefault.asp_ and available in paper form upon request
to the City. Prevailing wages paid pursuant to this Contract shall be the prevailing wage rates which are in effect on
the date when the Contractor's bid, proposal, or quote was requested to be submitted to the City.


12.2 Reporting Requirements. Contractor shall comply with all reporting requirements ofthe Department of
Labor and Industries of the State of Washington. Upon the execution of this Contract, Contractor shall complete and
file a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages with the Department of Labor and Industries. Upon completion of
the Work, Contractor shall complete and file an Af?davit of Wages Paid with the Department of Labor and Industries.
Contractor shall deliver copies of both the Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and the Affidavit of Wages
Paid, certified by the Department of Labor and Industries, to the City.


12.3 Disputes. In the event any dispute arises as to what are the prevailing rates of wages for work of a
similar nature and such dispute cannot be resolved by the City and the Contractor, the matter shall be referred for
arbitration to the Director of the Department of Labor and Industries of the State of Washington and the decision
therein shall be final and conclusive and binding on all parties involved in the dispute.


13. FAILURE TO PAY SUBCONTRACTORS


In the event the Contractor shall fail to pay any subcontractors or laborers, or fail to pay for any materials,
the City may terminate this Contract and/or the City may withhold from the money which may be due the Contractor
an amount necessary for the payment of such subcontractors, laborers, or materials.


14. SUBCONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY


Contractor shall verify responsibility criteria for each first tier subcontractor, and a subcontractor of any tier
that hires other subcontractors must verify responsibility criteria for each of its subcontractors. Verification shall
include that each subcontractor, at the time of subcontract execution, meets the responsibility criteria required by
RCW 3904.350 and any supplemental responsibility that Contractor was required to meet as part of the bid for this
Contract. This verification requirement must be included in every public works subcontract or every tier.


15. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS


All reports, plans, specifications, data, maps and documents produced by the Contractor to the City in the
performance of this Contract, whether in draft or final form and whether written, computer or other form, shall be the
property of the City. To the extent it is determined any other records held by the Contractor relating to the Work are
subject to the Washington Public Records Act (RCW 42.56), the Contractor shall promptly deliver such records to the
City for purpose of responding to a public records request. This section shall survive termination of this Contract.


16. CONFIDENTIALITY


If it is necessary to provide proprietary information, the Contractor shall clearly mark the information on each
page of the document(s) as “Proprietary and Confidential". The City is subject to laws regarding the disclosure of
public records and document. Proposals and other materials, submitted by the Contractor become public record and
may be subject to public disclosure, in whole or in part, and may be released by the City in the event of a request for
disclosure. In the event the City receives a public record request for information and the Contractor has marked the
requested document as "Proprietary and Confidential", the City shall notify the Contractor of such request and


{AET1854502.DOCX;1/D5739.000003/) Page 6 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 26 of 153







withhold disclosure of such information for not less than ?ve (5) business days, to permit the Contractor to seek
judicial protection of such information; provided that the Contractor shall be solely responsible for all attorney fees
and costs in such action and shall save and hold harmless the City from any costs, attorney's fees or penalty
assessments under Chapter 42.56 RCW for withholding or delaying public disclosure of such information.


17. BOOKS AND RECORDS


The Contractor agrees to maintain books, records, and documents which sufficiently and properly reflect all
direct and indirect costs related to the performance of this Contract and such accounting procedures and practices
as may be deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all funds paid pursuant to this Contract.
These records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by the City, its authorized
representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental of?cials authorized by law to monitor this Contract.


18. CLEAN UP


At any time ordered by the City and immediately after completion of the Work, the Contractor, shall, at its
own expense, clean up and remove all refuse and unused materials of any kind resulting from the Work. In the event
the Contractor fails to perform the necessary clean up, the City may, but in no event is it obligated to, perform the
necessary clean up and the costs thereof shall be immediately paid by the Contractor to the City andlor the City may
deduct its costs from any remaining payments due to the Contractor.


19. GENERAL PROVISIONS


19.1 Entire Contract. The Contract documents contain all of the agreements of the Parties with respect to
any matter covered or mentioned in this Contract and no prior agreements or understandings pertaining to any such
matters shall be effective for any purpose.


19.2 Modification. No provision of this Contract may be amended or added to except by written agreement
and signed by the Parties or their respective agents or successors in interest.


19.3 Full Force and Effect. Any provision of this Contract which is declared invalid, void or illegal shall in
no way affect, impair, or invalidate any other provision hereof and such other provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.


19.4 Assignment. The Contractor shall not transfer or assign, in whole or in part, any or all of its
obligations and rights hereunder without the prior written consent of the City. In the event the City consents to any
such assignment or transfer, such consent shall in no way release the Contractor from any of its obligations or
liabilities under this Contract.


19.5 Successors in Interest. Subject to the preceding Subsection, this Contract shall be binding upon and
inure to the bene?t of the Parties’ successors in interest, heirs and assigns.


19.6 Attorney's Fees. in the event the City or the Contractor defaults on the perfonnance of any terms in
this Contract, and the Contractor or City places the enforcement of the Contract or any part thereof, or the collection
of any monies due, or to become due hereunder, or recovery of possession of any belongings, in the hands of an
attorney, or file suit upon the same, each Party shall pay all its own attorneys‘ fees, costs and expenses. The venue
for any dispute related to this Contract shall be King County, Washington.


19.7 No Waiver. Failure of the City to declare any breach or default immediately upon occurrence thereof,
or delay in taking any action in connection with, shall not waive such breach or default. Failure of the City to declare
one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare another breach or default.


19.8 Governing Law. This Contract shall be made in and shall be governed by and interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.


{AET1854502.DOCX;1/05739.000003/} Page 7 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 27 of 153







19.9 Authority. Each individualexecuting this Contract on behalf of the City and Contractor represents
and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Contract on behalf of the Contractor
or City.


19.10 Notices. Any notices required to be given by the City to Contractor or by the Contractor to the City
shall be delivered to the Parties at the addresses set forth below. Any notices may be delivered personally to the
addressee of the notice or may be deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the address set forth
herein. Any notice so posted in the United States mail shall be deemed received three (3) days after the date of
mailing.


19.11 Captions. The respective captions of the Sections of this Contract are inserted for convenience of
reference only and shall not be deemed to modify or otheniviseaffect in any respect any of the provisions of this
Contract.


19.12 Performance. Time is of the essence of this Contract and each and all of its provisions in which
performance is a factor. Adherence to completion dates is essential to the Contractor's performance of this Contract.


19.13 Con?icting Provisions. In the event of a conflict between the terms and provisions of any of the
Contract documents, the CityManager or his or her designee shall issue an interpretation of the controlling document,
which interpretation shall be final and binding.


SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS


{AET1854502.DOCX;1I05739.000003I} Page 8 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 28 of 153







INWITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract the day of


, 2019.


CITYOF MILLCREEK


By:
Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager


ATTEST:


Peggy Lauerman, City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


Scott Missall, City Attorney


[CONTRACTOR]


By:
(Signature)


(Printed Signature Name and Title)


Address
[Address]


Phone
[Phone]


(Federal Tax ID#)


{AET1854502.DOCX;1lO5739.000003I} Page 9 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 29 of 153







‘ EXHIBITA
PLANS ANDSPECIFICATIONS


(Attached)


{AET1854502.DOCX:1I05739.000003I} Page 10 Of17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 30 of 153







EXHIBITB
CONTRACTCHANGEORDER


(Attached ifNeeded)


{AET1854502.DOCX;1I05739.000DO3l} Page 11 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 31 of 153







EXHIBITC
CONTRACTOR‘SBIDFORM


(Attached)


{AET1854502.DOCX;1/057391300003!} Page 12 Of17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 32 of 153







Bidlcontract Number


exmenn E:
CONTRACTOR'S RETAINAGEAGREEMENT


Contract Title


Contract Date


Contractor Name


Contractor Address


Contractor Phone
Contractor Federal ID#


State Law on How Contract Retainage Monies can be Reserved:
RCW 60.28.010 Retained percentage, labor and material Contracts for public improvements or work other


than for professional services, provides that there shall be reserved by the city from the monies earned by the
contractor on estimates during the progress of the improvement or work, a sum of five percent of such estimates,
said sum to be retained by the city as a trust fund for the protection and payment of any persons performing work or
supplying provisions or supplies during the work. The monies reserved for contract retainage may be reserved by
the contractor choosing one of the following four options:


[All investments selected below are subject to City approval.]
Contractor Options (Contractor shall place an "x"in one of the boxes below.)


[ ] (a) Retained in a non-interest bearing fund by the public body until released in accordance with
applicable state statutes;


[ ] (b) Deposited by the public body in an interest bearing account in a bank, mutual savings bank, or
savings and loan association, not subject to withdrawaluntilreleased in accordance with applicable
state statutes, provided that interest on such account shall be paid to the contractor;


[ ] (c) Placed in escrow with a bank or trust company by the public body until released in accordance with
applicable state statutes. The cost of the investment program and the risk thereof is to be borne
entirely by the contractor.


[ ] (d) Contractor may submit a Retainage Bond equal to 5% of the total awarded bid amount for all
schedules to be held by the public body until released in accordance with applicable state statutes.


{AET1854502.DOCX;1I05739.000003I} Page 13 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 33 of 153







Contractor's Bank
IfContractor selects options (b) or (c) above, Contractor shall designate below the bank in which the


retainage is to be deposited:


ACCOUNTNO.


BANKNAME


BANKADDRESS


BANKPHONE #


Agreement


Contractor and City agree that all or part of the monies in the account can only be approved for disbursement
by Bank to Contractor upon written authorizationof the City Finance Director, or his/her authorized designee.


By By
City of MillCreek Contractor


Date Date


{AET1854502.DOCX;1/05739.000003I} Page 14 of 17


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 34 of 153







EXHIBITE


PERFORMANCEIPAYMENT BOND TO CITY OF MILLCREEK


KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that we, the undersigned,. as principal
("Principal"), and , a
Corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of , as a surety
Corporation, and qualified under the laws of the State of Washington to become surety upon bonds of
Contractors withMunicipalCorporations, as surety ("Surety"),are jointlyand severally held and firmlybound
to the City of Mill Creek ("City") in the penal sum of:


($ ) for the payment of which sum we bind ourselves and our successors, heirs,
administrators or personal representatives, as the case may be.


This obligation is entered into in pursuant to the statutes of the State of Washington and the ordinances,
regulations, standards and policies of the City, as now existing or hereafter amended or adopted.


Pursuant to proper authorization, the City Manager is authorized to enter into a certain public works
contract with the Principal, providing for ,
which contract is incorporated herein by this reference ("Contract").


The Principal has accepted, or is about to accept, the Contract, and undertake to perfonn the work
therein provided for in the manner and within the time set forth.


NOW, THEREFORE, ifthe Principal shall perform all the provisions of the Contract in the manner and
within the time period prescribed by the City, or withinsuch extensions of time as may be granted under
the Contract, and shall pay all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors and material men or women, and all
persons who shall supply the Principal or subcontractors with provisions and supplies for the carrying on of
said work, and shall hold the City, their of?cials, agents, employees and volunteers harmless from any loss
or damage occasioned to any personor property by reason of any carelessness or negligence on the part
of the Principal, or any subcontractor in the performance of said work, and shall indemnify and hold the City
harmless from any damage or expense by reason of failure of performance as specified in the Contract, or
from defects appearing or developing in the material or workmanship provided or performed under the
Contract withina period of one year after its final acceptance thereof by the City, then and in that event this
obligation shall be void; but otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and effect.


And the Surety, for value received, hereby further stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of
time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the
speci?cations accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond, and itdoes hereby
waive notice of any change, extension of time, alterations or additions to the terms of the Contract or to the
Work.


The Surety hereby agrees that modi?cations and changes may be made in the terms and provisions
of the Contract without notice to Surety, and any such modifications or changes increasing the total amount
to be paid the Principal shall automatically increase the obligation of the Surety on this Performance Bond
in a like amount, such increase, however, not to exceed twenty-?ve percent (25%) of the original amount
of this bond without the consent of the Surety.


Withinforty-five (45) days of receiving notice that the Principal has defaulted on all or part of the terms
of the Contract, the Surety shall make a written commitment to the City that itwilleither: (a) cure the default
itselfwithina reasonable time period, or (b) tender to the City, the amount necessary for the City to remedy
the default, including legal fees incurred by the City, or (c) inthe event that Surety‘s evaluation of the dispute


{AET1854502.DOCX;1/05739.000003/ }


-15-


827842 .1/014455 .00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 35 of 153







is not complete or in the event the Surety disputes the City's claim of default, the Surety shall notifythe City
of its finding and its intent, if any, to interplead. The Surety shall then fulfillits obligations under this bond,
according to the option it has elected. Should Surety elect option (a) to cure the default, the penal sum of
the Bond shall be reduced in an amount equal to the costs actually incurred by the Surety in curing the
default. Ifthe Surety elects option (b), then upon completion of the necessary work, the City shall notify the
Surety of its actual costs. The City shall return.without interest, any overpayment made by the Surety and
the Surety shall pay to the City any actual costs which exceed the City estimate, limitedto the bond amount.
Should the Surety elect option (c), the Parties shall first complete participation in mediation, described in
the below paragraph, prior to any interplead action.


In the event a dispute should arise between the Parties to this Bond with respect to the City's declaration
of default by the Principal, the Parties agree to participate inat least four hours of mediation in accordance
with the mediation procedures of the American Arbitration Association ("AAA"). The Parties shall
proportionately share in the cost of the mediation. The mediation shall be administered by the Seattle AAA
of?ce, 1020 One Union Square, 600 Union Street, Seattle, Washington 98122. The Surety shall not
interplead prior to completion of the mediation.


The parties have executed this instrument under their separate seals this day of
, 20_, the name and corporate seal of each corporate party hereto affixed,


and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representatives pursuant to authority of its governing
body.


CORPORATE SEAL OF PRINCIPAL:
(Name of Principal)


By:


(Name of Person Executing Bond)


Its:
(Title)


(Address)


(Phone)


CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE SEAL


I hereby certify that I am the (Assistant) Secretary of the Corporation named as Principal in the within
bond; that , who signed the said bond on behalf of the
Principal, was of the said Corporation; that I know his or her signature
thereto is genuine, and that said bond was duly signed, sealed, and attested for and in behalf of said
Corporation by authority of its governing body.


Secretary or Assistant Secretary


{AET1854502.DOCX;l/05739.000003/ }


-16-


827842.1/0l4455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 36 of 153







CORPORATE SEAL OF SURETY:
(Name of Surety)


By:
(Attorney-in-Fact / Attach Power of Attorney)


(Name of Person Executing Bond)


(Address)


(Phone)


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


SCOTT MISSALL,CITYATTORNEY


{AET1854502.DOCX;l/05739.000003/ }


-17-


827842 .1/014455 .00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award (Gina... Page 37 of 153







CITY or
/—:&__J


Agenda Item # E


W A S H I N G T 0 N Meeting Date: February 26, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: STUDY SESSION FOR DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN EASTGATE BY VINTAGE, LP AT MILL CREEK AND
THE CITY OF MILL CREEK


PROPOSED MOTION:


No motion as no action is scheduled other than potentially set a date for a publichearing on the
proposed Development Agreement °


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


In March 2018, the City received a development application for The Farm at Mill Creek, which
is located in the City’s East Gateway Urban Village (EGUV) zone. The application was deemed
complete on April 13, 2018. One of the requirements of developing in the EGUV zone district is
to enter into a development agreement with the City. In accordance with State law (RCW
36.70B.200), a public hearing must be held on a development agreement prior to the City
Council taking action on the development agreement.


On February 19, 2019, the City Council held a study session on the development proposal, The
Farm at Mill Creek. At this meeting staff, presented background information about the history of
the EGUV, the development review process utilized in the EGUV, the applicable policies and
regulations that govern development in the EGUV, and the history of development in EGUV.
The purpose of this work session was to provide context to the Council for the consideration of
the proposedDevelopment Agreement.


The purpose of the February 26, 2019, City Council Study Session is to present the proposed
Development Agreement to the City Council and answer questions. It is anticipated that after the
presentationand discussion, the City Council will be able to set a date for the public hearing.


Development agreements increase certainty and reduce risk for both the developer and the City
by addressing issues of interest to the City and the developer that are not speci?cally addressed
in the code. Development agreements must be consistent with the City’s regulations. The
proposed Development Agreement was negotiated between staff and the developer and includes
many bene?ts and amenities for the City. The table below provides highlights of the substantive
issues addressed in the proposed Development Agreement.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 38 of 153







CityCouncil Agenda Summary
Page2


Development Agreement Highlights:


9.1-Occupauricy-an
9.2-Certi?cates of Occupancy


9.6-Municipal Space Allowance


11.2—Off-SiteMitigation Site


13 (entire section)


.
4...


City is requiring that 75% of the commercial
leasablearea be completed and that the
certi?cate of occupancy has been issued for
this area prior to the City issuing any
Certi?cate of Occupancy for residential units.
This assures that the commercial areas are
completed and are an initial part of the
ro°ect.


Developer is providing the City a 50-year
lease for a minimum of 500 square feet of
municipal space at no cost, except the
payment of utilities. The developer is
providing the same basic tenant
improvementsfor basic of?ce set-up as was
listed in Vintage at Mill Creek Development
Agreement (carpet, walls electrical, paint, and
plumbing ?xtures). The City would be
responsiblefor additional tenant
improvements based on the municipal use
selected b the City.
Developer has purchasedapproximately61
acres (former Paci?c Topsoils site) and is
restoring the site per the City’s standards.
This site is necessary to allow the reduced
wetland buffer adjacent to the development.
The developer is offering to dedicate the site
to the City once the ?ve-year monitoring
period is over. Public access will be provided
during the ?ve years on trails being placed on
the property by the developer. A small
parking area will be providedby the
developer. The ?ve-year period will allow the
City to partner with other private and public
entities to determine a long term vision for the
site and assess the maintenance costs
associated with the property. The City can
decline the dedication within the ?ve-year
eriod.
The private parking lot west of Building F
will be designed to allow the area to be
utilized as a public gathering area for
families, markets, festivals, concerts and the
like. In addition, a public restroom and a
water fountain will be constructed in one of


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 39 of 153







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 3


the commercial buildings near the public
gathering area.


To date the City Council has approved three prior developments within the EGUV zone. These
developments combined include approximately 60,990 square feet of commercial space and 518
number ofhousing units on 25.91 acres of land.


Development Commercial Square Residential Units Land Area in Acres
Footage


Gateway Building 24,000 3.5
Polygon 302 16.77


Dental Building 7,667 0.43


Primrose School 12,123 1.25


Vintage at Mill Creek 17,200 216 3.96
Totals 60,990 Square 518 Units 25.91 Acres


Footage


This total does not include the existing uses in the EGUV which are Advent Lutheran Church
and Upper Cuts Hair Salon with the associated residential home. The Farm at Mill Creek will
include over 100,000 square feet of commercial space and 355 residential apartments.
According to the Comprehensive Plan, the purpose of the EGUV zone is to encourage density
and provide for a pedestrian—orientedand diverse mix of land uses. The uses are to include
mixed-use commercial, office, residential and public uses. Staff has determined that the


proposed development of The Farm is consistent with and achieves the vision, policies and goals
of the EGUV zone.


Revenues and Expenses - City Operations:


New development brings with it increased demands on local government services and
infrastructure, but also generates new local government revenues through additional taxes and
fees. A 2016 Fiscal Impact Analysis (currently under review and update by The Farm developer)
indicates that the development as proposed in 2016 would generate over $391,000 in annual on-


going tax revenues (property tax and sales taxes) and over $552,000 of one-time construction
related taxes (sales taxes). Although The Farm developer is currently evaluating an update to the
2016 analysis, he has reported that the revenues cited in the report remain relevant and may be
lower than what may actually be generated since the overall cost of the project has increased
since 2016.


City staff has evaluated the proposed development consisting of approximately100,000 square
feet of commercial space along with a projected resident population of approximately 827 based


on 355 apartment units and 25 live-work units to detennine its impact on City services and future


expenses. Based on these evaluations, City departments have not identified a need for additional


funds to support City services for the proposed development. Although no additional expenses


are needed at this time for the build-out of The Farm, the Police Department along with the
Public Works and Development Services Department, will be impacted the most of all City


departments by the proposed development. Attached are reports from the departments identifying


projected service level impacts associated with the development.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 40 of 153







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 4


Based on the revenues identi?ed in the 2016 Fiscal Impact Analysis (referenced above), the City
will see a gain of $391,000 in ongoing revenues to support City services. This result is to be
expected as mixed-used development, offering a substantial area for commercial
operations/sales, will generally have a positive impact on net resources, which is why so many
communities pursue similar developments as a means to improve local economic conditions and
create vibrant gathering places for their community.


It’s important to note that although the service level impacts associated with the proposed
development are considered minor and very manageable with identi?able impacts within the
Police Department and the Public Works and Development Services Department, the incremental
impacts of The Farm plus future developments and population growth will likely be more severe
for City departments and services requiring additional resources. For example, a City service or
department may be able to address the needs of a service population of 25,000 but anything more
than that amount may necessitate the need for additional staff and expenditures in order to


maintain City services. Staff also compared the per capita revenues of ongoing sales and
property taxes within the City against those same taxes projected within the proposed
development below:


2019 City
Revenues S per Capita The Farm S per Capita


Property Tax * $6,220,000 $191,907


Sales Tax * $2,725,000 $199,144


Revenue $8,945,000 $436.98 $391,051 $472.35


Ongoing revenue *


The Farm Revenue Source: 20/ 6 Fiscal Impact /lmzlysis
Populalianfor the City is estimated at 20,4 70 and 8.77for the Farm


Previous Study Session Questions:


At the February 19, 2019, City Council meeting, members of the community and City Council
members asked questions about the development proposal and development within the EGUV
zone. Staff has compiled a list of these questions and is developing responses. This information
is attached to the Agenda Summary and will be posted and updated on the project page on the
City’s website, wwwcityofmillcreek.com/thefarm.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Discuss the proposed Development Agreement, provide input, and set a date for a public hearing
to consider the proposed Development Agreement.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 41 of 153







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 5


ATTACHMENTS:


0 Proposed Development Agreement — Attachment 1
0 Preliminary Binding Site Plan (Conceptual) ~ Attachment 2
- Fiscal Impact Analysis prepared by lntegra Realty Resources dated December 2016 —


Attachment — 3
0 Department Expense Analysis — Attachment 4
- The Farm at Mill Creek Response to Questions4 Attachment 5


Respectfully Submitted:


J/%/
Robert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 42 of 153







After recording return to:


City Clerk
City of Mill Creek
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012


Document Title(s) Development Agreement for BSP PL2018-0004
(EGUV)


Reference Number(s) of related
documents


Grantor(s) City of Mill Creek


Eastgate by Vintage, LP
A


Grantees(s) Eastgate by Vintage, LP


City of Mill Creek


Abbrev. Legal Description PortionParcels 1 & 2 per BLA No. 00-101711, Rec.
200007140347


Assessor's Property Tax 28053300200200; 28053300200300
Parcel/Account Numbers


Assessor’s Off-Site Mitigation Site 28053300206800; 28053300206900; and
Parcel/Account Numbers 28053300300200


PL2018—0004Development Agreement - Page 1 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 43 of 153







CONTRACT 2019-1493
CITY OF MILL CREEK


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR THE


EASTGATE BY VINTAGE, LP
BINDING SITE PLAN (PL2018-0004)


IN THE EAST GATEWAY URBAN VILLAGE


1.0 Parties


_ 1.1 This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into on the Effective Date
set forth below between the City of Mill Creek, a Washington municipal corporation having its
principal place of business at 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, Washington 98012 ("City"), and
Eastgate by Vintage, LP, a Washington limited liability company, having its principal place of
business at 369 San Miguel Drive, Suite #135, Newport Beach, California 92660-7813
("Developer"). The City and Developermay be individuallyreferred to as "Party" and collectively
as the "Parties."


1.2 The Parties enter into this Agreement for and in considerationof the mutual bene?ts
and advantages of this Agreement. The Parties agree to complywith all of the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.


2.0 Purpose


2.1 Mill Creek Municipal Code (“MCMC”) Section l7.19.020 requires every
development in the East Gateway Urban Village (“EGUV”) zone district to obtain approval of a
detailed master development plan. The detailed master development plan requires a binding site
plan, a development agreement with the City, and a consistency analysis. The development
agreement is subject to approval by the City Council and the binding site plan together with the
development agreement is subject to review and approval by the City Hearing Examiner (“Hearing
Examiner”). The Hearing Examiner’s decision is appealable to the City Council as a closed record
appeal.


2.2 Developer has submitted a binding site plan applicationunder ?le number PL2018-
0004 (“BSP”) to develop the project described in Section 5.1 (“Project”). This Agreement
comprises the development agreement for the Project and is required by MCMC 17.19.030.C to
be in accord with RCW 36.7OB.l70. The property to be developed in accordance with this
Agreement is vested to the development regulations in effect on the effective date of this
Agreement unless different development standards are set forth herein. This Agreement is not
intended to con?ict with or supplant existing state and local regulations that otherwise govern the
Project. This Agreement does not serve as an approval of any pennit or any speci?c proposal
within Developer’s application for the Project, which permits or proposal shall be reviewed
pursuant to the City’s procedures. The Agreement sets forth negotiated terms and conditions
applicable to future Project approvals and the ongoing obligations and rights of the Parties after
Project approval. These negotiated terms and conditions supplement the terms and conditionsof
the MCMC. Deve1oper’s proposed BSP (as de?ned in Section 5.1) remains subject to review and


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 2 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 44 of 153







approval by the Hearing Examiner. If the BSP is approved, related permits (e.g. building and
design review) will be subject to review and approval by those designated to review such permits
(e.g. building code of?cial and design review board).


2.3 The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement will bene?t the Parties by assuring
them of their respective rights, duties, obligations,privileges and commitments with regard to the
Property and Project for the duration of this Agreement.


3.0 Definitions


3.1 The following terms are initially de?ned and/or described at the indicated sections
of this Agreement:


Binding Site Plan ("BSP") (Section5.1)
Commercial Property Use Agreement (Section 9.3)
Design Guidelines (Section 8.2.2)
East Gateway Urban Village (“EGUV”) (Section 2.1)
Effective Date (Section 20.4)
EGUV Regulations (Section 8.2)
Engineering Study (Section 8.2.3)
Hearing Examiner (Section 2.1)
Live-Work Units (Section 9.4 and 9.5)
Master Development Plan ("MDP") (Section 7.3)
Mill Creek Municipal Code ("MCMC") (Section 2.1)
Project (Section 5.1)
Project Approvals (Section 8.3)
Property (Section 4.1)
Successors (Section 15.2) .
Road Construction (Section 10.4)
Vested Term (Section 8.4)


4.0 Property and Parcel Descriptions


4.1 Property Sites. The property which is the subject of this Agreement and is to be
developedwith the proposedbinding site plan consists of the parcelslegally describedin attached
Exhibit A ("Property"). The parcels comprising the Property bear Snohomish County tax parcel
numbers ("TPN") 28053300200300 (Parcel A) and 28053300200200 (Parcel B). This Agreement
shall bind Developer and the Property pursuant to Section 19.5. A tax parcel map generally
depicting the Property (Project Site) is attached as Exhibit B. References to "Property" shall
include the Project described in Section 5.1 below.


Section 4.2 Off—SiteMitigation Site. The property which is proposed to provide off-
site wetland mitigation for the development of the Property Site of the Agreement consists of the
parcels legally described in attached Exhibit A (“Off-Site Mitigation Site”). The parcels
comprising the Off-Site Mitigation Site bear the Snohomish County tax parcel numbers
28053300206800; 28053300206900; and 28053300300200. A tax parcel map generally depicting
the Off—SiteMitigation Site is attached as Exhibit B.


5.0 Project Description


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -— Page 3 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 45 of 153







5.1 Project Description. Developer has submitted 21 Binding Site Plan (“BSP”)
application to develop the Property bearing file number PL2018—0004. The Project generally
consists of subdividing the two parcels described in Section 4 for the purposes of developing nine
(9) buildings. Buildings Al though F will have commercial uses (approximately 85,000 square
feet) and include a parking structure. below ground parking. and parking on the ground ?oor.


Buildings A1, A2, A3, A4, B and C will be one story in height. Buildings D, E and F will have
?ve stories with 355 residential apartment units above the ground ?oor. One hundred percent of
the proposed residential units (above ground ?oor) will be workforce housing targeting households
at 60% of the average median income. The live/work units will be market rate. The preliminary
BSP depicting the Project is attached as Exhibit C.


6.0 Authoritv


6.1 Authority. This Agreement is a development agreement authorized by and entered
into under the authority of MCMC 14.03 and 17.19, and the Revised Code of Washington
("RCW“) at Section 36.70B.170 et seq. This Agreement establishes certain terms and conditions
pertaining to development of the Project and the Property, and establishes an overall framework
for current and ?iture development of the Property, but is not exclusive nor a comprehensive list
of development requirements affecting the Property. Other requirements for development of the
Property will be established during the application and review process for specific components of
the Project under the EGUV Regulations (defined in Section 8.2) and the MCMC.


7.0 Development Review Procedures for Project


7.1 Review Process. This Agreement has been processed in accordance with MCMC
14.03 and 17.19, and RCW 36.70B.170 et seq. Approval of this Agreement by the Mill Creek
City Council is required before any other development approvals affecting the Property may be
heard or decided. Following the Parties’ execution of the Agreement, Developer shall promptly
record the Agreement with the Snohomish County Auditor‘s Oflice at Developer's expense and


provide a conformed and recorded copy to City. In the event that the Agreement is recorded and
the Project does not receive further approvals or Developer does not proceed with the Project,
Developer and City will timely execute and record any necessary termination document, and


Developer will pay the costs of recording such document and providing a conformed copy to City.


7.2 Hearing Examiner Notice. In reviewing subsequent development applications for
the Project or Property, the Hearing Examiner shall take notice of this Agreement in accordance
with MCMC 4.34, 14.03, and 17.19.


7.3 Project Review. Subsequent applications, approvals, and development actions for
the Project, including the BSP and consistency review required for the Project under MCMC
17.l9.030, environmental decisions, and all subsequent permits implementing the Project, shall be


reviewed pursuant to the applicable development and MCMC regulations existing on the effective
date of the Agreement. No development approval shall be granted unless it is consistent with the
MCMC, this Agreement and the EGUV Regulations. This Agreement, any future approved BSP


for the Project, and any future approved consistency review for the Project shall collectively
comprise the master development plan (“MDP”) for the Project described in MCMC 17.l9.020
and .030.


8.0 Project Review and Evaluation; Vested Rights


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 4 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 46 of 153







8.1
.


The Project shall be reviewed in accordance with City's
developmentreview procedures and the requirementsof RCW 36.70B.l70 et seq. City shall use
this Agreement and the EGUV Regulations during the developmentreview process as additional
standards and criteria to evaluate the Project and determine appropriate conditions and
requirementsof development. Project approvaland subsequentbuild out will require various City
permits and approvals.


8.2 EGUV Regulations. Following initial approval of the Project, the Project and its
component parts will be developed consistent with the following as applied during the
development review process: (i) this Agreement; (ii) the version of Titles 16, 17, and 18 of the
MCMC in effect on the date the Agreement is approved by the City Council; (iii) EGUV Design
Guidelinesadopted July 1,2008 ("Design Guidelines");(iv) Reid Middleton EGUV Infrastructure
Design Report dated December 2012 ("EngineeringStudy") attached and incorporatedas Exhibit
D; (v) environmental decisions and" documents issued for the Project under the State
Environmental Policy Act, RCW Chapter 43.2lC, and/or MCMC 18.04 (collectively "SEPA");
(vi) the version of the Mill Creek Comprehensive Plan in effect on the date the Agreement is
approved by the City Council;; (vii) other applicable City, state, or federal regulations as those
regulations exist and apply at the time of development or a vested application therefore (e.g.
building permits will be subject to the building codes in effect at the time a building permit is
applied for). All of the foregoing comprise development regulations within the meaning of RCW
36.70A.O30 and shall collectively comprise and be referred to as the "EGUV Regulations."
Without limiting the foregoing, the following components of the EGUV Regulations are
emphasizedfor clarity:


8.2.1 Applicable Reg1_1lations.The Project shall comply with all applicable
regulations in the MCMC (i) in effect on the effective date of this Agreement except as modi?ed
herein, and (ii) to the extent not vested hereunder upon the vesting date of any subsequent
applicationpertaining to the Project.


8.2.2 EGUV Design Guidelines. All structures and facilities comprising the
Project shall comply with the Design Guidelines as adopted by the City Council on July 1, 2008,
in City Council Ordinance No. 2008-684.


8.2.3 Engineering Study. The Engineering Study shall be used as the design
guideline for the public roadway alignment, access management, traf?c impacts and analysis,
regional drainage facilities if coordinating with adjacent property owners, public infrastructure
facilities, and utility coordination. All required public infrastructure, facilities and mitigation
arising from the Project shall be consistent with the Engineering Study. The Parties agree the
alignmentof 39"‘Avenue SE and 133"’Street SE as depictedon Exhibit C is an approved deviation
from the alignment of that road as contemplatedwithin the EngineeringStudy.‘The City Manager
or designee, in his or her sole discretion,may authorize additional deviations from the Engineering
Study to the extent such deviations do not prevent the Project from complying with other


‘ With the exceptionof the aligmnent of 39“‘Ave SE and 133"Street SE, Project elements depicted in Exhibit C (e.g.
parking, buffers, setbacks, open space, building locations) are provided for conceptualpurposes only. The Hearing
Examiner shall determine whether such elements comply with applicable EGUV Regulations.


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 5 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 47 of 153







applicable aspects of the EGUV Regulations and will not materially impact existing or future
developments within the EGUV zone district.


8.3 Compliance with Project Approvals. Once approved, this Agreement, the
subsequent associated BSP and MDP, and all other related governmental approvals (e.g., SEPA
detennination, building pennits, etc.) required for development of the Project shall collectively
comprise the "Project Approvals." The Project shall comply with the Project Approvals in all
particulars, and City may take enforcement actionin accordance with Section 15 at any time to
compel such compliance.


8.4 Binding Nature of Development Aggeementg Vested Term; Vested Rigl_1ts.This
Agreement shall constitute a binding development regulation for the Project and Property for
purposes of the City’s review of Binding Site Plan File PL2018-0004 and related applications
received within 8 years of the effective date of this Agreement (“Vested Term”). During the
Vested Term, Developer shall have the right to develop the Project in accordance with the tenns


of this Agreement and the Project Approvals regardless of intervening changes in the EGUV
Regulations or other applicable development regulations (but excluding, for example, changes in
building code regulations and mitigation assessments not set forth with the Project terms). Upon
the expirationof the Vested Term, this Agreement shall continueto apply to the use of all Property
and development approved pursuant to this Agreement. Development applicationsreceived after
the Vested Term or for different projects shall be subject to review under all then-applicable
development regulations.


9.0 Occupancy of Buildings; Sale of Lots; Uses


9.1 Occupancy and Sale. There shallbe no occupancy or use of the Project components
and no sale or lease of any lots, tracts or parcels created by the BSP until (i) the BSP is recorded
in accordancewith the MCMC and (ii) certi?cates of occupancy have been issued as required by
the MCMC and Section 9.2.


9.2 Certi?cates of Occupancy. In addition to the requirements of the MCMC and the
enforcement provisions set forth in Section 16, the City may withhold certi?cates of occupancy
for all or any part of the Project until all building permit requirementsand Project conditions of
approvalhave been met to City's satisfaction. Sale of commercialbuildings or commercialspaces
(e.g. stand~alonepads) will be allowed providedthat not less than 75% of the overall commercial
square footage has ?rst received certi?cates of occupancy. Certi?cates of occupancy for
commercialspaces will be issuable upon completionof the building shell.


9.2.1 Phasing of Commercial Buildings/Spaces. Both the freestanding
commercialbuildings (BuildingsAl-A4, B and C) and the ground ?oor commercialspaces
in the mixed-use buildings (Buildings D, E and F) must be completed and listed for lease
and/or sale prior to the City issuing the ?rst Certificate of Occupancy for a residential living
unit.


9.3 Commercial Uses. Pursuant MCMC 17.19.040(D)(1), residential uses are


prohibitedon the Property unless the residential uses are located above commercial uses. This
requirement is intended to encourage a mix of residential and commercialuses that provide active
pedestrian circulation and economic stability within the East Gateway Urban Village in
compliancewith the City’s Comprehensive Plan.


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 6 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 48 of 153







9.4 No Residential Accessog Uses. Except as otherwise expressly allowed under
Section 9.5: (i) the ground ?oor commercial space may not be used as or for residential use or
units or as an accessory to the Project’s residential uses; (ii) the live-work units shall have a
minimum 12-foot exterior sof?t height and a minimum 14-foot interior ceiling height, and (iii)
access to or use of ground ?oor uses shall not be limited on the basis of residency within the
Project.


9.5 Limitation on Section 9.4. Notwithstandingthe restriction set forth in Section 9.4,
the Parties recognize that there may be some commercial uses that can ful?ll the intent of the
EGUV Regulations while also serving as accessories to the residential aspect of the Project.
Speci?cally, Developer intendsto develop and operate (i) 25 live-work units on the ground ?oor
of Building F (“Live-Work Units”); (ii) a leasing of?ce of up to 1,600 square feet that will serve
residents and potential residents (“Leasing Office”); and (iii) an amenity space of up to 3,600
square feet that will include a beauty parlor, kitchen,?tness center or other amenities for use by
Project residents (“Residential Amenity Space”). The Live-Work Units, Leasing Of?ce and
Residential AmenitySpace may be locatedon the ground ?oor of the Project subject to the terms
and conditions described in Section 9.4.


9.6 Municipal Space Allowance. In exchange for the provisionsof this Agreement the
Developer shall enter into a 50-year lease with the City for a municipal space (“Municipal Space”)
in the Project at no cost to the City. The lease shall be negotiated and executed prior to issuance
of the ?rst certi?cate of occupancy for the Project and contain the following tenns: The Municipal
Space shallbe not less than 500 square feet of ground ?oor commercial space at a Project location
satisfactory to the City. Developer shall build out the initial interior improvementsfor the
Municipal Space in a design, style and manner approved by the City, which shall include but is
not limited to walls, windows, ceiling, ?oors, doors, utilities, electrical, cabling and security, paint
and trim, and interior fixtures. The City shall be responsible for any further tenant improvements.
The Municipal Space shall be used, maintained, and operated by the City for any public purpose
for the duration of this Agreement. Upon completionof the 8-year duration of the Agreement, the
City shall have no restrictions on future status or use of the Municipal Space and may use, assign,
lease, transfer or sell the MunicipalSpace to any person or for any purpose at the City’s sole
discretion. The City shall pay utilities for Municipal Space but shall not pay common area


expenses.


10.0 Transportation and Traffic Reguirements


10.1 City and County Traf?c System Impact Mitigation Requirements. Traf?c impacts
and mitigation fees will be analyzed, and detennined by the City through the City’s SEPA and
development review process and in accordance with the Engineering Study per Section 8.2.


10.2 Construction of 132"“Street SE Improvements. Developer shall construct or pay
to construct all 132"“Street S.E. frontage and related access point improvements required by the
Washington State Department of Transportationand the Engineering Study per Section 8.2. The
design, construction,and operationof the improvementsare subject to the review and approval of
the Washington State Department of Transportation.


10.3 Dedication of Road Ri t-of-Wa . In accordance with MCMC 16.14, Developer
shall dedicate or cause to be dedicated to the City the full width of the public Right-of-Way for


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 7 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 49 of 153







39”‘Avenue SE and 133'“Street SE and the remaining the width of the public Right-of-Way for
415‘Avenue SE. as depicted in Exhibit C as such widths and alignments are contemplated in the
Engineering Study, except to the extent deviations are permitted by Section 8.2. Dedication shall
be completedeither by (i) showing the dedicationon the face of the BSP for the Project; or (ii) by
separate dedicationdeed or easement approvedand accepted by City before the BSP is released
for recording. Developer is solely responsible for negotiating all necessary legal interests from
underlying property owners of the public Right-of-Way in order to accomplish the required
dedication.


10.4 On—SiteRoad Construction. Developer shall design and construct to City
speci?cations the full width of the public roadway improvements on the property dedicated
pursuant to Section 10.3 ("Road Construction"). Road Construction shall comply with all
applicableEGUV Regulations, including but not limited to MCMC 16.16, the current version of
the Mill Creek Design and Construction Standard Plans, Design Guidelines, and the Engineering
Study. Road Construction shall include (i) the full width of the street and sidewalkcross section;
(ii) on—streetparking as approvedby City; (iii) street and pedestrian lighting; (iv) storm water and
drainage facilities; (V)street trees (grates and lightingconduit), landscaping and street ?nnishings;
and (vi) signage and striping.


11.0 Critical Areas Mitigation Plan


11.1 Mitigation Plan. Developer is proposing a critical areas mitigation plan
(“MitigationPlan”) that provides localandregional bene?ts in exchange for a reduced critical area
buffer on the Project site. The Mitigation Plan encompasses two sites, one on-site and one off-
site.


11.2 Off-Site Mitigation Site. Developer will comply with MCMC 18.06 requirements
via a combinationof actions, including (i) preservationand dedication of approximately61 acres
of undeveloped land to the City (“Off-Site Mitigation Site”); (ii) enhancement and extension of
an integrated trail system of more than a mile in length comprised of gravel paths, boardwalks,
and elevated pathways within and providing access to the Off-Site Mitigation Site; (iii) inclusion
of enviromnentaleducationsignageand kiosks on the Off-Site Mitigation Site; (iv) a combination
of habitat and vegetation enhancement and restoration;and (V)parkingarea, and informationkiosk
to allow for public recreationaland educationalopportunities.


11.2.1 Off-Site Mitigation Site Concept. The foundationof the Mitigation Plan
for the Off-Site Mitigation Site is the Developer’s acquisition, restoration, enhancement,
and donation of approximately61 acres of undeveloped land located to the south of the
Project site to the City. See “Off-Site Mitigation Site” map attached and incorporatedas
Exhibit E. The Off-Site Mitigation Site consists of both wetlands and uplands. A clear
value is associated with the land acquisition and donation of the Mitigation Site that
establishes the regional bene?t to the City in terms of the value of the habitat and value of
the land. The dedication of a the Off-SiteMitigation Site to the City will provideadditional
open space, providing more trails for local residents, additional areas of land for
stonnwater/?oodwater management, and the protection, restoration, and enhancement of a


high-quality wetland that currently has been degraded by past land use practices. Large
open space areas are generally lacking in this area due to the required in?ll and encouraged
high-densitydevelopment based on the local comprehensiveplan. This land preservation,


PL2018~0004Development Agreement -- Page 8 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 50 of 153







enhancement,and dedication stemming from the Off-Site Mitigation Site will help ?ll a
need for passive recreational areas for the community.


11.2.2 Maintenance Restoration and Enhancement. Developer will maintain,
restore and enhance the Off-Site Mitigation Site as required under the MCMC 18.06 and
as described in the Mitigation Plan.


11.2.3 Transfer of Title to City. At any time during developmentapproval for the
Project and up to 5 years following issuance of all Project Approvals,the City may elect to
take fee simple ownership of the Off-Site Mitigation Site by giving written notice
(“Notice”) to Developer. In that event, Developer shall promptly complete all remaining
maintenance on the Off-Site Mitigation Site, and shall repair or replace all amenities on
the Off-Site Mitigation Site to City’s satisfaction per the ?nal wetland mitigation plan.
Developer shall provide a title commitment for the Site acceptableto City within 30 days
of the City’s Notice and shall remove all ?nancial encumbrances on the Site prior to title
transfer. Developer shall transfer title to City by statutory warranty deed within 60 days
of the City’s Notice. On the effective date of title transfer Developer will be relieved of all
further obligations relating to the Off-Site Mitigation Site. Should the City elect to reject
dedication of the Off-Site Mitigation Site, the area shall be maintained and owned by the
Developer consistent with MCMC 18.06.


11.2.4 Public Access. Public access to and within the Off-Site Mitigation Site
within designated parking areas and/or trails shall be permittedduring the initial 5 years
following issuance of all Project Approvals. Should the City elect to reject dedication of
the Off-Site Mitigation Site, the Developer may elect to not provideaccess to the public.
While under the ownership of the Developer, the Developer may reasonably control/limit
the hours that the public has access to and within the site, akin to settinghours of operation
to providesecurity to the public and the property.


11.3 On-Site Mitigation Site. Developer will comply with MCMC 18.06 requirements
via a combination of habitat and vegetationenhancement and restoration, Exhibit F.


11.4 Native Growth Protection Area. Under the proposed BSP, approximately 12.6
acres of the approximate17.43 acre Project site will be developed. The remaining approximate5
acres will be retained as a Native Growth ProtectionArea withinTract 999, Exhibit F.


11.5 CriticalAreas Buffer Reduction. In exchange for the Developer’s actions described
in this Section 11, critical areas buffer requirements will be allowed to vary from 2 feet to 108 feet
with an average width of 54 feet.


12.0 Parking Reguirements


12.1 Parking Standards. Parking shall be provided consistent with the requirements of
MCMC 17.27.


12.2 Reciprocal Parking Covenant for Commercial Space Parking Stalls. The unified
and mixed-use nature of the EGUV is designed to encourage pedestrian activity and discourage
internal vehicle trips. Developer shall grant a reciprocal parking covenant approved by City for
commercially designated surface parking stalls in the Project to the other commercially developed


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 9 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 51 of 153







propertieswithin the EGUV that provide an equivalent reciprocalparking agreement. The parking
covenant shall be shown on the face of the BSP.


12.3 Use of Commercial Parking Facilities. Developer will actively manage the use of
approved parking in the Project to ensure that stalls required to be available for commercial uses
will not be used by residents,guests, and staff of the Project’s residential units during operating
hours of the Project’s commercial businesses. The City is requiring a parking management plan
as a condition of approval for the BSP to provide an enforceablemethod of requiring residents,
their guests and employees to park only in areas dedicated to serving the residential portion of the
Project. Use of parking stalls dedicated to support commercialuses shall be managed to ensure
the spaces directly adjacent to commercialuses will be available for customers and not used by
staff and/or owners of the commercial businesses. Developer will update the parking management
plan as necessary or requestedby City to ensure parking stalls reserved for customers, invitees and
guests of commercialground ?oor tenants remain available to such users during normal business
hours.


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 10 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 52 of 153







13.0 Plazas, Public Gathering Areas, Art Work, and Public Access


13.1 Reguired. Plazas and public gathering places shall be provided along 39"‘Avenue
SE and 133"’Street SE of the Project as shown on the BSP pursuant to MCMC 17.19 and the
Design Guidelines. Plazas shall incorporate informal public seating areas, sidewalks, and other
public spaces on the Property consistent with the EGUV Illustrative Plan, Design Guidelines,
Comprehensive Plan, and as agreed through approval of the MDP. Plazas and public gathering
spaces are subject to review and approval of the Design Review Board prior to the issuanceof a
building permit. The private parking lot west of Building F shall be designated and designed to
be utilized as public gathering areasfor families, markets, festivals, concerts, and the like.


13.2 Plazasand Public GatheringAreas,’Infrastructure and Furnishings. Developer shall
design, obtain and install infrastructure and furnishings in plazas and other gathering areas in
accordance with the Design Guidelines and MCMC 17.34. Plaza design and furnishings are
subject to review and approval of the Design Review Board. Maintenance and replacement of
infrastructure and ?unishings shall be the responsibility of Developer. This may include, but is
not limited to, public access to commercialrestrooms, water fountains, ?ush curbs to allow for
vehicularaccess, electrical conduits for vendors, providing seating, extra trash cans, and festival
lighting.


13. 3 Public Access. Developer shall grant a public access easement to City allowing
public access to, over and across the roadway buffer, perimeter trail, and Wetland Park as well as
through the private drive aisles and sidewalks to enable public access from the public roadways to


the perimeter trail as shown on the approved BSP. All public access easements, locations, and
types shall be describedand shown on the face of the BSP.


14.0 Maintenance Responsibilities


14.1 Developer Responsibilities. In addition to any other requirement stated in this
Agreement, Developer shall be responsible for the following ongoing maintenance obligations,
which shall be timely performed at Developer’s expense: (i) oversee and coordinate the use and
maintenance of, and activities and events held on, privately—ownedopen spaces within the subject
properties (ii) maintain improvements in the public rights—of-wayin accordance with MCMC
12.06 and 17.24, including public right-of-way areas between the street curbs and property lines,
includingbut not limited to sidewalks,plazas and open spaces, canopies,all landscapingincluding
tree grates, trash cans including daily servicing, and benches and all outdoor furniture; (iii)
maintain the Property; and (iv) maintain all drainage facilities on the Property outside the public
rights-of-way.


14.2 Multiple Owners. To the extent there are multiple owners of the Property (e.g.,
commercial units operated under separate ownership from residential uses and owners of
multifamily residential buildings), said multiple owners shall manage and maintain the common
areas and shall remain jointly and severalty responsible to the City for compliance with Section
14.1. This Section 14.2 shall not apply to the City.


14.3 City Responsibilities. City shall be responsible for the following ongoing
maintenance obligations within the publicly-ownedrights-of-way except as noted in Section 14.1:
streets, pavement, curbs, gutters, structural sidewalk repairs, lighting, on-street parkingand meters,
raised crosswalks, street signage, charmelization,and drainage facilities, per MCMC 12.06.


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement - Page 11 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 53 of 153







15.0 Transfer of Propegty Notice


15.1 Authorig to Transfer. Developer's right to sell, transfer, assign, mortgage,
hypothecate, convey or take any other similar action regarding the title to or ?nancing for the
Project and Property shall not be infringed by this Agreement, provided any such transfer,
assignment, sale, etc. shall be subject to all the terms, conditions, rights, duties and obligations of
all development approvals pertaining to the Project and Property, speci?cally including without
limitation this Agreement, the MDP, and Project Approvals. Developer and any subsequent
transferor, assignor, etc. shall give actual notice of and copies to the transferee, assignee, etc. of
all development approvals and related documents.


15.2 Obligations of Successors. This Agreement, the MDP, all Project Approvals and
all Developer obligations shall be binding on all subsequent owners, assigns, purchasers, lessees,
lessors, tenants, and transferees of every kind and nature (“Successors”) of the Project and
Property. Any reference to Developer herein shall be construed to apply to any Successor.


15.3 Recording. The City shall promptly record this Agreement and any other Project
documents requested by City in the Snohomish County Recorder’s Of?ce and provideconformed
copies to Developer. The City shall invoice the directrecording costs to the Developeras part of
the BSP application.


16.0 Enforcement Authority; Police Power; Penalties


16.1 Enforcement Authority. City may enforce this Agreement, the BSP, the MDP, the
Project Approvals, and all other related approvalsfor development of the Property, in whole or in
part, in any manner allowed by law and this Agreement. Developer and every future Successor
shall be fully responsible for compliance with and full and complete performance of this
Agreement, the BSP, the MDP, the Project Approvals, and all other related approvals for
development of the Property.


16.2 Police Power. Except to the extent necessary to comply with RCW 36.70B.170 et


seq., the limitations of which shall expire at the end of the Vested Term, nothing in this Agreement
shall limit, waive or release, or be construed to limit, waive or release, City's municipal duties,
responsibilities or enforcement authority of any kind, including its police power authority and its
condemnationauthority, whether arising under the MCMC, state or federal law, Washington
constitution, or any other source of lawful authority.


16.3 Penalties. Without limiting the foregoing sections, the City may take any or all of
the following enforcement actions, in any order and without limitation,and may impose any or all
of the following penalties for failure to comply with this Agreement, against Developer and any
Successors:


16.3.1 Stop action on any pending permits or approvals by Developer or a related
entity.


16.3.2 Stop action on any pending permits or approvals pertaining to the Property
or Project.


16.3.3 Withhold certi?cates of occupancy pursuant to Section 9.


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement-- Page 12 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 54 of 153







16.3.4 Require cash deposits or other security to ensure future performance and
compliance.


16.3.5 Fines and penalties authorizedunder the MCMC.


17.0 Con?icts; Dispute Resolution


17.1 Con?icts. In the event of an internal con?ict between any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement or between this Agreement and any Project Approvals, the most
restrictiveshall apply as determinedby City, unless City and Developeragree otherwise.


17.2 Disputes. In the event of a dispute between the Parties about the application or
interpretation of this Agreement, principals for City and Developer shall promptly meet and
attempt to resolve the issue. If that is not successful, the Parties shall promptly apply for and
schedule a mediation using JAMS-,WAMS, JDR or a similar mediation service. Each Party shall
pay its own costs and expenses and one-half the mediator's cost. If that is not successful,Developer
shall request an of?cial interpretation from the Director of Community and Economic
Development pursuant to MCMC 14.09.010(A)(7) or (8). Developer may appeal said
interpretationas provided in the MCMC.


18.0 Modification; Termination


18.1 Modi?cation. This Agreement may be modi?ed only upon mutual consent of the
Mill Creek City Council and Developer. Either Party may seek a modi?cation by giving written
notice thereof to the other Party. No Party is obligated to agree to any modi?cation of this
Agreement. Modi?cation may require compliancewith the public notice and hearing requirements
of RCW 36.70B.200 et seq. or other applicablelaws then in effect.


18.2 Termination. This Agreement may not be terminatedexcept upon mutual consent
of the Mill Creek City Council and Developer or order of a court having competent jurisdiction.


18.3 Continuation. After the Vested Term, this Agreement shall continue in whole as


an applicable development regulation for the Property, provided that City may change, and
Developer may request changes in, all or any portion of the Agreement or land use characteristics
of the Property or Project in accordance with then-applicable rules for making such changes.


19.0 Authority to Approve Agreement


19.1 By executing this Agreement, each Party represents and warrants that it has taken
all necessary steps under its corporate authority and/or applicablecity or state law to authorize
such act, and that its execution ofthis Agreement is knowing, voluntary, made upon consultation
with legal counsel, and is valid and binding for all purposes.


19.2 In the case of City, the Mill Creek City Council has found that this Agreement is in
the public interest and furthers the public health, safety and welfare, all as set forth in Council
Ordinance 2015-798.


20.0 General Terms


20.1 Integration. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties
as to the subject matter herein. No prior oral or written agreements respecting same shall be valid,
and any such agreements shall be consideredto be merged and subsumed herein.


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement - Page 13 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 55 of 153







20.2
.


Developer acknowledges and agrees that construction and
dedicationof the public right-of-way, public pedestrian easement dedications, creationof public
open space areas (together with furnishings and infrastructure), and other Developer actions listed
in this Agreement shall: (i) constitute law?il and appropriatededicationsand/or uses of land under
MCMC Titles 14 — 18 and applicablestate law, speci?cally including but not limited to MCMC
18.04.220(B), MCMC 18.04.220(D), RCW 43.21C, RCW 58.17, and RCW 36.70B; (ii) meet
and/or satisfy the requirements,obligationsand scope of actions set forth in said laws, and/or have
been made by the voluntary act of Developer for its bene?t and to enhance the success of the
Project; and (iii) are binding on Developer.


20.3 Venue. Venue for all disputesarisingunder or connectedwith this Agreement and
Project Approvals shall be in the Superior Court for SnohomishCounty. This Agreement and the
Project Approvalsshall be governed and interpreted in accordance with Washington law.


20.4 Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be , 2019
("Effective Date").


20.5 Covenant Rurming with Land. From and after the Effective Date, this Agreement
shall be a covenant running with the Property and/or an equitable servitude on the Property, and
shall be binding on the Parties, their Successors, their assigns, and on all subsequent owners,
purchasers, assigns, lessees or lessors, tenants, transferees, and transferors of every nature as set


forth herein.


20.6 Authority. The Parties each represent and warrant that they have full power and
actual authority to enter into this Agreement and carry out all actions required of them by this
Agreement. All persons executing this Agreement in their representativecapacities represent and
warrant that they have full power and authority to bind their respective organizations.


20.7 Responsibility.Developer is responsiblefor compliancewith this Agreement. Any


act or omission requiredof or permittedby Developer hereunder may be taken by Developer's
authorized agents, contractors or employees, but Developer shall not thereby be relieved of its
responsibilityor liability to City under this Agreement.


20.8 Attorneys Fees. In any action arising under or related to this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing Party shall be entitled to be paid its reasonable attomey’s fees, expenses


and costs by the non-prevailing Party, whether in arbitration, at trial, on appeal, bankruptcy
proceeding,or other legal action.


20.9 Third Parties. This Agreement is entered into for the sole bene?t of the Parties.
There are no third party bene?ciariesto this Agreement.


20.10 Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or portion of this Agreement is
declared unlawful or unconstitutionalfor any reason, the Parties intend that the remainder of this
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.


21.0 Exhibits


21.1 The following exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Agreement by this
reference as though fully set forth herein:


Exhibit A: Property Legal Descriptions (Section 4)


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 14 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 56 of 153







Exhibit B: Tax Parcel Map (Section 4)
Exhibit C: ConceptualMap of Binding Site Plan (PL2018-0004) (Section 5)
Exhibit D: EGUV Engineering Study (Section 8.2)
Exhibit E: Off-Site Mitigation Site (Section 11.4)
Exhibit F: On-Site Mitigation Site


WHEREFORE, the Partieshave signed and executed this Agreement on the dates set forth
below.


[signatures next page]


City of Mill Creek: Eastgate by Vintage LP:


By: By:
Robert S. Stowe, Ryan Patterson,
InterimCity Manager Owner


ATTEST:


By:
Gina P?ster,
Acting City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM:


By: By:
Scott M. Missall,
City Attorney Attorney for


Eastgate by Vintage LP


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 15 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 57 of 153







STATE OF WASHINGTON )
) ss:


COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH )


I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Robert S. Stowe is the person
who appeared before me, and he acknowledgedthat she signed this instrument, on oath stated
that he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the City Manager, of
City of Mill Creek, to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes
mentionedin this instrument.


DATED: , 2019.


Print Name:
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the state of
Washington, residing at:


My Appointment Expires:


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 16 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 58 of 153







STATE OF )
) ss:


COUNTY OF )


I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidencethat Ryan Patterson the person who
appeared before me, and s/he acknowledged that s/he signed this instrument, on oath stated that
s/he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as
the , of Eastgate by Vintage, LP to be the free and voluntary act of such
party for the uses and purposes mentioned in this instrument.


DATED: , 2019.


Print Name:
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the state of
Washington, residing at:


My AppointmentExpires:


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 17 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 59 of 153







EXHIBITA


Legal DescriptionofPropegtg A


Section 33 Township 28 Range 05 QuarterNW - PAR 2 OF SNO CO BLA 00-101711 REC
UND AFN 200007140347 DAF - NW1/4 NE1/4 NW1/4 SD SEC 33


EXC STRIP 20FT WIDE ON S SIDE C/L COM NW COR SD SEC 33 RUN THS89*50 40E
l997.80FT AS CONVYD TO SNO CO FOR RD BY DEED REC UND AFN 219641;


EXC TH PTNS THOF CONVYD TO SNO CO FOR.RD BY INST REC UND AFN
8310200114;


EXC W 0.22FT THOF & EXC ADDL NWLY R/W TO CITY OFMILL CR PER SWD REC
UND AFN 201004190475.


Parcel A Identi?cationNumber: 28053300200200


Legal Description of Progem B


Section 33 Township 28 Range 05 QuarterNW - PAR 1 OF SNO CO BLA 00-101711 REC
UND AFN 200007140347 DAF — N1/2 NW1/4 NW1/4 SD SEC 33 & W 0.22FT W1/2 NW1/4
NE1/4 NW1/4 SD SEC 33;


EXC STRIP 20FT WIDEON S SIDE C/L COM NW COR SD SEC 33 RUN TH S89*5O40E
l997.80FT AS CONVYD TO SNO CO FOR RD BY DEED REC UND AFN 219641;


EXC TH PTNS THOF CONVYD TO SNO CO FOR RD BY INST REC UND AF NOS
8310200114&9201230590EXC TH PTN CONDMD FOR RD IN SNO CO SCC NO 98-2-
08976-6;


EXC ADDL NELY R/W TO CITY OF MILL CR PER SWD REC UND AFN 201004190474.


Parcel B Identi?cationNumber : 28053300200300


Legal Description of Propem C


Section 33 Township 28 Range 5 QuarterNW A PTN OF FOL DESC REAL PRTY SW1/4
NW1/4 SD SEC 33 TGW BEG AT SW COR NW1/4 SD SEC 33 TH N 132OFTTO TPB TH E
99OFTTH N330FT TH W 99OFTTH S 330FT TO TPB


EXC ANY PTN THOF LY WHN THOMAS LK RD & EXC ANY PTN THOF CONVYD TO


SNO CO BY DEEDS REC AFN 1730042 & 200012280181 40FT WIDE STRIP TH PTN SD


REAL PRTY DAF COM AT NW COR SD REAL PRTY TH S88*19 22E(DEED EAST) ALG


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 18 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 60 of 153







N LN THOF 279.23FT TH S04*16 23E 43.17FT TH S02*59 48E 48.94FT TH S03*17 04E
65.87FT TH S01*29 54E 62.61FT TH S00*54 20E 65.21FT TH S01*40 38W 25FT TAP TH IS
20FT NLY OF WHEN MEAS ATR/A TO N LN SW1/4 NW1/4 SD SEC 33 TH N88*19 22W
49.11FT ALG A LN TH IS PLW & 20FT NLY OF SD N LN TO POB TH N01*23 38E 20FT
TH N88*19 22W 40FT TH S01*23 38W 390.26FTTH N88*19 22W 202.21FT M/L TO E
MGN35TH AVE SE TH S00*3845W ALG SD E MGN 40.01FT TH S88*19 22E 241.69FT
TAP TH BEARS S01*23 38W FR POB TH N01*23 38E 410.26FT M/L TO POB AKA 40FT
WIDE STRIP OF CITY OF MILL CR SP 11-12REC AFN201206075002


Legal Descrigtion of Propegtx D


Section 33 Township 28 Range 5 QuarterNW A PTN OF FOL DESC REAL PRTY SW1/4
NW1/4 SD SEC 33 TGW BEG SW COR NW1/4 SD SEC 33 TH N1320FT TO TPB TH E
990FT TH N 330FT TH W 990FT TH S 330FT TO TPB


EXC ANY PTN LY WHN THOMAS LK RD & EXC ANY PTN THOF CONVYD TO SNO
CO BY DEEDS REC AFN 1730042 & 200012280181 DAF ALL OF SD REAL PRTY


EXC FOL 3 PAR PAR 1 TH PTN SD RALPRTY LY NLY & WLY OF FDL BEG ATNW
COR SD REAL PRTY TH S88*19 22E (DEED EAST) ALG N LN THOF 279.23FT TO POB
TH S04*1623E 43.17FT TH S02*59 48E 48.94FT TH S03*17 04E 65.87FT TH S01*29 54E
62.61FT TH S00*54 20E 65.21FT TH S01*4038W25FT TAP THAT IS 20FT NLY OF WHEN
MEASE AT R/A TO N LN SW1/4NW1/4 SD SEC 33 TH N88*19 22W 49.11FT ALG A LN
THAT IS PLW & 20FT NLY OF SD N LN TH N01*23 38E 20FT TH N88*19 22W 40FT TH
S01*23 38W390.26FT TH N88*19 22W 202.21FT M/L TO B MGN 35TH AVE SE & TERM
OF THIS LN DESC PAR 2 COM AT NW COR SD REAL PRTY TH S88*19 22E (DEED
EAST) ALG N LN SD PAR 549.23FT TO POB TH CONT S88*19 22E (DEEDEAST) ALG
SD N LN 320.25FT TH S01*40 38W 310FT TAP THAT IS 20FT NLY OF WHEN MEAS AT
R/A TO N LN OF SW1/4 NW1/4 SD SEC 33 TH N88*19 22W 299.67FT ALG A LN THAT IS
PLW & 20FT NLY OF SD N LN TH N01*4038E 25FT TAP THAT BEARS S02*27 15E FR
POB TH N02*27 15W 285.74FT TO POB PAR 3 TH PTN SD REAL PRTY DAF COM AT
NW COR SD REAL PRTY TH S88*19 22E (DEED EAST) ALG N LN THOF 279.23FT TH
S04*16 23E43.17FT TH S02*59 48E 48.94FT TH S03*17 04E 65.87FT TH S01*29 54E
62.61FT TH S00*54 20E 65.2lFT TH S01*40 38W 25FT TAP THAT IS 20FT NLY OF
WHEN MEAS AT R/A TO N LN SW1/4NW1/4 SD SEC 33 TH N88*19 22W49.11FT ALG A
LN THAT IS PLW & 20FT NLY OF SD N LN TO POB TH N01*23 38E 20FT TH N88*19
22W 40FT TH S01*23 38W 390.26FT TH N88*19 22W 202.21FT M/L TO E MGN 35TH
AVE SE TH S00*38 45W ALG SD E MGN40.01FT TH S88*19 22E 241.69FT TAP THAT
BEARS S01*23 38W FR POB TH N01*23 38E 410.26FT M/L TO POB AKA LOT 3 CITY OF
MILL CR SP 11-12 REC AFN 201206075002


Legal Descrigtion of Progegty E


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 19 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 61 of 153







SEC 33 TWP 28 RGE 05. N1/2 NW1/4 SW1/4


EXC ANY PTN LY WITH THOMAS LAKE RD & EXC RD R/W PER DEED REC AFN
1730042 & ADDL R/W TO SNO CO PER REC AFN 200012280181.


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 20 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 62 of 153







EXHIBIT B


PROJECT $lTE
A- 28053300200200
- 053300200300l52ND$TSE(l—!}/211’'


I5
»


.2:::;;E
K


SITE
'


- 28053300206900
D - 28053300206800
E- 28053300300200


.,
H5151’.


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 21 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 63 of 153







EXHIBIT C


A ma enerall de ictin the ro osed Pro'ect


Eillllll


£ 0 I I n I I v0.o...‘ll5!”:'‘!l}’';'lLIll-K.‘1‘.'_Ini::=;;:;


3015-
1688519


.gglll“:HE33'}!!!2????'= ::


EA N3. 0040 [Til


AIR ..
CIZZXI


1:-n— ._


nun-
V


‘
_-' '


‘ ‘ .
anon ' - -'-'


n


.........|:1;sumnag}’ F5’?luigi!,:2!


F23?‘W;
-mt. \


I'l-
kn.. 4 ‘: J‘ |‘tf"?~'F--'-'v-‘0-


c;«.-‘5-xs-.n»; Puxcs
‘


''t''''' . \
"e'$“o""1’~|5 [3 3|3 1515[S [


'


-
;=-4 zcvawsascea cg.-_,_-:3


-:6-v
wanna


=3-".'»1‘
nas1>‘:=_Lo


A.=:c3c:v5~:s<\ 5:5!-


.|?.c.uo:1-no}-uv-]aoonuua.-1-any-o'§*%I:=:":2:1: *3: HVNT%THEFARMATMILLCREEKmasarnuuwunvauu--acnou?uaanaotoan in on -0-“:


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 22 of 25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 64 of 153







EXHIBIT D


EGUV Engineering Study


The document is available for review on the City’s web site at:


http://citvofmillcreek.com/DocumentCenter/View/77


If you need a hard copy, please Contact the City Clerk.


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 23 M25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 65 of 153







EXHIBIT E


A mag_depicting the Off-Site Mitigation Site


nau».Fvnv.nv»IoO.:hMIuuz)Lho<
* 2,1.


F,
"N u use.


'


:4»-vuat


PL2018-0004 Development Agreement -— Page 24 of 25


----~- ~ u»A:ErruAL urns»; AREAS MmaA1'IaN PLANmuurlan ovum/Izu run - Hmomaw aw:ma nw-MMLL cums uoanlmrar.I


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 66 of 153







EXHIBIT F


map deQ'ctng the On-S te M t gat on S e


NHISN OF§ECY.S5,TW6rP.2DMFNBE.5E.HM‘


uo 0 o o o o o o 9
’o‘c'o‘o"¢‘¢’o‘o‘..e .0 4 c..


'3':2'3’?-2°2'1°3~2°I°3-2"~,.,....ue.. -


MSTHer 5: .
an-um«:—?


‘ EX.IEDENTVN.


T


6RN:=IoN.£ rum


1-;-;—*@
eua.:~..:


MI I
—"—""“'"'“' anxsnmaum
V:-_‘.._4.._1vw-mu-v §g§ggg.......am.........u.....- ..,...;.. m.


_ _ _‘_.....,........m......,....
ma-vs-wtvm) -b¢ILAlnnNBiBlWbDB4l' nmae cunt,


_,..,..¢.....m...w.a.m.
__3 nvmamw mm M “H W‘


?__a;.........o.....m..m..»....,
we


0 "‘”'*"'U‘ YGTM. 0N61T'E H‘r|sA'r1au. Isepnasr st-L


_.—__uavk2tuxAInumx nmuumm


0 ¢lIl¢M.AI:AuakI£I:llM.).s~zn|:


—1_.......m.=.... uuaumusvnow


I new


-MMLn~7mnumuamwuum.u/Mmauxaamxmuluwnv
a-new Asouncvnnlxr-Irv Lcu1|pvournaI~uAlmn«Aa~! vraIAln<
mmnusnmmounamuapcwammnnurluanlmwu
mama-s


PL20l8-0004 Development Agreement -- Page 25 of25


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 67 of 153







m
om


m
a


xw
m


m
m


ahyw
unw


a
IS


L
E


H
?


u!!l..n
m


i
9:


ii:


m
u<


z<
o oz_xz<


m


w
m


m
ztu


\ m
o?uo.


m
w


z:o._


m
>


oa<
4<


:2w
a_m


m
x


E
.


42.51
m


m
adm


xi


._m
>


m
._w


zo..-S
m


:


N
._.Z


m
_>


=
._0<


._.._.<


w
u<


5am
.m


.n
S


v;_m
.E


E
m


n


o.n.v<
.n<


.n<
..<


iB
.E


o..m
.


E
..u.w


:azn.._>
n


E
2:


...zw
<


F
K


<
n<


§._zm
n_m


w
..


E
a


m
m


$5.5
..<


»o._.


izzw
n?ux


E
05


v
.u.m cam


s.
u


uz_n:_:m


m
.m


8.}
m


oz_o.__=
n


m
m


N
85


452.
m


a
3...”


I
m


z_n.__:m


m
a


S
ea.


a
oz_...:5m


.u.mS
an


...<
w


z.3_:n


.n_.mw
anna


m
oz_n._5m


.m
.m use


n<
uz_o.=


_.i


.m
m E


;
n


uz_n.:5m
.W


m
83:


.<
uzE


._=
.m


.w
>


m
._


m
zo$_<


.?¢


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #E.


The Farm
 D


evelopm
ent Agreem


ent (C
hristi Am


rine, Senior Planner)
Page 68 of 153







Integra Realty Resources
Seattle


Fiscal Impact Analysis


Eastgate Village at Mill Creek
Mixed Use Property
3830-4008 132nd Street SE
MillCreek, Snohomlsh County, Washlngton 98012


Prepared For:
Vintage Housing Development LLC


Effective Date of the Analysis:
December 3, 2016


IRR- Seattle
FlleNumber: 154-2016-0432


Attachment 3


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 69 of 153







(+HTlT|lllI|lIIlTllI


llllllllll. lliil?lll Wil?llil ' 3’


_ _ _ _ _
-V


I


EASTGATEVILLAGEAT MILLCREEK
Millcreek.Washlnglon


CONSULTANTS.
TALASAEA °“W5!?F""E ‘


——— 1-1+-:.@INC
1...:-u mane:


Eastgate Village at Mill Creek
3830-4008 132nd Street SE


MillCreek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 70 of 153







IN‘;


T 206.903.6700
F 206.623.5731
www.irr.com


Integra Realty Resources 600 University Street
Seattle Suite 310


Seattle. WA 98101


December 22, 2016


Ryan Patterson
Vintage Housing Development LLC


369 San Miguel Drive, Ste. 135


Newport Beach, CA92660


SUBJECT: Fiscal Impact Analysis
Eastgate Village at MillCreek
3830-4008 132nd Street SE


MillCreek,Snohomish County, Washington 98012


lRR— Seattle FileNo. 154-2016-0482


Dear Mr. Patterson:


Integra Realty Resources — Seattle is pleased to submit the accompanying fiscalimpact study


ofthe referenced property. The client for the assignment is Vintage Housing Development
LLC,and the intended use is as a supporting document to present to the MillCreek City


Council as part of regulatory approvals.


The subject site area is 17.34 acres or 755,330 square feet, however, approximately 5.4


acres at the western end of the site is undevelopable for construction because it has
wetlands, and willbe used for a nature park with elevated walkways and gazebos. The
property is located on the south side ofthe intersection of 132nd Street SE and 39th Avenue
SE in the EastGateway Urban Village area of MillCreek.


The subject as proposed will be a mixed—usedevelopment planned for 74,665 square feet of
retail space and 350 deluxe apartment units. Construction is planned to begin in late 2017


and conclude in 2019 with a total development cost estimated at $99.7 million.


This fiscal impact analysis presents the following:


1) Evaluates the potential sales tax revenue generated by the proposed development
ofthe subject


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 71 of 153







Ryan Patterson
Vintage Housing Development LLC
December 22, 2016
Page 2


2) Estimates projected property tax revenues to the City of MillCreeksubsequent to


development (over and above existing property tax revenues)


3) Estimates the city's share of one—timesales tax revenues on construction costs


Based on the analysis contained herein and subject to the definitions, assumptions, and
limiting conditions expressed in the report, our estimate of revenues is as follows:


Summary of Economic Benefits (Mlxed-Use NewPlan)
Premise Frequency Amount


Mill Creek's portion of sales tax revenue projection Annual $191,907


MillCreek's portion of stabilized property tax increase Annual $199,114
Yearly Revenue to the City $391,021


MillCreek's portion of sales tax on construction costs One«time $552,500


This consulting study is intendedto conform with the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice (USPAP),the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice ofthe Appraisal Institute and applicable state appraisal regulations.


Ifyou have any questions or comments, please contact the undersigned. Thank you forthe
opportunity to be ofservice.


Respectfully submitted,


lntegra Realty Resources — Seattle


don/go g,,,;/é:/axe
Allen Safer, MAI,MRICS Gregow Bucklin,MAI
Certified General RealEstate Appraiser Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
Washington Certificate it 1100662 Washington Certificate if 1101619
Telephone: (206) 436-1190 Telephone: (206)436-1183


Email:asafer@irr.com Email: gbuck|in@irr.com


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 72 of 153







Table of Contents


Assignment lnfonnation
EffectiveDate
Client, intended Use and User
ApplicableRequirements-
Prior Services
Scope of Work
Methodology
inspection


Property Information
Identi?cationof Subject
LandArea
Ownership andSale History
AerialPhoto
Site Plan
Shape, Dimensions and Current Use
Access and Visibility
Zoning


EastgateVillageat MillCreek


®®\lO\U'l-D-P-5-bt?ls-ll\Ji0l\Ji~Ji~Jl\3


RealEstate Taxes 9
Planned Improvements 10
Projected CityRevenues from Development 12
Summary of Economic Benefits 16


Certi?cation . 17


Assumptions and Limiting Conditions 19


Addenda
A. Appraiser Qualifications


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 73 of 153







Assignment Information
V


_
2


Assignment Information


Effective Date


The date of the report is December22, 2016. The effective date of the analysis is December3, 2016,


the actual date of our on-site»inspection. °


Client, Intended Use and User


Theclientand intended user is Vintage Housing Development LLC.The intended use of this study is as


a supporting document to present to the MillCreekCityCouncilas part of regulatory approvals.


Applicable Requirements
This analysis is intended to conform to the requirements of the following:


0 UniformStandards of ProfessionalAppraisalPractice (USPAP);


0 Codeof ProfessionalEthicsand Standardsof ProfessionalAppraisalPractice of the Appraisal
Institute;


0 Applicablestate appraisalregulations.


Prior Services


We have not performed any services, as an appraiseror inanyother capacity, regarding the property


that is the subject of this report withinthe three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of


thisassignment.


Scope of Work


Thisanalysisdoes the following:


1) Evaluates the potentialsales taxrevenue generated by the proposed development of the


subject


2) Estimates projected property tax revenues to the City of MillCreek subsequent to


development (over and above existing property tax revenues)


3) Estimates the City's share of one-time sales tax revenues on construction costs


To determine the appropriate scope of workfor the assignment, we consideredthe intended use of


the appraisal,the needs of the user, the complexityof the property, and other pertinent factors. Our


concludedscope of work is describedbelow.


Methodology
1) Project the taxable retailsales potentialand estimate the Citysales tax potential based on the


City's tax rate on retail sales.


Eastgate Village at MillCreek


1 % .2~:.— ‘ -A 2::-_-um-.-a-_


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 74 of 153







revenue, over and above the existing property taxes currently in-place.


3) Estimate the one-time sales tax that would be paid on the construction of the project.


Inspection ,


BothAllenSafer, MAI,MRICS,and Gregory Bucklin,MAI,conducted an on-site inspection of the
property.


_ Eastgate Villageat MillCreek
@


Assignment Information 3


2) Estimate the potential assessedvalue as a basisfor projecting the increase in City property tax


I


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 75 of 153







Property Information 4


Property information


Identi?cation of Subject


The subject site area is 17.34 acres or 755,330 square feet, however, approximately 5.4 acres at the
western end of the site is undevelopablefor construction because it has wetlands, and willbe used for
a nature park with elevated walkways and gazebos. The property is located on the south side of the
intersection of 132ndStreet SE and 39th Avenue SE inthe East Gateway Urban Village area of Mill
Creek.


Thesubject as proposed willbea mixed-usedevelopment planned for 74,665 square feet of retail
space and 350 deluxeapartment units. Construction is planned to begin in late 2017 and concludein
2019 with a total development cost estimated at $99.7 million.


Property ldentlfi tion
Property Name Eastgate Village at MillCreek
Address . 3830-4008 132nd Street SE


’ MillCreek,Washington 98012


Tax ID 28053300200300 and 28053300200200
Owner of Record Penny Creek Partners LLC


LandArea


The property consists of two contiguous tax parcels with a total area of 17.34 acres per the Snohomish
County Assessor'soffice. Anestimated 5.39 acres at the west end of the property cannot be built on


and willbe used for a nature park. The following table summarizes the subject's land area.


LandArea Summary


Tax ID SF Usable SF Acres UsableAcres


28053300200300 352,400 117,455 8.09 2.70


28053300200200 402,930 402,930 9.25 9.25


Total 755,330 520,385 1734 11.95


Source: Snohomish County Assessor


Ownership and Sale History


The subject property has been under controland ownership by Penny Creek Partners LLCsince 1994;


the property was previously planned for a Walmart store, and later a 114,000-square-foot, grocery-


anchoredshopping center. In 2010 two smallpieces of the subject totaling 1,831 square feet were


acquired by the Cityof MillCreek to installthe signalized intersection at 132"‘Street SE and 39"‘
Avenue SE.To the best of our knowledge, no sale or transfer of ownership has taken place within a
three-year period prior to the effective date of this analysis.


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek
@


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 76 of 153







Property Information 5


Aerial Photo
The property is located on the south side of the signalized intersection of 132"‘Street SE (State Route
96) and 39"‘Avenue SE. The subject is west end ofthe East Gateway Urban Village area in the
northeast corner ofthe city of MillCreek.


“6-TREE%K
\X. . _


\\


Eastgate Village at MillCreek


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 77 of 153







Property Information 6


Site Plan


|32ND STREET S.E. (SR. 96)
\v


r__J||H||H|l|l|l||||Illllllllllll
5"‘! F:$r«;


rm?.


l.L|JJl|JI?llll


EASTGATEVILLAGEAT MILLCREEK
MillCreek.Washlnglon


TALASAEA
CONSULTANTS. mc.


nu-4-:


Eastgate Village at MillCreek


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 78 of 153







Property Information 7


Shape, Dimensions and Current Use


The subject site is rectangular with approximately 1,230 linealfeet of frontage along 132"‘Street SE
(State Route 96) and a depth of about 615 feet. The site is generally level and at street grade, with
some upward sloping from west to east. There is a vacant house at the east end of the property and
some assorted outbuildings; the remainder of the site is cleared with low ground cover.


Area Map
l , I’l|JIl'|'§‘( bt


,
‘


‘


~38th Dr SE


@ 116th St se


29theAveSE35 3"V‘l«l1SE


122nd PI SE


12jothSt SE


1 H
‘l 1


' l 129th PI 55 ‘


35th Ave*SE:~42nd Dr SE
'


35 J0 P197


*4; 4
‘ ‘;\—_,,e__.1a2ndg.st.sE..- ...N. T


N
to
r9


3'!
:2
m


U‘
m


- .'-o;‘l‘_62nd..St
—:E.9.....


g


‘


HEATHERWOOD
‘


§5th—Ave,SE;;


Eastgate Village at MillCreek


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 79 of 153







Property lnforrnation 8


Access and Visibility


The property has excellentaccess and visibilityfrom 132nd Street SE (State Route 96), a majoreast-


west arterial street thatconnects the neighborhood with 35th Avenue SE,State Route 527 (Bothel|-
Everett Highway)and Interstate 5 to the west (via 128th Street SE)as well as Seattle HillRoadand
State Route 9to the east.


Interstate 5 is approximately 2% road milesto the west of the subject and is accessed by a full
diamond interchange at 128th Street SE. State Route 9 is approximately 3% road miles to the east of
the subject.


At the subject location, 132ndStreet SEhas a turn lane and two travel lanes in each direction with
curbs, gutters and sidewalks on both sides of the street. _The speed limitis 40 miles per hour.


Zoning


The subject is part ofthe proposed East Gateway UrbanVillageand is EGPUV,East Gateway Planned
UrbanVillage by the City of Mill'Creek.The purpose of the planned urban villagezone district is to


implement the planned urban village policiesand East Gateway Urban Villageillustrativedevelopment
plan contained in the MillCreekcomprehensive plan. This district is intended to accommodate
pedestrian-orientedmixed-usecommerclal,office,'residential and public uses that conform to the
design and layout of the approved detailedmaster development plan.


Zoning Summary


Zoning Jurisdiction Cityof MillCreek
Zoning Designation EGUV
Description East Gateway UrbanVillage
LegallyConforming? Appears to be legally conforming
Zoning Change likely? No
Permitted Uses


‘ Retail,office, multifamily, lodging and public


Categog ZoningRegulrement
MaximumBuilding Height Fivestories or 60 feetfor mixed-usestructures; 3 stories/35feet if built adjacent


to SFRsIn LDRzone
ParkingRequirement Apartments Retail


One Bedroom:1.5/unit 1.0 per 250 squarefeet
Two+Bedroom:2.5/unit
25% to be reserved for common use


Source: MillCreekMunicipalCode


Eastgate Village at MillCreek
@


uu~« ; aa—a


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 80 of 153







RealEstateTaxes _ 9


Real Estate Taxes
Realestate taxes and assessments for the current tax year are shown in the following table.


Taxes and Assessments - 2016
Assessed Value Taxes and Assessments


Total AdValorem
Tax ID » Land Improvements Total Tax Rate Taxes Direct Assessments Total
28053300200300 $1,695,800 $0 $1,695,800 1.105584%$18,765 ‘ $5 $18,771
28053300200200


8


$4,172,700 $0; $4,172,700 1.105584% $46,174 $3,589 $49,763


$5,868,500 $0 $5,868,500 $64,940 $3,594 $68,534


Thewestern subject parcel is assessed at a lower value because approximately 2/3of it, or 5.4 acres, is
undevelopable wetlands.


1


The overallProperty Tax rate is‘calculatedat $11.06584per $1,000 assessed value (or 1.106584%). Of
this, the Cityof MillCreek currently collects 52.3837per $1,000 of assessed value (or 0.23837%).The
City's portion of the total 2016 tax amount of $68,534 was $13,989.


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek
,


@


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 81 of 153







Planned Improvements 10


Planned Improvements
Thesubject as proposed willbe a mixed-usedevelopment planned for 74,665 square feet of retail
space and 350 deluxe apartment units. Construction is planned tobegin in late 2017 and conclude in
2019 with a total development cost estimated at $99.7 million.


improvements Description


OverallProperty


. Nameof Property Eastgate Villageat MillCreek


GeneralProperty Type MixedUse Retail Apartment
Numberof Units ,


350 350


Units per UsableAcre (Density) 29.3


Gross BuildingArea (SF) 454,040 74,665 379,375
RentableArea (SF) 378,165 74,665 303,500


Apartments


There are 350 deluxe apartments units planned at the subject, with a unit mix and proposed rental
rates as follows:


'


Apartment Unit Mix


Proforma Rent:
- Average Unit Rented %of Total
UnitTm‘e Size Total Units Vacant leased 1 Units Units RentableSF Average Avg. $/SF
1 Bed1 Bath 668 125 0 ‘ 125 125 36% 83,500 $1,600 52.40
2 Bed2 Bath 900 175 0 175 175 50% 157,500 $1,900 $2.11
3 Bed3 Bath 1,250‘ 50 - 0 50 50 14% 62,500 $2,350 $1.88
TOTAl/AVG. 867 350 O 350 350 1 100% 303,500 $1,857 $2.14


A Rentableto GrossFactor 0.8
Estimated Gross SF 379,375


1. includescrmleyu 8:modelunits, if any.


1. Projected1019 rent: increasing at 3.096/ynrover 2017 rnarkot($1,500 for 1BR1B;$1,800for 23823;$2,200for 35833).


Thetotal rentable square footage of the 350 apartment units willbe 303,500 square feet. We were
not provided with a gross building area so we estimated by dividing the rentable areaby a factor of
80% (0.80), allowingfor 20% ofthe estimated gross buildingarea for hallways, circulation and
amenities. The estimatedgross buildingarea of 379,375 square feet is compared to the property


taxes per gross square foot of comparables later in this report.


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek -


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 82 of 153







Planned Improvements 11 .


Retail
Thesubject's retail space willbe anchoredby a 29,500 square foot grocery store. Given its size, this
store willmost likelybe leased to a specialty grocer such as WholeFoods360 or PCCNatural Markets;
brands that are presently not represented in MillCreek.


Two (2) restaurants totaling 7,200 square feet willbe located at the northwestcorner of the site with
good visibilityfrom 132"“Street SE,and willlikelybe marketed to a casual dining chainssuch as Red
Robin,Olive Garden or Panera Bread.


The remaining 37,965 square feet of retail space willbe spread throughout the development primarily
in strips of shops, plus one additionalpad building at the 39"‘Avenue SEcorner. The retail space is


V broken down as follows:


IRetallSpace Summary I I I I
%of Total


Total Proforma Proforma


Space Type SF Area Rent/SF/Yr Rent


29-500§?.-§19,‘;lr
_ 513-54I.,§5§_§».3Z§l


I
I


§!S’.E°IY-,a
pl


I
_,,,_,a


I
T


§]_,§s5_50.85%Is2§.ooI $949,12sI7,256|”§é71§i “$50.65!”§i1?6‘.5E6
74,§_65I1oo%I_'_$22.93I$1',7_1_g£oooI


..... .._.J_._. , ...,_. .a


Eastgate Village at MillCreek _


@


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 83 of 153







Projected City Revenues from Development 12


Projected City Revenues from Development


Retail SalesTax Estimate


The clientsupplied us with an annual retail salesprojection prepared by HambletonResources, Inc.


dated December6, 2016. Thisstudy estimated taxable retail sales per square foot for the three retail
space types: grocery, restaurant and retail (shop). We compared these estimates to actual market
data from recent appraisals of similarshopping centers in the metro area, and have concludedthat
these projections are reasonable and wellsupported.


The subject developer is projecting $612,000 in annual parking revenue for the multifamily portion of
the property, calculated as 680 parkingspaces with a $75.00 monthly charge. Monthly parking is
subject to sales tax when the specific parking spaces are not assigned, consistent with other
apartment complexes.


The City of MillCreek'sshare of the 9.9%overallsales tax rate is 0.85%. The State's share is 6.5% with
the balance going to regional transit taxes, criminaljustice, public safety, etc. We apply this 0.85% rate


to the retailsalesand parking revenue projections, summarized below:


SalesTax Revenue Project
EstimatedSales/SF Total Taxable MillCreek's MillCreek‘:


RetailT e S uare Feet Gross 96 Taxable Est. Sales SalesTax Rate Pro ectedSalesTax


Grocery 29,500 $900 2896 $252 $7,434,000 0.35% $63,189


Shop 37,965 $250 100% $250 $9,491,250 . 0.85% $80,676


Restaurant 7,200 $700 100% $700 $5,040,000 0.85% $42,840


Retallsubtotal . 74,665 $21,965,250 $136,705
Apartment Parking $612,000 0.85% $5,202


Total: $22,577,250 $191,907


Subject construction is planned to begin in late 2017 and conclude in 2019 and there willmost likely


be upward inflationto the expected revenues over that time whichwould lead to higher sales tax


collection.


Eastgate Village at MillCreek
4 @


zwxn-amz mmm3w-mc=zrwm m-2x=m ww


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 84 of 153







Projected City Revenues from Development 13


Property Tax Increase Estimate


To estimate the property tax increase upon construction and stabilization of the proposedsubject
development we must first estimate the assessedvalues of both the multifamilyand retail
components. To do this we have analyzed comparable properties from the localarea, as follows.


Multifamily Assessed Value Comparables & Projection


Units Avg. SF/Total Assessed Assessed Assessed
No. Property Name Year /Ac SF Units Unit Value Value/SFValue] Unit


1 MillCreek Meadows 2014 27.4 200,690 180 1,115 33,514,000 $166.99 $186,189


2 Reserve at Town Center Ph Ill 2013 28.3 107,586 95 1,132 18,423,000 $171.24 $193,926
3 Tivalli 2014 49.1 426,238 383 1,113 61,491,400 $144.27 $160,552


4 BaileyFarm 2013 18.5 426,238 372 1,074 74,400,000 $174.55 $200,000
Subject Projection 20.2 379,375 350 1,084 $70,000,000 $184.51 $200,000


Four multifamily properties were selected as tax comparables, representing similar recent
developments in and around MillCreek.


Comparable 1 is MillCreek Meadows, the first multifamily property in the East Gateway area,
constructed by PolygonNorthweston part of the Henry's Plant Farm property at the east end of the
area.


Comparable2 is located in MillCreek,just north of the town center.


Comparable 3 is located just west of MillCreekin unincorporated Snohomish County along
Interstate 5.


Comparable 4 is located immediately south of the MillCreek city limits in unincorporated Snohomish
County along the Bothéll-Everett Highway,State Route 527.


The assessed value per unit of these properties range from $160,552 to $200,000, with the lowest
being the high-density Tivalliproperty on the freeway. Given the proposed quality of the subject, size


'


of its units and the amenity of being in a neighborhood shopping center anchored by a specialty
grocer, we conclude to an assessedvalueat the top of the range at $200,000 per unit. This is


equivalent to an overall assessed value of the subject's multifamilycomponent of $70,000,000 in
2016.


Theapartment component is then added to a projection for the proposed grocer and retail
component.


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek


.:n-a==x-=-an-.=.w%~r=u_~.;;u;v.ag.:e-;;_._:»..-:=.an-a... gt=s=_


.
- T__ ___,__,_,


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 85 of 153







Projected City Revenues from Development 14


CommercialAssessed Value Comparables & Projection


No 2016 Total Assessed
Property Name


'


Anchor Year Bldgs. Acres SF AssessedValue Value/SF
1 SilverFirs Safeway 2007 4 8.3 76,530 14,818,000 $193.62
2 ThomasLake Albertsons,RiteAid 1996 7 « 13.9 112,080 19,941,300 $177.92
3 MillCreekTown Center CentralMarket 2005 14 14.1 184,236 48,314,000 $262.24
4 Gateway Center Vacant Safeway 1996 7 10.0 99,283 20,208,000 $203.54
5 MillCreekPlaza Albertsons, RiteAid 1980 10 12.6 134,638 28,639,300 $212.71


Sub ect Pro'ection Grocer and Retail 2019 7 11.95 74 665 19 412 00 260.00


_
We selected five nearby _grocery-anchoredshopping centers for comparison to the subject, with
assessed values ranging from $177.92 per square foot for Thomas Lake(located just west of the
subject) to $262.24per square foot for the MillCreekTown Center. With its proposed specialty
grocer, smaller size, and new construction, the subject commercialportion is estimated near the top


of the range at $260.00per square foot, or $19,400,000(rounded) in 2016 dollars.


The sum of the estimated 2016 assessed values of the proposed multifamily and commercial at the
subjectis $89,400,000. Thisputs the combinedassessed value estimate at around 69% to 75% of the
prospective market value, which is conservative.


TheMillCreek property tax increase estimate is as follows:


2016 Property Tax Increase Estimate Eastgate Village(New Plan)


MillCreek MillCreek


A


Assessed Property Property


Description Value Tax Rate Tax


Current
_


$5,868,500 0.2383796 $13,939
Projected-Mixed Use $89,400,000 0.2383796 $213,103


increase‘ $83,531,500 $199,114


The increase in property taxes allocated to the city of MillCreek under the proposed development is
$199,114 (projected property taxes lessexisting taxes in-place). Subject construction is planned to
begin in late 2017 and conclude in 2019 and there willmost likelyproperty tax increases over that
time.


The property tax increase shown above issignificantlyhigher than the initialplan submitted (Old
Plan), as summarized below. ‘


2016 Property Tax Increase Estimate Shopping Center (Old Plan)


MillCreek MillCreek


Assessed Property Property


Description Value Tax Rate
‘


Tax


Current $5,868,500 0.2383796 $13,989


Projected-Mixed Use $27,714,000 0.2383796 $66,062


Increase $21,845,500 $52,073


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek
@


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 86 of 153







Projected City Revenues from Development ' 15


One-Time Sales Tax on Construction Costs


Taxable construction costs are based upon the developer's hard cost construction estimate of
$65,000,000, or $143.16 per square foot of gross buildingarea. Thiscost estimate has been cross
checkedusing the MarshallValuation Service and several cost comparables and verified as reasonable.


'


The hard costs are the only construction costs that actually incur sales tax (does not includearchitect
& engineering fees, financing fees, etc.); the total project cost estimate of $99.7millionincludesland,
soft costs, contingency, ?nancing and contractor/developer fees that are not subject to ‘salestax.


The $65 millionin taxable construction costs is multiplied by the MillCreek allocatedSales Tax Rate of


085%to arrive at the one-time sales tax on construction costs figure, as shown below:


One-11meSales-Taxon Construction Costs (Mixed-UseNew Plan)


TaxableConstruction Cost Estimate - $65,000,000
MillCreekSalesTax Rate . 0.85%


one—TimeSalesTax on Construction Costs $552,500


Again, the one-time sales tax on new construction under the current plan is significantly greater than
the initialproposal (Old Plan) as summarizedbelow.


One-Time SalesTax on ConstructionCosts (OldPlan) .


TaxableConstruction Cost Estimate $20,000,000
MillCreekSalesTax Rate 0.85%


One-1'imeSalesTax on ConstructionCosts $170,000


Eastgate Village at MillCreek
I @


% t.=:=fxax:::‘z.‘.‘nnzr_1L


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 87 of 153







Summary of EconomicBenefits 16


Summary of Economic Benefits
Based on the preceding analysis and subject to the definitions, assumptions, and limitingconditions
expressed in the report, our estimate of annual and one-time revenues under the current plan is as
follows:


. _


Summary of Economic Benefits (Mixed-Use) New Plan -


Premise Frequency Amount


MillCreek'sportion of sales tax revenue projection Annual $191,907
MillCreek's portionof stabilizedproperty tax increase Annual §199,114


'


YearlyRevenue to the City $391,021


MillCreek's portion of sales tax on construction costs One-time $552,500


Summary of Economic Benefits (114,000 SF Retail) Old Plan


Premise ' Frequency Amount.MillCreek'sportion of sales tax revenue projection Annual $229,602


.MillCreek's portion of stabilizedproperty tax increase Annual $52,073


Yearly Revenue to the City $281,675


MillCreek's portionof sales tax on construction costs One-time $170,000


Comparison of New and Old Project's Economic Benefits
OLDPLAN NEWPLAN


Size (SF) Sales(/year)
'


Size (SF) Sales (/year)


Grocery 50,000’ $30,000,000 29,500 $26,550,000


Restaurant 1
1


4,320 $3,024,000 4,200 $2,940,000


Restaurant 2 3,000 52,100,000


Drug Store 16,480 $7,416,000
'


RetailPad
‘


35,019 $9,630,225 37,965 $9,491,250


RetailPad 0 8,181 $2,249,775
'


Apt Parking $612,000


Total $ ' $52,320,000 $41,693,250


salessubject to sales tax $27,012,000 $22,577,250


TOTALSF 114,000 74,665


City Sales Tax . -


Revenue $229,602 $191,907


to MillCreek


The City of MillCreekcollects 3% of retail sales subject to salestax.


It is estimated that 28% of Grocery Store sales are sales-taxable.


It is estimated that one-halfof Drug Store salesare not prescriptions and so subject to sales tax.


The yearly sales tax benefit as proposed (New Plan) is less than the initial proposal (Old Plan), but the
property tax increase is signi?cantly higher;therefore, the overall $391,021 annual revenue is
significantlyhigher than the $281,675 in the initial plan. Additionally,the one-time sales tax on


construction costs in the New Plan is $380,000 higher than the Old Plan.
'


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek
@


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 88 of 153







Certification
‘


17


,


Certification


We certifythat, to the best of our knowledgeand belief:


1.


2.


1o.
1


11.


12. '


13.


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek


Thestatements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.


The reported analyses,opinions, and conclusionsare limitedonly by the reported
assumptions and limitingconditions, and are our personal, impartial, and unbiased
professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions.


We have no present or prospective interest in the property that isthe subject of this report
and no personal interest with respect to the parties involved.


We have not performed any services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the
property that is the subject of this report withinthe three-year period immediately preceding
acceptance of this assignment. ~


We have no biaswithrespect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties
involvedwith this assignment. ’


Our engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting
predetermined results.


Our compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or
reporting of a predeterminedvalue or directioninvalue that favors the cause of the client, the
amount of the value opinion, the attainment of astipulated result, or the occurrence of a
subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal.


Our analyses,opinions, and conclusionswere developed, and this report has been prepared,
in conformity with the UniformStandardsof ProfessionalAppraisal Practice as wellas
applicable state appraisal regulations.


The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusionswere developed, and this report has been
prepared, in conformitywith the Codeof ProfessionalEthicsand Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice of the AppraisalInstitute.


The use of this reportis subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to


review by its duly authorizedrepresentatives.
'


AllenSafer, MAI,MRICS,made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this
report. Gregory Bucklin,MAI,has personally inspected the subject.


No one provided significant assistance to the persons signing this certification.


We have experience in appraising properties similar to the subject and are in compliance with
the Competency Ruleof USPAP.


El


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 89 of 153







Certification 18


14. As of the date ofthls report, AllenSafer, MAI,MRICSand Gregory Bucklin,MAI have
completed the continuing education program for Designated Members ofthe Appraisal
lnstitute.


4%/%~ 2%»/W
Allen Safer, MAI,MRICS
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
Washington Certificate # 1100662


Gregory Bticklin,MAI
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
Washington Certificate # 1101619


Eastgate Village at MillCreek


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 90 of 153







Assumptions and LimitingConditions 19


Assumptions and Limiting Conditions


Thisappraisal and any other work product related to thisengagement are limitedby the following


1.


standard assumptions, except as otherwise noted in the report:


Thetitle is marketable and free and clear of all liens,encumbrances,encroachments,
easements and restrictions. The property is under responsible ownershipand competent
management and is availablefor its highest and best use.


There are no existing judgments or pending or threatened litigation that could affect the value
of.the property.


The property is in compliance with allapplicable building, environmental, zoning, and other
federal, state and local laws, regulations and codes.
The informationfurnishedby others is believedto bereliable,‘but no warranty is given for its
accuracy.


’


Thisappraisal and any other work product related to this engagement are subject to the following
limitingconditions,except as otherwise noted in the report:


1. A real property consulting study is inherently subjective and represents our opinions as to the
property analyzed.


The conclusionsstated in our analysis apply only as of the effective date of the analysis, and
no representation is made as to the effect of subsequent events.


No changes in any federal, state or local laws,regulations or codes (including,without
limitation,the internal RevenueCode) are anticipated.


No environmental impact studies were either requested or made in conjunction with this
assignment, and we reserve the right to revise or rescind any of the value opinions based
upon any subsequent environmentalimpact studies. if any environmental impact statement is


required by law, the analysis assumes that such statement willbe favorable and willbe
approved by the appropriate regulatory bodies.


Unless othen/vise agreed to in writing, we are not required to give testimony, respond to any


subpoena or attend any court, governmental or other hearing with reference to the property


without compensation relative to such additionalemployment.


We have made no survey of the property and assume no responsibility in connection with
such matters. Any sketch or survey of the property includedin this report is for illustrative
purposes only and should not be considered to be scaled accurately for size. The assignment


covers the property as described in this report, and the areas and dimensions set forth are


assumed to be correct.


We accept no responsibilityfor considerationsrequiring expertisein other fields. Such
considerationsinclude, but are not limitedto, legal descriptions and other legal matters such
as legaltitle, geologic considerations such as soils and seismic stability; and civil,mechanical,


Eastgate Village at MillCreek
@


l
l


.—_—..-.._~._.—n—-—4naan—-n———-n.n—raaa:uaa-uuuxxxug-mn::j:z:.=rn4uaun-use-n~:r:~u-tar:-::-ax:-.=1=gn.:g,:x-eaontx.,..4 ..;,x.:-......._,,~_L


.. ..
,. - -


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 91 of 153







Assumptions andLimiting Conditions 20


_
1o.


11.


12.


13.


14.


15.


16.


» electrical,structuraland other engineering and environmentalmatters. Such considerations
may also includedeterminations of compliancewith zoning and other federal, state, and local
laws, regulations andcodes.


Theanalysisshallbe consideredonly in its entirety. No part of the analysisshall be utilized
separately or out of context.


Neitherall nor any part of the contents of this report (especiallyany conclusionsas to value,
the identity of the appraisers, or any reference to the AppraisalInstitute) shall be
disseminated through advertising media, public relations media, news media or any other
means of communication (includingwithout limitationprospectuses, private offering


memorandaand other offering materialprovided to prospective investors) without the prior
written consent of the persons signing the report.


information, estimates and opinions contained in the report and obtained from third—party
sources are assumed to be reliable and have not been independently veri?ed.


Any revenue estimates contained in the analysisare used only for the purpose of estimating


the fiscalimpact of proposed development to the Cityand do not constitute predictions of
future operating results.


The current purchasing power of the dollar is the basis for the values stated in the appraisal;
we have assumed that no extreme fluctuations in economic cycles willoccur.


The projections found hereinare subject to these andto any other assumptions or conditions
set forth in the body of this report but whichmay have been omitted from this list of
Assumptions and LimitingConditions. ‘


The analyses contained in the report necessarily incorporate numerous estimates and
assumptions regarding property performance, general andlocal business and economic
conditions,the absence of materialchanges in the competitive environment and other
matters. Some estimates or assumptions, however, inevitably willnot materialize, and
unanticipated events and circumstances may occur; therefore, actual results achievedduring


the period covered byour analysiswillvary from our estimates, and the variations may be
material.


The consulting report is prepared for the exclusivebenefitof the Client, its subsidiaries and/or
affiliates. it may not be used or reliedupon by any other party. Allparties who use or rely


upon any information in the report without our written consent do so at their own risk.


It is expressly acknowledged that in any action which may be brought against anyof the
Integra Parties, arising out of, relating to, or in any way pertaining to this engagement, the
appraisal reports, and/orany other related work product, the lntegra Parties shall not be
responsible or liablefor any incidentalor consequential damages or losses, unless the
appraisal was fraudulent or prepared with intentional misconduct.It is further acknowledged


that the collectiveliabilityof the lntegra Parties in any such action shallnot exceedthe fees
‘ paid for the preparationof the appraisal report unless the appraisal was fraudulent or


prepared with intentionalmisconduct.Finally,it is acknowledged that the fees charged herein


are in relianceupon the foregoing limitationsof liability.


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek .
,


@


....——_-—s-....,-...-a-as-.<u—.<n— 2$:x:r* I.::su'.'1_..‘ =n.;-...==- -.-::.a« I&((_'£”..~2‘:.'.;-'4if_'_‘ —g..—....__..,;_,. r ",3, , ,n


._,,, , _,g... 3 ,_,,_:I = I: =__ =‘_= ==E ='__==


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 92 of 153







Assumptions and LimitingConditions
l


21


17.


18.


19.


Integra RealtyResources —Seattle, an independently owned and operated company, has
prepared the appraisalfor the speci?c intended use stated elsewhere inthe report. The use of
the appraisal report by anyone other than the Clientis prohibitedexcept as otherwise
provided. Accordingly,the appraisal report is addressed to and shall be solely for the Client's
use andbene?t unlesswe provide our prior written consent. We expressly reserve the
unrestricted right to withholdour consent to your disclosureof the appraisal report or any
other work product related to the engagement (or any part thereof including, without
limitation, conclusionsof value and our identity), to any third parties. Stated again for
clarification,unless our prior written consent is obtained, no third party may relyon the
appraisal report (evenif their reliancewas foreseeable).


The conclusionsof this report are estimates based on knowncurrent trends and reasonably
foreseeable future occurrences. These estimates are based partly on property information,
data obtained in publicrecords, interviews, existing trends, buyer-seller decisioncriteria in the
current market, and research conductedby third parties, and such data are not always
completely reliable.The Integra Parties are not responsible for these and other future
occurrences that couldnot have reasonably been foreseen on the effective date of this
assignment. Furthermore,it is inevitablethat some assumptions willnot materializeand'that
unanticipatedevents may occur that willlikelyaffect actual performance. Whilewe are of the
opinion that ourfindings are reasonable based on current market conditions,wedo not


represent that these estimates willactually be achieved, as they are subject to considerable
riskand uncertainty. Moreover, we assume competent and effective management and ’


marketing for the duration of the projected holding period of this property.


Allfindings presented in this report are estimates and forecasts whichare prospective in
nature and are subject to considerableriskand uncertainty. in addition to the contingencies


noted in the preceding paragraph, several eventsmay occur that could substantially alter the
outcome of our estimates such as, but not limitedto changes in the economy, interest rates,


and capitalization rates, behavior of consumers, investors and lenders, fire and other physical
destruction, changes in title or conveyances of easements and deed restrictions, etc. it is
assumed that conditions reasonably foreseeable at the present time are consistent or similar
with the future.


Eastgate Village at MillCreek
@


wz%.‘3xauI mars:-um: znauasuz asumrzv aa mm ..


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 93 of 153







.Addenda


AddendumA
V


Appraiser Qualifications


Eastgate Villageat MillCreek_ .


‘ @


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 94 of 153







Allen Safer, MAI, MRICS


Experience
Senior Managing Director for lntegra Realty Resources—Seatt|e in Washington State. integra Realty


Resources Seattle is part of lntegra Realty Resources (IRR),a nationalvaluation and consulting firm with


66 offices In the U.S.and Caribbean.


Mr. Saferand his firm are experienced in the analysis of various property types including: vacant land,
residential plats, master planned communities, multifamily developments, retail,office, industrial and
special purpose properties in Washington State and Alaska.Clients served include various financial
concerns, lawand public accounting firms, private and publicagencies, pension and advisory companies,
investment ?rms, and the general public. Further, utilizing the resources of Integra's nationwide
coverage, the firm is actively involved in the completion of large portfolio engagements.


Mr. Safer's background includes30+ years of counseling and valuation analysis for the general public on


commercial and residential properties in Washington and Alaska.Entered the appraisal profession with
ColdwellBankerAppraisalServices from 1977 to 1981. FoundedSafer & Company In 1982 and
transitioned to Property Counselors from 1986 to 2001.


ProfessionalActivities & Affiliations
Appraisal institute, Member (MAI)
President: Local Chapter of the Appraisal institute, January 2007 - December 2007


Chairman: Seattle Chapter Real Estate FallConference,January 2008 - December 2010


Chairman: National Appraisal Institute Regional Chairs, January 2000 - December 2000


Chairman: NationalAppraisalinstitute Executive Committee, January 2000 - December 2000


Chairman: PacificNW Region 1 Board of Directors, January 1998- December 1999


Boardof Director: Appraisal institute, January 1996 - December 2001


Member: Appraisal Institute Finance Committee, January 1996 - December 1997


Boardof Director: General Appraisal Board of the Appraisal institute, January 1994 - December 1996


Chairman: NationalComprehensive Exam Subcommittee of the Appraisalinstitute, Jan. 1990 -Dec.1992


Member: National Comprehensive Exam Subcommittee of the Appraisal Institute, Jan. 1983 -Dec.1992


Member: Government RelationsCommittee, January 2002 December2004


Member: National AdmissionsCommittee of the Appraisal Institute, January 1990 December 1993


Boardof Director: Seattle Chapter of the Appraisalinstitute, January 1989 December 1992


Member: Regional Professional Standards Panel of the Appraisalinstitute, January 1984


Chairman: LocalChapter Admissionsand Programs, January 1986 December 1991


Licenses
Alaska,Appraiser, 412, Expires June 2017
Washington, Appraiser, 1100662, Expires September 2017


Washington, Designated Broker, 3341, Expires December 2017


Education
Bachelor of Science, Real Estate, University of Colorado, Boulder, Colorado


QualifiedBefore Courts & Administrative Bodies
United States Bankruptcy Court, Seattle Washington
King County Superior Court, Washington


KingCounty Board of Equalization
Pierce County District Court
Washington State Board of Tax Appeals


Various Arbitration Si LandUse Hearings


Miscellaneous
Recipient of the Seattle AlChapter's ”Appraiser of the Year" Award for 2001.


Recipient of the Seattle AI Chapter's 2009 "President's Award".
IRRCertified Reviewer


asafer@lrr.com - 206.436.1190


integra Realty Resources


Seattle


600 University Street
Suite 310
Seattle, WA 98101


T 206.903.6700x190


F: 206.623.5731


irr.com


IN‘;


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 95 of 153







Gregory H. Bucklin, MAI


Experience
Greg Bucklinis a Director with Integra Realty Resources — Seattle. He has been actively involved in
appraising commercial real estate in the State of Washington since_2001.Prior to joining Integra In
2007, he most recently worked for McKee and Schalka.


Greg is experienced in the analysis of unique property types such as carwashes, marinas and hotels.
His body of work is varied and includes several eminent domain projects.


Professional Activities & Affiliations
Appraisal Institute, Member (MAI)


Licenses
Washington, Certified General Real Estate Appraiser, 1101619.Expires October 2017


Education
Bachelor of Arts, Geography, University of Washington, 2001
Bachelor of Arts, Community & Environmental Planning, University of Washington, 200]


Minors: Architecture and Urban Design &Pianning, University of Washington, 2001
Certificate of Commercial RealEstate, University of Washington, 2006
Standards of Professional Practice, PartA (USPAP), 2002


Report Writing and Valuation Analysis, 2003
Advanced Income Capitalization, 2005
Highest 8: Best Use and Market Analysis, Z005
7-Hour USPAPUpdate, 2005
Advanced Sales Comparison & Cost Approaches. 2006
Advanced Applications, 2006
Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisitions, 2008
Business Practices and Ethics,2011
Fundamentals of Separating RealProperty, Personal Property, 2012


gbucklin@lrr.com - (206)436-1183


Integra Realty Resources


Seattle


600 University Street
Suite 310
Seattle, WA 98101


T 20653036700


F 2066235731


lrr.com


Il"I2


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 96 of 153







lntegra Realty Resources, inc.
Corporate Profile


lntegra Realty Resources, inc. offers the most comprehensive property valuation and counseling coverage in


North America with 58 independently owned and operated offices located throughout the United States and
the Caribbean. lntegra was created for the purpose of combining the intimate knowledge of well-established
localfirms with the powerful resources and capabilitiesof a national company. Integra offers integrated
technology, national data and information systems, as well as standardized valuation models and report
formats for ease of client review and analysis. lntegra's local offices have an average of 25 years of service in
the local market, and virtually all are headed by a Senior Managing Director who is an MAI member of the
Appraisal Institute.


A listing of IRR'slocaloffices and their Senior Managing Directors follows:


ATLANTA,GA - Sherry L. WatIrirIs.,MAI, FRICS


AUSTIN,TX- RandyA. Williams, MAI,SR/WA,FRICS


BALTIMORE,MD - G. EdwardKerr, MAI,MRICS


BIRMINGHAMAL- Rusty RICII,MAI,MRICS


BOISE,ID - BradfordT. Knipe, MAI,ARA, CCIM,CHE.FRICS
BOSTON,MA - David L. Cary, Jr., MAI, MRICS


CHARLESTON,SC ~ Cleveland "Bud" Wright,Jr., MAI
CHARLOTTE,NC- Filzhugh L.Stout, MAI, CR5, FRICS


CHICAGO,IL- Eric L. Enlae, MAI,FRICS
CINCINNATI/DAYTON,OH - Gary S. Wrlghl, MAI, FRICS,SRA


CLEVELAND,OH - Douglas P. Sloan, MAI
COLUMBIA,SC- Michael B. Dodds, MAI, CCIM


COLUMBUS,OH- BruceA. Daubner, MAI,FRICS


DALLAS,TX- Mark R.Lamb, MAI,CPA,FRICS


DENVER,CO - BradA. Welman, MAI, FRICS


DETROIT,Ml-Anthony Sarina, MAI, CRE,FRICS
FORTWORTH,TX- Gregory B. Coak, MAI,SR/WA
GREENSBORO.NC- Nancy Trill, MAI,SRA,FRICS


HARTFORD,CT - Markf. Bates, MAI,CRE,FRIS


HOUSTON,TX- David R. Dalrliny, MAI, CRE, FRICS.
INDIANAPOLIS,IN - Michael C. Lady, MAI,SRA,CCIM,FRICS


JACKSON,MS - John Ii. Praytor, MAI
JACKSONVILLE,FL- Robert Crenshaw, MAI,FRICS
KANSASCITY,MO/KS- Kenneth Joggers, MAI, FRICS


LASVEGAS,NV- Charles E.Jack IV, MAI


LOSANGELESCA-John 6. Ellis,MAI, CRE,FRIG


LOSANGELEQCA - Matthew}. Swansan, MAI
LOUISVILLE,KY- Stacey Nicholas, MAI, MRICS


MEMPHIS,TN-J. WaIlerAIIen, MAI, FRICS


MIAMI/PALMBEACH,FL-Anthony M. Graziano, MAI, CRE,FRIES


MINNEAPOLIS,MN- Michael F. Amundsan, MAI, CCIM,FRICS


NAPLES,FL- Carlton J. Lloyd,MAI, FRICS


NASHVILLE,TN- R. Paul Perutelll, MAI,SRA,FRICS


NEWIE RSEVCOASTAL- Han/orJ. Egeland, MAI
NEWJERSEYNORTHERN- Matthew S. Krauser, CRE,FRICS


NEW YORK,NY- Raymond T. Clrz, MAI,CRE,FRICS
ORANGECOUNTY,CA~S[evE Calandra, MAI
ORLANDO,FL - Chrlstopherstarkey, MAI, MRICS


PHILADELPHIA,PA - Joseph D. Pasquorella, MAI, CRE,FRICS


PHOENIX,AZ - Walter ’Tres’Wlnius III,MAI, FRICS


PIITSBURGH,PA ~ Paul D. Grif?th, MAI,CRE,FRICS


PORTLAND,OR- Brian A. Glanvllle,MAI,CRE,FRICS


PROVIDENCE,RI- Gerard PLMcbonough, MAI, FRICS


RALEIGH,NC - ChrisR. Morris, MAI, FRICS


RICHMOND, VA - Kenneth L. Brown, MAI, CCIM,FRICS


SACRAMENTO,CA- Scott Beebe, MAI, FRICS
ST. LOUIS,MO < P. Ryan McDonald, MAI, FRICS
SALTLAKECITY,UT- Darrin W. Llddell, MAI, FRICS,CCIM


SAN DIEGO,CA-IeffA.Greenwald, MAI,SRA, FRICS


SANFRANCISCO,CA«Jan Kleczewski,MAI, FRICS


SARASOTA,FL- CarltonJ. Lloyd,MAI, FRICS
SEATTLE,WA -Allen N, Safer, M/ll, MRICS


SYRACUSE,NY- WilliamJ. Kimball,MAI, FRICS


TAMPA, FL - BradfordL Johnson, MAI, MRICS


TULSA,OK- Owen S. Ard, MAI
WASHINGTON,DC - Palrlck C. Kerr, MAI,FRICS,SRA


WILMINGTON,DE- Douglas L. Nickel, MAI, FRICS


CARIBBEAN/CAYMANISLANDS- James Andrews, MAI, FRICS


Irll


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 97 of 153







) ATTACHMENT 4 — DEPARTMENT EXPENSE ANALYSIS


('ll\ oi


THE FARM AT MILLCREEKDEVELOPMENT


WASHINGTON


Police Department


Overview


In considering the potential service level expenses that the Police Department may experience, staff


used reasonable comparisons based on historical numbers. The most readily available data for this


comparison is ca||—for—service (CFS)data available through our records management system (RMS). It is


important to note that most ofthe CFSdescribed in this report are generated by calls to 911 or the


dispatch center, but an unidentified and smaller percentage of the CFSare officergenerated. The result


is the same however, in that both community—driven and officer—drivenCFS are a result of the presence


of the development. Given that the proposed project is a mixed—usefacility, and the fact that there is


not a similar project in the City, it was necessary for staff to look at residential and commercial


developments separately and then pull the data together for projections.


The projected size and configuration of the residential units and population most closely resembles the


size and configuration ofa current multi—fami|y complex in MillCreek; the Hawthorne Apartments.


Another comparable development used in this study is the Meadows Apartments, a complex in close


proximity to this project but with roughly halfthe residential units. For this comparison, CFSwere


multiplied by a factor of 2.


In considering the impact created by the commercial portion of the proposed development, staff


identified the Gateway Plaza as a comparable property based on overall square footage and the nature


of the businesses that occupy Gateway, including service businesses, restaurants, a bank and most


recently a specialty grocery store and fitness facility. A challenge experienced with this comparison is


the recent opening of the last two businesses; Sprouts and Planet Fitness, so it was necessary to


extrapolate data for comparative purposes. That extrapolation is explained in more detail in the


commercial section ofthis report.


Residential impact


An examination ofthe CFSdata at the two comparable multi~family complexes revealed that they were


quite similar in nature. Over a two—year period (2017-2018), the Hawthorne reported 44 CFSin the


categories listed below. The Meadows Apartments reported 25 CFSduring the time frame, multiplied


by a factor of 2, for a total of 50. Two provide a comparison of what the Farm development may yield as


far as CFSnumbers over a two—year period, these two amounts were averaged for a total anticipated


impact of 47 CFS.


The raw data for these two complexes are included in the charts below.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 98 of 153







Hawthorne Apartments


1
1
111
K?_ __ -_


-


|-‘I-‘l-‘l-‘


1
T


1
K


1
1
Z


N


1
1
1


1
K1


1
1
1


:1
vemcseaecovew111:1
It
5111::
jjlt


Meadows Apartments


1
iii
T


Tie
511:1


Z
Malicious Mischief


Z
1


I
1


Robbery


Te
1
ii
1:1
1:1


T


Page I2


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 99 of 153







Page |3


Vehicle Recovery


Vehicle Prowl
if


-
Z


1
1


2 - 50


VUCSA(Drug)


Commercial Impact


As mentioned above, the Gateway Plaza, in its current configuration, most closely resembles the


projected commercial portion of the Farm Development. It is important to note that during all of 2017


and much of 2018, two major tenants in the Gateway Plazadid not exist, with Planet Fitness and Sprouts


opening in the second half of 2018. In order to liberally account for this, the total reported CFSwere


multiplied by a factor of 4, representing the four six-month periods in the 2017-2018 biennium. While


there is no way to ensure the accuracy of this estimate, it is the most likelycomparable available to staff


for this purpose.


Given this extrapolation, staff reasonably assumes a CFSimpact of 48 additional incidents in a two—year


pe?od.


The raw data for this complex is included in the chart below.


Gateway Plaza


018


2'‘U(D(5OQ.GNOI-‘


I


IDTheft
1


Vehicle Recovery


1


1


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 100 of 153







Page I4


—_


Citywide CFSinformation


In order to comparably measure the impact of these projected CFS, it is important to measure these


numbers against historical data. Staff researched CFSdata for the incident categories used in this


comparison. City wide during the 2017-2018 biennium, there were 1494 CFSof this nature.


The raw data is included in the chart below.


111


MillCreek Total Type Code
Assau|t(s)


Burglary


Disturbance
DVVerbal


Forgery


Harassment


IDTheft
Malicious Mischief 103


Crisis Intervention


Poss. Stolen Prop.


Robbery


Sex Offense
Theft
Threats


Vehicle Recovery


Vehicle Prowl
Vehicle Theft


VUCSA(Drug)


I-‘OO\ll-* H l\Jl-| \ll\l-hi-‘\Il-3-§l\)l—‘£D 0 43-5 kl-b\lUJ IU13 00 L0 l—‘


Summary


Staff projects the increase in CFSrelated to the Farm Development to be an additional 95 CFSover a


two-year period, based on an average of 47 CFSfrom the two residential comparables and 48 CFSfrom


the one commercial comparable.


Compared to the two-year citywide historical CFSof 1494, this additional 95 CFSrepresents an


approximately 6.4% increase in CFS.


Given current workload in the police department, it is anticipated that current resources can


accommodate this CFSadjustment without need for an increase in our service level expenses.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 101 of 153







Page I5


Public Works and Development Services Department


Overview


In considering the potential service level expenses that the PublicWorks and Development Services


Department may experience regarding the proposed development (The Farm), staff identified activities


based on other EGUVdevelopment.


A) Operational Expenditures related to the following activities:


0 Street Sweeping


0 Catch Basin cleaning


0 Street Pavement Marking


0 Street Light Repairs


0 Street snow and ice removal


0 Inspection of surface water private detention structures (permit requirement; NPDES-


National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System)


0 Maintenance of pathways in wetlands (after five years ifCity takes ownership of property)


0 Snohomish PUD power


0 Other street repairs (concrete curbs, etc.)


0 Ad hoc support to new businesses


B) Capital Expenditures


Eventually, capital infrastructure will need to be rehabilitated or repaired —pavement, surface water


facilities and street lighting. Major repairs or rehabilitation would not be expected within the first ten to


fifteen years after construction and therefore no estimate of expenses can be projected at this time.


Summary:


The Department's operations and maintenance crew is limited to 4.7 FTEsand even modest increases in


maintenance responsibilities and growth may require additional funds. The Department willmanage


with existing resources and willfurther evaluate two years after The Farm construction is complete.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 102 of 153







) Attachment 5 -


/_/-$7 .. The Farm at Mill Creek
Mlllcreek Response to Questions


WASHINGTON


DEVELOPMENT PLAN


How many apartments are included in the development?
There are 380 units, which includes 355 apartment units and 25 live/work units.


How many new apartments have been approvedldeveloped in last 5 years along the
128"‘l132“"Street SE corridor?
Three jurisdictions abut the 128"‘/132"“Street SE corridor, so the approved developments are
listed by jurisdiction.


- City of MillCreek:
The City has approved two developments. The first development was a multi-family
development (Polygon) with 180 apartment units (The MillCreek Meadows Apartments)
and 122 townhouses (The Meadows at MillCreek). The second development was the
Vintage at MillCreek with 216 senior (55 years and older) housing units.


- City of Everett:
Staff willresearch and tabulate this data.


- Snohomish County:
Staff willresearch and tabulate this data.


Is this a low-income housing development?
The developer is proposing a workforce housing project as part of the Farm development.
100% of the 355 units willbe available to households at 60% of the average median income
(see table below). Workforce housing is a term used increasingly used by planners, government
and organizations concerned with housing policy or advocacy to describe housing for people
making at least 60 percent of area median income (AMI). Workforce housing is promoted as
attractive and affordable housing for teachers, law enforcement officers, firefighters, nurses, in
close proximity to theirjobs. 'Workforce housing" can refer to any form of housing, including
single or multi-family homes, as well as occupation of rental units. The tenants are screened
and audited on an annual basis through the State program. The City code does not regulate
developer funding sources. But the City does require the same high standard of development
for all commercial and housing units in the City regardless of the funding sources.


Washington State Income 8. Rent Limis


lar Housing Trust Fund Projects - 2018


Published 4-30 2013


Euunty:


2013 Median Income: 5 103.400


ZLSW
16,215


29 960
33,705


37,450
44,540
48,685
56,100


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 103 of 153







Page I2


How many parking spaces are planned for the development?
There are 1,197 parking stalls currently shown in this development. This includes 435 surface
spaces and 762 spaces in parking garages. This number would change slightly as the site plan
is refined.


What kinds of businesses are targeted for location at the development?
Among the businesses being targeted for development at this location are restaurants, a charter
school, organic grocer, bistro, wine shops, advanced medical office space, financial institutions
and more. A letter of intent has already been signed with some businesses for this
development.


SCHOOLS


Does the developer have to pay for impacts to schools?
Yes. The City has an interlocal agreement with the school district. The school district has its
own capital facilities plan, which includes a breakdown of projected facilities to accommodate
student growth and population. The district sets a generation rate for each type of residential
unit that determines the impact fee that the developer is charged. The developer must pay that
fee when the development is approved. The school impact fee from this development is
$465,924 and it is paid by the developer directly to the schools. The City does not have any
authority pertaining to the proposed development regarding this issue.


How will school student assignments be effected by the development‘?
City staff has requested a response on this topic from Everett School District.


TRAFHC


How will this development impact traffic?
The overall project is anticipated to generate 6,112 gross daily trips at the site access driveways
with 392 during the morning peak commute hour and 565 during the evening peak commute
hour. When accounting for the trips between EGUV land uses and pass-by trips ofthe retail
use, the new trips associated with the project total 3,620 daily, 238 AM peak hour, and 332 PM
peak hour trips. This falls within the required levels of service for the City. Traffic mitigation fees
of $1,098,000 paid by the developer willhelp with traffic improvement projects in the area,
including work on expanding the spine road eastward. View the entire traffic report.


Traffic mitigation money will be paid by the applicant for traffic mitigation. Traffic mitigation
funds are necessary to fund the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). Two projects in the CIP
directly related to the project are the purchasing of segments of the spine road right—of—way.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 104 of 153







Page |3


What is the anticipated wait time at intersections?
The following information are excerpts from the Traffic Study prepared for the development.


35"‘Street SEl132""Street SE Intersection and 39"‘Street SE/132"“Street SE Intersection:


Traffic Operations


The operational characteristics of an intersection are detemiined by calculating the intersection
level of service (LOS). At signalized intersections, LOS is measured in average control delay per
vehicle and is typically reported using the intersection delay. Traffic operations and average vehicle
delay for an intersection can be described qualitatively with a range of levels of service (LOS A
through LOS F), with LOS A indicating free—?owing traf?c and LOS F indicating extreme congestion
and long vehicle delays. Attachment E contains a detailed explanation of LOS criteria and
de?nitions.


For the operations analysis of existing conditions at the signalized study intersections, signal timing
and phasing information was obtained from Washington State Department of Transportation
(WSDOT). Analysis parameters including lane channelization were maintained for future (2021)
without—project conditions from existing conditions. Signal timing splits and offsets were optimized
under future (2021) conditions. Additionally, under future with-project conditions, the southern leg of
the 39th Avenue SEl312nd Street SE intersection is included in the analysis re?ecting the
channelization shown in Figure 2.


Weekday PM peak hour traffic operations for existing and future conditions were evaluated at the
study intersections based on the procedures identified in the Highway Capacity Manual (2010) and
were evaluated using Synchro 9.1. Synchro 9.1 is a software program that uses HCM methodology
to evaluate intersection LOS and average vehicle delays. Results for the existing and future
operations analyses are summarized in Table 2. Detailed LOS worksheets for each intersection
analysis are included in Attachment F.


Table 2. Existing and Future PM Peak Hour Intersection LOS Summary


Existing 2021 vtmhout-Project 2021 Wlth-Project


Intersection L05‘ Delay’ Los Delay L05 Dela)!
__:


1. 35th Avenue SE/i32nd Street SE E 73 E 69 E 72


2. 39th Avenue SEl132nd Street SE C 22 C 23 D 43


Seattle Hill Roadl132"" Street SE Intersection:
The operations of the Seattle HillRoad/132nd Street SE intersection re?ecting the existing
phasing and channelization for the with and without project volumes are summarized in Table
below as well as the future with-project volumes with the proposed mitigated channelization and
phasing. As shown in the table, the project is anticipated to result in an increase of approximately
7 seconds of delay relative to witliout project conditions with the existing channelization and
phasing. With the proposed mitigated channelization and phasing, the project is anticipated to
operate at LOS E with 77 seconds of delay. The traf?c operation worksheets are included in
Attachment A.


Table 1. Future PM Peak Hour Intersection LOS Summary


2021 Imthout-Project 2021 with-Project 2021 Vlmh-Project— M?igared


Intersection L05‘ DENY’ LOS Delay L05 DEIBY


3. Seattle HillRoad/132nd Street SE F 80 F 87 E 77


1. Level of Service (A - F) as deflted by the 2010 Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) (TRB)


2. Average delay per vehicle in seconds.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 105 of 153







Page [4


What is the accuracy of current traffic study, since additional commercial space and
residential units have been added?
The traffic study willbe updated prior to issuing SEPA to reflect the current square footages and
unit counts.


Will there be a spine road?
Yes, the developer willfinance and build a new public road connection to 132““Street SE (SR
96) at the signalized intersection at 39"‘Avenue SE. The spine road willhelp bring people into
the development and offthe state route.


Doesn’t the EGUV plan call for the spine road to be connected to 35"‘Ave? Why isn’t that
part of this plan?
The connection to 35"‘Avenue SE cannot be made because of environmental conditions
between the development and 35”‘Avenue SE. The developer is required to construct the
portion ofthe spine road that is on the subject property, which is planned to connect to 132"“
Street SE at 44"‘Avenue SE and Seattle HillRoad to the west.


Will there be access to mass transit?
Yes. Community Transit runs along 132"“Street SE, and there are stops nearby, including one
each direction at the intersection of 132"“Street SE and 39"‘Avenue SE.


ENVIRONMENTAL


What things are assessed as part of an environmental impact review?
The State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) requires project assessment and mitigation of
impacts to 16 different items, including:


- Eanh
Air
Water
Plants
Animals
Energy and Natural Resources
Environmental Health
Land and Shoreline Use
Housing
Aesthetics


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 106 of 153







Pa.se|.5


Light and Glare
"Recreation
Historic and Cultural Preservation
Transportation
Public Services
Utilities


As part of the offset from mitigating impacts, the City requires certain monetary compensation to
build improvements, including recreation for community and neighborhood parks, traffic,
schools, and more.


The developer willpay impact fees of $449,736 for a City neighborhood park and $273,000 for a
community park.


How will this impact the adjacent wetlands?
The proposed preliminary CriticalAreas Wetland Mitigation Plan has been reviewed by the
Department of Ecology and City's wetland consultant is consistent with City environment
regulations. Below is a summary of the project and for a detailed description, please see the
project page links to the Critical Areas Study and Mitigation Plan.


The developer has proposed an innovative stormwater design that willinfiltrate clean
stormwater into a select ?ll layer so that a portion of the stormwater willbe delayed in reaching
the wetlands. The delayed discharge of stormwater willallow the hydration of the wetlands
weeks to months into typically drier periods.


There is a 61-acre wetland park that is being rehabilitated as a wetland park. The developer
recently purchased the land previously owned by Pacific Topsoils. An elevated footbridge will
connect the development to the wetlands. The plans include trails, a learning center, and
additional parking offsite. The goal is to connect it to the project site.


GENERAL


What is the economic benefit to the City from this development?
Based on a 2016 Fiscal Impact Analysis (currently under review and to be updated by The Farm
developer) indicates that the development as proposed in 2016 would generate over $391,000
in annual on-going tax revenues (property tax and sales taxes) and over $552,000 of one-time
construction related taxes (sales taxes). Although The Farm developer is currently evaluating an
update to the 2016 analysis, he has reported that the revenues cited in the report remain
relevant and may be lower than what may actually be generated since the overall cost of the
project has increased since 2016.


How will surrounding property valuation be impacted by the proposed development?
The proximity of commercial services and a potential passive park typically increases the values
of adjacent homes.


Can we change the development name?
There is no established process for the City to name a private development. Private
developments in the City are named by the property owners. The City does not have any
authority to name the development, aside from naming the spine road or other public areas
such as the park. The name selected by the developer, The Farm at MillCreek, gives homage


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 107 of 153







3.3.3.3L?


to the property's history as the old buffalo farm and is proposing to integrate historical andfarm
themed elements into the project design.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


The Farm Development Agreement (Christi Amrine, Senior Planner) Page 108 of 153







CITY OF


Agenda Item #L
W A S H I N G T 0 N Meeting Date: February 26, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: UPDATING THE CITY’S INDOOR FACILITY USE POLICY AND
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL
CODE RELATED TO FACILITY USE FEES


PROPOSED MOTION:


Motion to update the City’s indoor facility use policy and adopt Ordinance 2019-
amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) related to facility use fees.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The City of Mill Creek has rooms that are available for use by the public. The policy that
governs use of indoor facilities was last modified in September 2007. The policy identi?es and
prioritizes user groups, specifies deposit and fee schedules, and establishes administrative rules.


In 2016, the City took possession of office space in the City Hall North building. In 2018, the
Senior Center moved to the Vintage at Mill Creek. These changes provided access to two smaller
rooms that can be made available to the public.


0 The City Hall North Conference Room, which is adjacent to the Community Rooms, is
available for use 5-10 pm. Monday through Friday, and 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. on Saturday


and Sunday.
0 City Hall North Room 216 is available for use daily from 8 am. to 10 p.m.


Rates for these two new rooms offered for public use were determined based on:


- Research of other localjurisdiction room rental rates (including Bellevue, Bothell,
Everett, Mountlake Terrace, Mukilteo, Seattle, and Snohomish County);


0 Staff time to facilitate reservations; and
- Comparison to use rates of the City’s other community rooms based on size and


amenities.


The policy is updated to include these rooms and use fees. Since indoor facility use fees are


codified under Mill Creek Municipal Code Section 3.42.230, the code must be amended to


re?ect these additions.


The policy also updates administrative rules, including:
I Cancellation process and refunds;
I Insurance coverage / proofof insurance;
0 Responsibility for damage caused by users; and
- Prohibition ofcertain things in the facilities (e.g., open ?ames, in?atables, confetti).


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 109 of 153







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


A redline version of the proposed policy is attached that identi?es relevant changes from the
prior policy, not including a format change to match the City’s current policy practice.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Approve the indoor facility use policy updates and adopt the attached ordinance amending the
MCMC related to facility use fees.


ATTACHMENTS:


0 Facility Rental Policies 2007
0 CM200-ll Indoor Facility Use Policy
0 Proposed Ordinance Adopting Amendment to the MCMC


Respe/ctftillySubm'


[B/ebeitS. Stowe
/InterimCity Manager


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 110 of 153







STATEMENT OF POLICY FOR USE OF CITY OF MILL CREEK
INDOOR FACILITIES


City Policy No.: CCP 07-002


Effective: September 12, 2007
Amended: Originally passed by City Council 01/10/95


Revised by Cig Council 07/09/02 and 9/11/07


1. PURPOSE: '


The City of Mill Creek has three rooms that are available for use by the public. In order to be
consistent in granting use of these rooms, identifying priority user groups, specifying deposit and
fee schedules,and establishing administrative rules, the following policy applies.


2. USERS:
a. First Priority


(1) City-sponsored or co-sponsoredactivities/and or meetingsshallhave priorityof use
for rooms at all times.


b. Second Priority
(1) Activities sponsoredby other governmental jurisdictions; such as the library, city or


county agencies, or Everett Public Schools.


(2) Mill Creek 501(c)3 non-profit organizations, Mill Creek homeowner associations,
educational, recreational, or community service activities or organizations
(documentation may be required).


(3) Educational, recreational or community serviceactivitiesoffered by private schools
within a ?ve-mile radius of the City.


(4) Meetings of or by ad-hoc groups of Mill Creek residents for which no fee is charged
for participation.


c. Third Priority
(1) Businessmeetingsor ?mctions sponsored by a private group or individual where no


fee is charged for participation. This includes Non—Pro?tsnot based in Mill Creek.


(2) Activities for which a fee is charged for participation.


(3) Others not qualifying for first or second priority.


3. ROOM RESERVATIONS:
The City of Mill Creek designates the following facility areas as available to the public:


0 Smaller Community Room MaximumCapacity 43
0 Larger Community Room MaximumCapacity 120
0 Council Chambers Maximum Capacity 74


To reserve a room, a reservation form, available at the front counter at City Hall, must be completed,signed
and returned with the appropriatefee no later than one (1) week prior to the scheduled event. If two (2)
reservations are received at the same time, for the same date, the priority ranking will prevail. No first time
reservations will be made or accepted by telephone or fax. Applicantsmust be at least 21 years of age. Proof
of age may be required.


Page 1


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 111 of 153







First Priority users may schedule use of a room up to six (6) months prior to the event.—Second
Priority users may schedule use of a room up to three (3) months in advance.
Third Priority users may schedule use of a room up to two (2) months in advance.


RENTAL FEES/DAMAGE DEPOSITS:
All Rental fees and/or damage deposits must be paid in full at the time the reservation form is
submittedto the City. Fees are listed below:


a. First priority users pay no rental fee or damage deposit.


b. Second priority users will be charged:


Ti
Small Communi Room $24.00 er hour $40.00 er hour


$36.00 er hour $56.00 er hour
Council Chambers No Chare **


(*8:00 am to 5:00 17.17:.Monday through Friday)
** Council Chambers not suitable for use with children.


< Re?indable damage/cleaning deposit of $75.00 or


< Refundable damage/cleaning deposit of $150.00 if group is serving food and/or
beverages.


c. Third priority users will be charged:


Rf
Small Communi Room $30.00 er hour $45.00 er hour


$50.00 er hour $70.00 er hour
(*8:00 am to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday)


< Refundable damage/cleaning deposit of $75.00; or


< Re?mdable damage/cleaning deposit of $150.00 if group is serving food and/or
beverages.


LIABILITY INSURANCE:
In most circumstances the City will require that all third priority groups obtainTenant/User Program
liability insurance, with a $1 million per occurrence limit. Depending on the activities, first and
second priority groups may be requiredto obtain tenant/user liability insurance. If you do not have
liability insurance for your event, the City can assist you in making applicationfor this coverage.


ADMJNISTRATIVE RULES:
3.


b.


Use/possession of alcoholic beverages and/or narcotics is prohibited in City facilities.


Smoking is prohibitedin and within twenty-?ve feet of City facilities.


Persons who are loud, disorderly and/or abusive to other users of the facility, equipment, or


the facility itself will be asked to leave.


Users are responsible for bringing their own linen (unless previously arranged), coffee
pots, dishes,utensils, and other equipment.


Page 2


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 112 of 153







e. Users are responsible for their own setup and cleanup, which includes wiping down and
returning tables and chairs to their pre-event location, sweeping floors, cleaning spills,
and removing trash. Reasonablecleaning suppliesand trash receptacles will be provided.
All setup and cleanupmust be completed within the time designated of the rental.


f. Animals and pets are not allowed (exceptions: service animals, or when scheduled for
recreation/activity programs).


g. The City reserves the right to waive, reduce or increase rental fees, damage deposits,or
liability insurance as determinednecessary by the City Manager to carry out the purpose
and intent of this policy and/or safeguard City personnel, property and facilities.


7. OTHER PROVISIONS:
a. If you cancel your event, pleasenotify City Hall as soon as possibleso the room can be made


available for another group.


b. The City reserves the sole right to deny requests for room use due to maintenance or security
concerns, inappropriateuse of City facilities,or other reasons as appropriate.For additional
information about this policy, please contactthe Recreation Supervisorat (425) 745-1891.


c. Disclaimer—Permission to use Mill Creek City Hall facilities does not constitute support for
or an endorsement of any sort concerning the user or any affiliated group.


Adopted this 11"‘day of September 2007 by a vote of for, against, and
abstaining.


APPROVED:


MAYOR DONNA MICHELSON
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


CITY CLERK KELLY M. CHELIN


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SI-IORTCRESSMAN & BURGESS


Page 3


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 113 of 153







‘E
POLICY FOR USE OF CITY OF MILLCREEK INDOOR FACILITIES


Mi11Creek
\\'A.<HlNL;rn.\‘


Subect . . .USEOF CITY OF MILLCREEK INDOOR we’:C_°2"(‘)'C‘)“f}'°"""°”$& Ma"‘e"”9
FACILITIES


“m e" '


Effective Date: Supersedes: Staff Contact: Clerk ID Number: Approved By
CCP 07-002 Joni Kirk and Date:
MCMC
3.42.230.A.1


1.0 PURPOSE:
The City of Mill Creek has threeereemsindoor facilities that are available for use
by the public. This policy establishes consistent procedures for granting use of
these rooms, prioritizing user groups, specifying deposit and fee schedules, and
establishing administrative rules.


2.0 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED:
Alldepartments/divisions.


3.0 REFERENCE:
- MCMC 3.42: Fees and Other Assessments
- MCMC 12.08: Special Event Permits


4. POLICY


4.1 The following procedures will be used by all City staff for scheduling, approving
and facilitating use of the City of MillCreek's indoor facilities.


4.2 In order to prevent any appearance of violation of any state law regulating
political campaigns, City facilities will not be available for use in connection with
any particular campaign for office or regarding a particular side of a ballot
measure. This restriction shall not apply to forums where representatives of each
candidate or campaign are included.


4.3 Permission to use the facilities does not constitute an endorsement of a group's
philosophies, policies or beliefs.


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 114 of 153







33.99 I?


5.0 DEFINITIONS:


5.1


5.2


5.3


5.4


5.5


5.6


5.7


5.8


5.9


Applicant:The individual or organization requesting use of a City facility.
Applicants must be 21 years of age or older.


City: The City of MillCreek, including any office, department, division, board,
committee or other entity therein.


City Manager: The city's chief executive officer.


Everett School District: The public school district that provides educational
services for MillCreek residents.


Priority Ranking: The order by which users are granted room access, as
identi?ed in section 6.1.


Recreation Office: The City office that is responsible for receiving, approving
and facilitating indoor facility use requests.


Resident: A person whose primary residence is within the City of MillCreek
boundanes.


Responsible Party: The person directly responsible for informing team coaches,
representatives, and participants of the MillCreek Sports Park policy and for
ensuring payment of all fees assessed for field rentals and usage.


User: The individualor organization that uses a City indoor facility.


6.0 PROCEDURES:


6.1 Users:


6.1.1 First Priorig: City-sponsored or co-sponsored activities/and or
meetings shall have priority of use for rooms at all times.


6.1.2 Second Priority:


6.1.2.a Activities sponsored by other governmental jurisdictions;
such as the library, city or county agencies, or Everett
Public Schools.


6.1.2.b Mill Creek 50l(c)3 non-profit organizations, MillCreek
homeowner associations, educational, recreational, or
community service activities or organizations
(documentation may be required).


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 115 of 153







6.2


6.3


6.1.3


Page |3


6.1 .20 Educational, recreational or community service activities
offered by private schools within a five—mi|e radius of the
City.


6.1.2.d Meetings of or by ad—hoc groups of Mill Creek residents for
which no fee is charged for participation.


Third Priority:


6.1.3.a Business meetings, birthda\Lparties, workshops, baby showers,
or other functions sponsored by a private group or individual
where no fee is charged for participation. This includes gNon-
Pprofits and homeowner groups not based in Mill Creek.


6.1.3.b Activities for which a fee is charged for participation.


6.1.3.0 Others not qualifying for first or second priority.


Available Facilities: The City of Mill Creek designates the following facility
areas as available to the public:


Council Chambers, maximum capacity 74 énetseitaleleienusewvith
ehiJ,elren9
City Hall North Small Community Room, maximum capacity 43
City Hall North Large Community Room, maximum capacity 120
City Hall North Conference Room. maximum capacity 16
City Hall North Room 216, maximum capacity 20


Room Reservations:


6.3.1


6.3.2


6.3.3


6.3.4


6.3.5


To reserve a room, a reservation form éavailableatet-heirenteeunter
at—Gity—l=lall7mustbe completed, signed and returned with the
appropriate fee no later than one (1) week prior to the scheduled
event. The form is available online at
www.cityofmillcreek.com/rental or in the Recreation Office of City


Hall North (15720 Main St).


Reservations are accepted on a first paid/first served basis. Until
payment is received the room is not reserved.


If two (2) reservations are received at the same time forthe same
date, the priority ranking will prevail.


No first-time reservation by a user will be made or accepted by
telephone orfax.


Applicants must be at least21 years of age. Proof of age may be required.


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 116 of 153







6.4


6.3.§5


6.3.6]


6.3.8


6.3.9


6.3.10


6.3.10


Page |4


First Priority users may schedule use of a room up to six (6) months
prior to the event. SeeeHeH3rierityLusePs—may—sehedul<=Luseef—a+eem
e t le
%eem%emap% mh A|| other reservations
may be made a maximum of three (3) months prior to the desired
date.


Ifyeu—an applicant must cancel yeur—a_n_eventfor which a reservation
has been secured, the applicant shallplease notify City Hall as soon as
possible so the room can be made available for another group.


When notice of cancellation is received at least one week in advance
of reservation date, a full rental fee will be refunded. No refund will be
made when notice of cancellation is received less than one week
prior to the reservation date.


Under certain conditions, the City may be forced to cancel a
reservation prior to an event or activity. Possible reasons for
cancellation include, but are not limited to. a declared state of
emerqency, unsafe environmental or health conditions. or interrupted
utility services. The City will attempt to notify the applicant as soon as
possible if such cancellation occurs. All fees paid to the City by the
applicant shall be refunded to the applicant if the reservation is
cancelled by the City for any of the above reasons.


The City shall not be held responsible or liable for any damages


caused as a result of the cancellation of the event.


Unless written approval has been qranted, no qroup usinq City


facilities will be allowed to use the City logo or imply in any way that
the City is a sponsor/co—sponsor of the event or activity.


Rental Fees / Damaqe Deposits: All rental fees and/or damage deposits
must be paid in full at the time of reservation. Fees are identified below by
user group.


6.4.1 First priority users pay no rental fee or damage deposit.


6.4.2 Second priority users:


6.4.2.a Second priority users rate schedule is as follows:


After Hours**
No Charge


$40.00 per hour
$56.00 per hour
$25.00 per hour


Daytime*
No Charge


$24.00 per hour
$36.00 per hour


Not Available


Rooms Rates
Council Chambers
Small Community Room
Large Community Room
City Hall North Conference
Room


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 117 of 153







6.5


Page |5


City Hall North Room 216 $10.00 oer hour $25.00 per hour


*8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday
** 5:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, and 8 a.m. to 10
p.m. Saturday and Sunday


6.4.3 T1ird priority users:


6.4.3.a Third priority users rate schedule is as follows:


Rooms Rates Daytime* After Hours**
Council Chambers No Charge No Charge
Small Community Room $30.00 per hour $45.00 per hour
Large Community Room $50.00 per hour $70.00 per hour
City Hall North Conference Not Available $30.00 per hour
Room
City__Ha|lNorth Room 216 $15.00 per hour $30.00 oer hour


*8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday
** 5:00 p.m. to 10:00 p. m. Monday through Friday, and 8 a.m. to 10
p.m. Saturday and Sunday


6.4.4 The reservation fee for all applicants will include a refundable
damage/cleaning deposit of$75.00, or refundable damage/cleaning
deposit of $150.00 if group is serving food and/or beverages.


6.4.5 Rentals are hourly and may be extended in 15-minute increments. Set-
up and clean-up time shall be factored into the rental time.


6.4.6 Payment methods accepted are: Visa/MasterCard, cash, check or
money order.


6.4.7 Only rooms requested on the reservation application, as well as
restrooms. are to be used.


6.4.8 Facilities and equipment both inside and outside the facility shall be left
in the same condition as found prior to the activity or event. The cost of
cleaninq or repairs required of City staff as a result of the event will be
subtracted from the damaqe/cleaninq deposit, with a minimum of a $25
charge.


Liability Insurance:


6.5.1 In mostcircumstances the City will require thatall third priority groups
obtain Tenant/User Program liability insurance, with a $1 million per
occurrence limit and it must name the City of Mill Creek as an
additional insured. Depending on the activities, first and second


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 118 of 153







6.5.2


6.5.3


Page [6


priority groups may be required to obtain tenant/user liability
insurance.


User shall provide the City with a certificate of insurance coverage no
less than fourteen (14) days in advance of the rental date(s). Failure
to obtain required insurance is grounds for forfeiture of the rental fee
and use of the facility.


For those users who do not have liability insurance for their event, the
City can provideassistance in applying for this coverage.


6.6 Damage;


6.6.1


6.6.2


6.6.3


Users of City facilities are financially responsible for any damage to
property or loss of property. A fee equal to the total replacement cost
will be charged.


The applicants shall be required to pay the full cost of breakage,
damage or loss to City facilities and/or equipment, reqardless of
amount. Up to a 15% administrative fee may be added to the actual
expenses and an hourly fee will be charqed for repairs that are
reguired as a result of damage.


Failure to remit the required payment shall bar the applicant from any


further use of the facility. Any amount unpaid for more than 60 days


will be turned over to a collection aqency.


6.7 Administrative Rules:


6.7.1


6.7.2


6.7.3


6.7.4


6.7.5


6.7.6


6.7.7


Use/possession of alcoholic beverages and/or narcotics is prohibited
in City facilities.


Smoking is prohibited in and within twenty-five (25) feet of City
facilities.


Use of an open flame is prohibited within City facilities.


Allevents shall meet the occupancy load and fire and safety requlations


of the City and the State of Washington.


Use of inflatables and amusement rides within City facilities is prohibited.


Persons who are loud, disorderly and/or abusive to other users of
the facility, equipment, or the facility itself will be asked to leave.


Users are responsible for bringing their own linen, coffee pots,
dishes, utensils, and other equipment. Tablecloths are strongly


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 119 of 153







6.7.8


6.7.9


6.7.10


6.7.11


6.7.12


6.7.13


6.7.14


6.715


Page |7


recommended to protect tables, especially when sewing food
and/or drink.


Users are responsible for their own setup and cleanup, which
includes wiping down and returning tables and chairs to their pre-
event location, and cleaning spills. Reasonable cleaning supplies
and trash receptacles will be provided. All setup and cleanup must
be completed within the time designated of the rental.


Confetti is prohibited.


Animals and pets are prohibited (exceptions: service animals, or
when scheduled for recreation/activity programs).


Groups composed of minors shall be supervised by adults (21
years of age or older) at all times while using City facilities.


No items may be stored in a City of MillCreek facility without
explicit approval by the Recreation Office.


The City is not responsible for loss or theft of articles during the
rental of City facilities and/or left in the facility.


The City reserves the right to waive, reduce or increase rental
fees, damage deposits, or liability insurance as determined
necessary by the City Manager to carry out the purpose and
intent ofthis policy and/or safeguard City personnel, property
and facilities.


The City reserves the sole right to deny requests for room use
dueto maintenance or security concerns, inappropriate use of
City facilities, or other reasons as appropriate. For additional
information about this policy, please contact the Recreation
Office at (425) 745-1891.


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 120 of 153







ORDINANCE NO. 2019-


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON,
AMENDING THE MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 3.42.230
COMMUNITY ROOM USE CHARGES; AND ESTABLISHING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.


WHEREAS, the Mill Creek Municipal Code section 3.42 establishes fees and other


assessments for the City of Mill Creek (“City”); and


WHEREAS, MCMC section 3.42.230 addresses miscellaneous fees, including those for


City facility rental rates; and


WHEREAS, additional rooms at City Hall North are available for public use during


certain hours; and


WHEREAS, the City desires to be consistent in specifying deposit and fee schedules;


NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK,
WASHINGTON, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:


A. Modify MCMC Section 3.42.230.A.1.a.iias follows:


Rooms Rates Daytime After Hours
Council Chambers No Charge No Charge
Small Community Room $24.00 gr hour $40.00 per hour
Large Community Room $36.00 per hour $56.00 per hour


City Hall North Conference Not Available
Room


$25.00 per hour


City Hall North Room 216 $10.00 per hour $25.00 per hour


B. Modify MCMC Section 3.42.230.A.l.a.iii as follows:


Not AvailableCity Hall North Conference


Rooms Rates Daytime After Hours


Council Chambers No Charge No Charge
Small Community Room $30.00 per hour $45.00 per hour
Large Community Room $50.00 per hour $70.00 per hour


$30.00 per hour


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 121 of 153







Room
City Hall North Room 216 $l5.0(Lper hour $30.00 per hour


C. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect live clays after publication of a
summary hereof consisting of the title of this Ordinance, in accordance with RCW
35A.I3.200.


Adopted this day of , 2019, by a Vote of for,
against, and abstaining.


APPROVED:


MAYOR PAM PRUITT


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


GINA PFISTER, CITY CLERK


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SCOTT M. MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:


PUBLISHED:


EFFECTIVE DATE:


ORDINANCE NO.:


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municip... Page 122 of 153







Date: February 26, 2019


é
Mi11€TE7e


WASHINGTON


A/P Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
01/30/2019 59812-59848 $577,100.17
01/31/2019 ACH Debit-Leasehold Excise Tax—Q4 $4,783.06
02/14/2019 59849-59907 $173,077.68


Total $754,960.91


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of check
numbers 59812 through 59907, and ACH in the amount of $754 960.91.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember


Councilmember


F'\DATA\EXECUTIVE\Wl’\FORMS\FIN\V0uchcr Approval Ldoc


D" ect
_


,


1m City Manage;V


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 123 of 153







My DOR Page 1 of]


Business Licensing and Taxes << MyDOR Services


Period Payment Weicume, Sandra Kollke seuangs Help Log Out


Home Select Tax Account Manage Payments and Returns Leasehold Dec-31-2018 Period Payment


* Period Payment @ Applies To History


C|TY OF MILLCREEK Dec-31-2018 4.75105 Source
503-DOD-685


Posted : Jan-31-2019


Contact Us View support ID wwu! bv
_


Securefuzoess
Washington».m Access other Siaie Agencies


Was!u‘ngtcnState
Your Privacy | Acczss Agreement


a 2019 Wawingmn Sui: mpamuem al Revenue
am us amm-
anmm Ielervzd


Wonking together to fund Washington's future


https://secure.dor.wa. gov/atlaseservices/wtp/J 2/5/2019


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 124 of 153







Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date


User:


Printed:


Check No


59812


59813


59814


59815


59816


59817


59818


59819


59820


59821


Jodieg


2/21/2019 9:54 AM


Vendor No


Invoice No


91 ISUPPL
69973


ADPLLC
529152814


ALTECIND
50346724


AMTESTIN
108613


108767


ASNIPERA
Targets


AWC


02/2019


BANKCARE


1
7


BESTTREE
010819-3


BANKCR26
1


BANKCR27
1


Von dor Nu me


Description


911 Supply inc
1-L/S S1url—RMundwilcr


ADP, LLC
ADPA1’ayml1Scr\'iccs—\VnrkforccNew 01/15


Allec lnzinslries Inc
Lift Assembly ConIro11cr—PW8


Am Test, inc
5-Fecal Colifnrm Analysis


5-Fecal Coliform Analysis


American Sniper Association
150 Counl Snipe-rcra?QualTzirgeis/1-50Counl


AWC Employee Bene?t Trust


R Polirzulto COBRA—Fe17ruaryPayment


Bank ofAn1erica
MyBnildingl"crmiLeornMonthly Fee


Digital Marketing Cunt"Fec-G Brink


Best Tree Service
1-‘a1lcn'l‘ree~Nickc1Creek Park Property


Business Card


SHRM Mcinbersllip-12/01-l l/30-HR


Business Card
Mail Evidence to Crimc Luh


CITY 017


Mi11C
WASHINGTON


/Kl"? ”


reek
Check Date


Reference


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59812:


01/30/2019


Tmal for Check Number 59813:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59814:


01/30/2019


Tolal for Check Number 59815:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59816:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59817:


01/30/2019


Tulzil for Check Number 59818:


01/30/2019


Tom] for Check Number 59819:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59820:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59821:


Void Checks


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


Check Amount


117.57


117.57


473.70


473.70


1,803.10


1,803.10


125.00


200.00


325.00


83.90


83.90


1,282.96


1,282.96


59.95


295.00


354.95


2,070.00


2.070.00


189.00


189.00


37.41


37.41


AP Checks by Dixie - Detail by Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 1


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 125 of 153







Check No Vendor No


Invoice No


Void Checks Check Amount


59822


59823


59824


59825


59826


59827


59828


59829


59830


59831


59832


59833


59834


CIEDMOND
RGG-190012


CITYLYN
15127


COPIETC
AR382 l 7


MOCKINGJ
MCFM2019


EMSECDEP
000-945199-10-6


NWPLGDEC
43694


FCSGROUP
2923-21901048


HARBORPC
No. 7


HARISUZU
FOCS485985


Heidis
1-117


KPFFCON
244902


249247


ELLITIRE
064462005636
064462005654


POSTNET


Vendor Name Check Date


Description Reference


City of Edmonds 01/30/2019
North Sound Metro SWAT Team 2019 Contribut


Total for Check Number 59822:


City of Lynnwood 01/30/2019


Jail Room & Board-Dec 2018


Total for CheckNumber 59823:


Copiers Etcetera, Inc. 01/30/2019


Repairs& Maint—CopyMachines


Total for Check Number 59824:


Sarah Dylan 01/30/2019
Pre-season Farmers MarketTasks


Total for Check Number 59825:


Employment Security Depart 01/30/2019
Unemployment Claims-4thQtr2018


Total for Check Number59826:


NorthwestPlayground Equipment, Inc. 01/30/2019
Replacement Spring Retro Kit-Freddy Fire Trucl


Total for Check Number 59827:


FCS Group 01/30/2019
Prof Serv-Surface Water Rate Study Rendered to


Total for Check Number 59828:


Harbor Paci?c Contractors, Inc 01/30/2019
35th Ave Reconstruction12/02-12/22


Total for Check Number 59829:


Harris Isuzu 01/30/2019
Replace Fuel Injector Nozzle, Fuel Filter-PW6


Total for Check Number 59830:


Heidi's Place Custom Picture Framing 01/30/2019
5-Historical PreservationProject Framing


Total for Check Number 59831:


KPFF Consulting Engineers 01/30/2019
Prof Serv 35th Ave Recon I0/29-11/30


Prof Serv 35th Ave Recon l2/01-12/28


Total for Check Number 59832:


PepBoys-Remittance Dept 01/30/2019
LOF, Replace Ignition Coil-Car #42


LOF, Tire Rotation-Car#40


Total for Check Number 59833:


PostNet 01/30/2019


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


2,201.49


2,201.49


3,831.33


3,831.33


1,153.68


l,l53.68


1,800.00


1,800.00


1I,304.36


11,304.36


1,108.64


1,108.64


2,500.00


2,500.00


503,674.36


503,674.36


4,372.43


4,372.43


475.67


475.67


1,213.80


602.06


1,815.86


789.12


75.54


864.66


AP Checksby Date - Detail by CheckDate (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 2


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 126 of 153







Check No Vendor No


Invoice No


Vendor Name


Description
Check Date


Reference


Void Checks Check Amount


59835


59836


59837


59838


59839


59840


59841


59842


59843


59844


395745


SNOCPUD
200154458


201948601
202212361


202461042


202667499


203164694
203348081
203388152
221897242


PITNEYW
800090000046343


R&T Hood
B2018-0754
B2018-0754a
B2018-0754b


B2018-0754c


RDAYARTS
6959


RKSOLID
6919


SHREDIT
8126411518


SNOCOSHI
2019-4853


SNOSDIST
5991800024


STARDMSV
012167-IN
012167-lNa


VANHOLLT


Scanning-PRA#3292


PUD No. 1 of SnohomishCounty
2720 Seattle Hill Rd 12/11-01/08


13903N Creek Dr 12/15-01/15


928 Dumas Rd 12/15-01/15


1580332ndAve SE 12/11-01/09


2024 Seattle Hill Rd 12/11-01/08


13510N Creek Dr 12/15-01/15


1481035thAve SE 12/O8-01/08


15429Bothell Everett Hwy 12/08-01/10


1410035th Ave SE 12/l 1-01/1|


Purchase Power
Postage-Re?ll Postage Machine


R&T Hood and Duct Services, Inc
Refund Plan Review Fees B2018-0754


Technology Fee B2018-0754


State Surcharge B2018-0754


Building Permit B2018-0754


Rainy Day Art StudioLLC
ExploreArt! 01/09-01/30 #6959


Rock Solid Learning LLC
Marvelous Minerals01/26 #6919


Shred-It USA Inc
Shredding Service Fee


Snohomish County Treasurer
Inmate Medical Billing-Dec


SnohomishSchool Dist No. 201


Total for Check Number 59834:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59835:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59836:


01/30/2019


Total for CheckNumber 59837:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59838:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59839:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number59840:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59841:


01/30/2019
Bus-Drive Glacier Peak HS Band to Veterans Pa:


Stardom Services Inc
January Services-C1-1S-January


January Services-CHN-January


Tenille Van Hollebeke


Total for Check Number 59842:


01/30/2019


Total for Check Number 59843:


01/30/2019


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


50.63


50.63


15.66
782.05
146.63


103.40


33.87
52.43
66.35


35.99
125.38


1,361.76


2,500.00


2,500.00


98.38


10.49
25.00


251.35


385.22


269.50


269.50


126.00


126.00


73.39


73.39


16.99


16.99


195.74


195.74


995.00
1,184.13


2,179.13


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 3


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 127 of 153







Check No Vendor No


Invoice No


Void Checks Check Amount


59845


59846


59847


59848


59849


59850


59851


59852


59853


59854


6979


VERIZON
9822619456


'


W%ALARM
452317


4523l7a
4523l7b
452317c
4523l7d
4523l7e


4523l7f


454739


WAVEDIV
07714380


WHPACIFI
IN69474W


91lSUPPL
70138


70583


ADPLLC
529893269


AFSCME
January


ALLBATRY
800-10043341


BANKCR24
1


BANKCR26
1


Vendor Name Check Date


Description Reference


CupcakeClass: Melting Snowman 01/19 #6979


Total for CheckNumber 59844:


Verizon Wireless 01/30/2019
Access & Usage Chgs 12/2|-01/20-City Cell Phc


Total for Check Number59845:


Washington Alarm 01/30/2019
lst QtrMonitoringChgs-CHS


lst QtrMonitoring Chgs-PD Storage


1stQtrMonitoring Chgs-Cook House


1stQtrMonitoring Chgs-Library


1stQtrMonitoringChgs-CHN


1stQtrMonitoring Chgs-MCSP


lst QtrMonitoring Chgs-Cook House PD


ServiceCall 01/24-ReplacedAntenna-CHN


Total for Check Number 59846:


WaveDivision Holdings, LLC 01/30/2019
Fiber Lease-15728Main St-To 3000 Rockefeller


Total for Check Number 59847:


WHPaci?c, Inc 01/30/2019
Prof Serv-Seattle Hill Rd PreservationThru 01/1


Total for Check Number 59848:


Total for 1/30/2019:


911 Supply Inc 02/14/2019


1Color Stripes-THughes


3 Name TapesNe1cro/PatchInstallation-TMarks


Total for Check Number 59849:


ADP. LLC 02/14/2019
ADP-PayrollServices-WorkforceNow Ol/31


Total for Check Number 59850:


WSCCCE, AFSCME, AFL-CIO 02/14/2019


Union Dues-AFSCME-Jan


Total for Check Number 59851:


All Battery Sales & Service 02/14/2019
1 12V 560CCA Battery


Total for Check Number 59852:


Business Card 02/I4/2019


PWJob Postings


Total for Check Number59853:


Business Card 02/14/2019
Getting Digi With It Workshop 0|/24-G P?stcr


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


122.50


122.50


2,039.27


2,039.27


162.00


120.00


75.00
159.00
258.00
60.00


114.00
240.85


1,188.85


629.28


629.28


24,121.84


24,121.84


577,100.17


6.60
57.41


64.01


473.70


473.70


1,166.61


1,166.61


195.25


195.25


200.00


200.00


75.00


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 4


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 128 of 153







Check No Vendor No


Invoice No


Cheek Date


Reference
Vendor Name


Description


Void Checks Check Amount


59855


59856


59857


59858


59859


59860


59861


59862


59863


QLh&bJ1\J


BANKCR27
I
10


\O®\lO\C.\Lh¥~bJI\l---9 |\)--


BICKFORD
862174


BRIDPETS
PO# 00099


CBALDDES
Parks & Trails


CIEDMOND
RGG-190020


CINTAS
4016014396
40 I60 14396a


Connie
6923


CRIMESTP
2019 Fee


DATAQST


SCC MembershipMtg 01/ 17-M Todd


Cake-Retirement Celebration-LOrlando
RegistrationFee-City ActionDays 2019- M Tod:


2018 Nachtmann Calypso Crystal Vase-Employe


EconomicAlliance-EconomicForecast 02/20-P 1


Total for Check Number 59854:


Business Card 02/14/2019
Collective Bargaining& ArbitrationConf- 03/28


Universal Car Cover,Universal Truck SUV Cove


1-Whirlpool20 CuFt Wide Top Freezer Refriger.


CPRO Recertification-J Lee


PRA and OPMA Case Law Update Webinar 01/2


Impact Munitions Instructor Course-B Foutch &


ExtendedProtection Plan- Multi Component Mo


2-30" x 60" 16-Gauge Stainless Steel Equipment
2-2019 [APE AnnualMembership Dues-L Pigotl


1-2019 IAPE Membership-SEastmann


UPS Charges-WSP Latent Lab


3 Under Cabinet Lights-EvidenceRoom


Computer MonitorMount-EvidenceRoom


Total for Check Number 59855:


Bickford Ford 02/ 14/2019
MultiPoint Inspection,LOF, Wiper Blades-Bldg


Total for Check Number 59856:


Bridges Pets 02/14/2019
Victor Ultra Pro Dog Food-Bagira


Total for Check Number 59857:


Christopher Baldwin Design 02/14/201_9
Graphic Design-City of Mill Creek Parks & Trai


Total for Check Number 59858:


City of Edmonds 02/14/2019


DomesticViolence Coordinator-Feb


Total for Check Number 59859:


Cintas CorporationLoc. #460 02/14/2019


Floor Mat Service02/01


Floor Mat Service 02/01


Total for Check Number 59860:


Connie Lewis 02/14/2019
Babysitting Safety Class 01/29-0|/31


Total for Check Number 59861:


Crime Stoppers of Puget Sound 02/14/2019
Crimestoppers Agreement Fee 01/01/19-12/31/1


Total for Check Number 59862:


DataQuest,LLC 02/14/2019


45.00
21.99


200.00


40.83
40.00


0.00 422.82


350.00
160.92


746.41
50.00


35.00
550.00


9.69


596.52
100.00
50.00
17.31


248.07
928.12


0.00 3,842.04


72.36


0.00 72.36


78.53


0.00 78.53


500.00


0.00 500.00


1,176.72


0.00 1,176.72 »


96.19


56.03


0.00 152.22


245.00


0.00 245.00


1,006.64


0.00 |.006.64


AP Cheeks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 5


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 129 of 153







Check No Vendor No


Invoice No


Void Checks Check Amount


59864


59865


59866


59867


59868


59869


59870


59871


59872


59873


59874


7040


Drivers
7505 I4


FBILEEDA
200026692
200026693


FELDMAJ
January 2019


FRSTLNCM
M8265


HORIZON
ZMO78708


HUIK
7006
7007


7012


INTEGRA
15877988


Keeney
99 l270-0


Kristoph
1219


LESSCI-IW
39500429358
39500430088


LynnMoto
QMM9632


Vendor Name Check Date


Description Reference


BackgroundCheck-D Volk


Total for Check Number59863:


Drivers License Guide Company 02/ 14/2019
2019 ID Checking Guide-Passports


Total for Check Number 59864:


FBI-LEEDA 02/l4/2019
SLI-Marsyville, WA 06/2019-Class1-RFleming


CLI-Marysville, WA 09/2019-Class2-R Fleming


Total for Check Number 59865:


Feldman & Lee, P.S. 02/14/2019
PublicDefender Contract Flat Fee-Jan


Total for Check Number59866:


Firstline CommunicationsInc 02/14/2019
Software Assurance-l2 Month Renewal 02/03/15


Total for Check Number 59867:


HorizonDistributors Inc 02/14/2019
140a! Backpack Sprayer Piston


Total for Check Number 59868:


Kelly Hui 02/14/20l9
Ballet: Creative 01/12-02109#7006


Ballet:Creative 01/12-02/09 #7007


Ballet: Beginning01/ 12-02/09 #7012


Total for Check Number 59869:


Allstream 02/l4/2019


T-l MonthlyChgs-Feb


Total for Check Number 59870:


Keeney's Office Supply, Inc. 02/14/2019
8 - Intensive Use Chairs-TaskChair-PD Patrol A


Total for CheckNumber59871:


CantrellOutdoors, LLC 02/14/2019
.308 Scoped Sniper Ri?e Platform-SWAT


Total for Check Number 59872:


Les Schwab 02/14/2019
4 - QuickFit Light Truck Chains-PD


2 Tires-PW2


Total for Check Number 59873:


Lynnwood Motoplex 02/14/2019


1 - 2017 BMW Motorcycle WBl0Al308HZ399t


Total for Check Number 59874:


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


8l.00


81.00


29.95


29.95


695.00


695.00


l,390.00


9,000.00


9,000.00


2,755.58


2,755.58


138.54


138.54


210.00


126.00


462.00


798.00


680.41


680.41


4,924.02


4,924.02


6,700.00


6,700.00


456.88


441.35


898.23


27,429.24


27,429.24


AP Checks by Date - Detailby Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 6


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 130 of 153







Check No Vendor No
Invoice No


Void Checks Check Amount


59875


59876


59877


59878


59879


59880


59881


59882


59883


59884


59885


MCROTARY
101


National
110586606


NickEric
02/1 1


OLDDOMB
6475227


()h4\hUAJ'T


820740
820743
820745


820746


820747
820748


820749


OREILLY
2986193128


2986-193167


2986-193852


2986- l93852a
2986-194551


PHILPUB
150


233


PILCHVT
74827


PLANTSCP
47752E


PLATT
U320l48


RAMERJ


Vendor Name Check Date


Description Reference


Rotary Club of Mill Creek 02/14/2019
Sponsorshipfor 2nd Annual Community Engage


Total for Check Number59875:


National Pen Co. LLC 02/14/2019
200 - City of Mill Creek Alpha Soft TouchPen in


Total for Check Number 59876:


Nick Erickson 02/l4/2019
Payroll Retro Pay 12/08-01/15, Payroll 01/16/19


Total for CheckNumber 59877:


Old DominionBrush 02/14/2019
20 GB Regular Hexnuts, 1 Rub Curtn-Street Swc


Total for Check Number 59878:


Ogden Murphy Wallace Attorneys 02/ 14/2019
Prof Legal Services-Council-Dec
Prof Legal Services-Exec-Dec
Prof Legal Services-HR LEOFF Board-Dec


Prof Legal Services-MartinSuit-Dec


Prof Legal Services-Police-Dec
Prof Legal Services-City Clerk-Dec


Prof Legal Services-RP Investigation/Complaint:


Total for Check Number 59879:


O'Reilly AutomotiveInc 02/14/2019
3- 5QtMotoroil, Oil Filter


6 - SQtmotoroil,Oil Filter


Shop Supplies


Battery Charger


Motor Oil & Oil Filter- SuppliesOil Changes Sn


Total for Check Number59880:


Philips Publishing 02/14/2019
SproutsAd-Mill Creek City ConnectionMagazii


Passport Ad-SnohomishQuarterly MagazineWin


Total for Check Number59881:


Pilchuck Vet Hospital 02/14/2019


Rx: ApoquelTab, Rx: SimparicaChew-Bagira


Total for Check Number 59882:


PlantscapesHorticultural Services 02/14/2019
Landscape Off Season Work-Jan


Total for Check Number 59883:


Platt Electric Supply, Inc 02/ 14/2019
Light Motion Senor-CHS


Total for Check Number 59884:


Jon Ramer 02/14/2019


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


250.00


250.00


197.34


197.34


248.41


248.41


2,946.39


2,946.39


1,242.41


325.00
260.00


65.00
727.50
842.50


65.00


3,527.41


85.15


170.30
24.05


165.58


71.15


516.23


900.00


160.00


1,060.00


416.07


416.07


49.69


49.69


76.01


76.01


AP Checksby Date - Detail by Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 7


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 131 of 153







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


2019-02 Consulting Services-MemorialDay Parade 2,ooo_oo


Total for Check Number 59885: 0.00 2,000.00


59886 RONGERJ John Rongerude P.S. 02/14/2019
8945 Conflict Public Defender821172866 300,00


'


Total for Check Number 59886: 0.00 300.00


59887 SEADAIJ Daily Journal of Commerce 02/14/2019
3344450 CN: Land Use Subarea Plan 02/04 208.80


Total for CheckNumber 59887: 0.00 208.80


59888 SHI S1-11International Corp 02/ 14/2019
B09445859 2 Fujitsu 11-7030Document Scanner S/N#ATNH 1,431.07


Total for Check Number 59888: 0.00 1,431.07


59889 SILVERL Silverlake Water District 02/14/2019
14112-27585 132nd& SR 5271rrig 01/01-01/31 7.60


14737-19068 1361728th Dr SE Irrig 01/01-01/31 7.60


17679-27345 15429 1/2 BothcllEvcrctt Hwy 01/01-01/31 7.60


Total for Check Number 59889: 0.00 22.80


59890 SIXROBLE Six Robb1ees'Inc. 02/ 14/2019


14-379870 4-Ratchet Binder, 2-Binder Chain 297.02


Total for Check Number 59890: 0.00 297.02


59891 SMARS1-1 Smarsh Inc 02/14/2019
INV00460810 Text Archiving Platform-VerizonMonthly 01/01. 273.72


1NV00460810a Use Tax-Text Archiving Platfonn-VerizonMonti -10.92


Total for CheckNumber 59891: 0.00 262.80


59892 SNDPUBIN Sound Publishing inc 02/ 14/2019
ED1-1842475 Pub of Ord No. 2018-844 29.24


Total for Check Number 59892: 0.00 29.24


59893 SNOCOM Snohomish County 911 02/14/2019
1130 Dispatch Service-February 19,690.67


1188 Annual Radio System Assessment 2019 $7,140.84


Total for Check Number 59893: 0.00 76,831.51


59894 SNOCPUD PUD No. 1 of Snohomish County 02/ 14/2019
200743599 Street Lights-189 Lights-200W 01/01-01/31 1,736.91


200797223 3401 148th St SE 12/20-01/22 142.76


201345386 2501 147th Pl SE 12/20-01/18 54.94


201367745 902 164th St SE 12/07-01/08 44.80


201663515 14600 16th Ave SE 0|/03-02/01 23.85


201669280 16110 1/2 29th Dr SE 12/26-01/25 31.07


201781135 2701 155th St SE 0|/03-01/30 113.51


201898053 1700 Mill Creek Rd 12/22-01/23 97.64


202570776 Street Lights-87 Lights-250W01/01-01/31 942.21


202624391 Street Lights-841 Lights-100W 01/01-01/31 6,021.56


202909941 Street Lights-6 Lights-150W01/01-01/31 28.98


202926333 Hill Side Park 12/29-01/28 16.74


203251632 15510Village Green DR 01/03-01/30 15.12


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 8


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 132 of 153







Check No Vendor No
Invoice No


Vendor Name


Description
Check Date


Reference


Void Checks Check Amount


59895


59896


59897


59898


59899


59900


59901


59902


59903


59904


59905


59906


205087232
205495328


221897242


SNOKING
65048


STAND
6001 156-0001


STAND2
600 156-0002


STERICYC
3004568825


TACSCREW
18229826


T1-IORBAR1v
81144


TLOLLC
839489


UNWAYSNC
02/13


USBANK
XXXXXXX139


UULC
9010187


9010187a


WASTPAT
119005184


Z01-IO


Street Lights-17 Lights-100W01/01-01/31


Street Lights-49Lights-20W 01/01-01/31


1410035th Ave SE 01/12-02/06


Sno-King Stamp, Inc.
1 Name Plate-CouncilmemberS Vignal


’


Standard Ins. Company RA
Life.AD & D & LTD Prem-MEBT-ER-Feb


Standard lns. Company RA
Survivor Prem~MEBT-ERPaid-Feb


Stericycle Inc
Biomedical Waste Services-Monthly Fee


Tacoma Screw Products Inc


Total for Check Number 59894:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59895:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59896:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59897:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59898:


02/14/2019


25 SS Hex Cap Screws.1 Pr Themian Knit Late:


Thorson Barnett & McDonald,P.C.
Prof Serv-EPCRS Review 01/03-01/30


TransUnionRisk and Alternative
Background/IdentityInvestigations-Jan


United Way of SnohomishCounty


United Way EE for February 2019


US Bank NA - Custody
investment Custody Charges 01/01-01/31


UtilitiesUndergroundLocation Center
On-CallLocation Service-130Locates


On-CallLocation Service-130Locates


Washington State Patrol
Background Checks-Jan


ZOHO Corporation


Total for Check Number 59899:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59900:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59901:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59902:


02/14/201 9


Total for Check Number 59903:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59904:


02/14/2019


Total for Check Number 59905:


02/14/2019


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


52.87
17.15


101.92


9,442.03


14.50


14.50


3,838.31


3,838.31


2,018.56


2,018.56


10.36


10.36


17.70


17.70


408.00


408.00


55.20


55.20


242.00


242.00


30.00


30.00


83.85
83.85


167.70


92.75


92.75


AP Cheeks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 9


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 133 of 153







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


2216275 Subscription Fee-ADAudit Plus-2 File Servers/2 l,429.49


Total for CheckNumber 59906: 0.00 1,429.49


59907 ZUMAR Zumar Industries, Inc. 02/ 14/2019
26517 I - D3-SSWB Street Sign 219.42


Total for Check Number 59907: 0.00 219.42


Total for 2/14/20 I9: 0-00 173.077-63


Report Total (96 checks): 0-00 750.177-85


AP Checksby Date - Detail by Check Date (2/21/2019 9:54 AM) Page 10


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Approval of Checks #59812 through #59907 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 134 of 153







g‘Qh.§___,/.


M11lCfeek
Date: February 26. 2019 W A S H I N G T O N


Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
2/7/2019 ACH Wire—Assoc.of WA Cities $32,795.44
2/8/2019 ACH Automatic Deposit Checks $148,814.25
2/8/2019 ACH Wire—FWT & Medicare Taxes $25,756.73
2/8/2019 ACH Wire MEBT—Wilmington Trust $21,187.60
2/8/2019 ACH Wire—ICMA RC—Def. Comp $l.762.87
2/8/2019 ACH Wire—BAC—Flex Spending Acct $1,778.00
2/8/2019 ACH Wire—BAC—l-lealth Savings Acct $324.98
2/8/2019 ACH Wire—MCPD Guild Dues $2,040.00


Total $284,459.87


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of the
ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of $284 459.87.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember


Councilmember


G:\F|NANCE\Restricted (old I drive)\Payro||\Voucher Coversheets\2019\Payro|l Voucher Approval O2282019.docx
2/22/2019


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $284,459.87 (Audit Com... Page 135 of 153







ASSOCIATIONLOFWASHINGTON CITIES


MILL CREEK, CITY OF


ACCOUNT SUMMARY— contains all changes to this account as of 02/07/2019 10:11 :03 AM


FUND: 100 ACCOUNT NUMBER:186 L


BILLMONTH:
,


02/2019


COVERAGEMONTH: 02/2019


PAYMENTDUE BY: 02/10/2019
CURRENTBILLING AMOUNT: » . $82,795.44


PRIOR OVERAGEOR SHORTAGE: . $0.00
S


ADJUSTMENTS:
b


$0.00


TOTAL_AMOUNTDUE: $82,795.44


100 186 L 022019 0


I


O2/2019 $ 81 7q .Lf ’


If you have questionsconcerning your billing, please contact the Association of Washington Cities Office at


(800) 562-8981 or (360) 753-4137‘or Northwest Administrators, Inc. at (206) 726-3345.


M_AILPAYMENT TO: If payment is made by check, please print a copy of this page and mail it with your payment to the


following address.


ASSOCIATIONOF WASHINGTONCITIES


PO BOX 84303


SEATTLE, WA 98124-5603


Page 1 of3


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $284,459.87 (Audit Com... Page 136 of 153







Io
_.mam


a


2...9..m
.E


_.


855.3
—


.
8.2.m


.E
..


___n_m
_._


=
30...


>
._m


E
E


:m
_m


o=
w


=
E


w


8.2.3.:


m
_x.2.m


.~
am


E
e_.m


_8_E
E


m


:9.
a.


£5
acoz


oo.o
m


u_o>
\>


m
n2n=


2:m
E


.m
:.€<


cod
9.09.0


a___na_._
.850


a
$38


scam
u::ooo<


.=
.._O


>
F


_O
._n_ _u8_non_


uC
:O


F
_<


_$o._.


___n_w
:o .m


am ._30>
-m


w
xm


._.


m
~.E


w
_m


E
E


m
T


oz
..oo<:8.


8
sea.


8_am
m


__:n_
m


._$m
:m


._._..650
2.3.3....


u2_..3
no.8...


.88.
8...


.8...
.o_=


m
_o_oo.._ow


oo.o
.


.
xm


._.wE
oo:_


_m
oo._


cod
.


m
m


-E
o.E


m
m


om
m


<
E


5".
E


ocom
.m


§=
o>


>


oo.o
m


m
-


E
oE


m
m


o$<
9.3".


E
ocm


m
.m


.9_.o>
>


oo.o
T


.
T


T


T


m
m


-xx... ._m
:m


._._.


00..V
O


N
T


T.
m


m
. -
oo:m


=
._m


c_m>
m


m
._ _m


o_um
s_....zm


.w
...w


.m
oF


T...T.\T.
T


m
m


. -
oo:m


5m
c_


m
>


m
m


._ _m
o_um


s_32w
oo.o


T


T


T.


T.


T.
T


m
m


-
oocm


5m
c_


o>
m


o._ >
__E


m
.._32w


.W
T N


m
.m


w
_.T


T
T


.
T.


m
m


-
uocm


S
m


c_
m


>
m


m
._ >


___..:m
n_


28m
85


.
m


m
-as


a__5$_o=
._oE


>
o_aE


m
=


:
22¢


T.


.T
ooT


dT
.T.


.
m


m
-._u<8:25;.


a__3$_n
22m


T.
T


T


TT
T


T
8.o .


T.
m


m ..8.53:.
a___n$_o


22m
.


T
Mcod


m
m


-
._u<m


o:m
5m


:_
E


w
E


>
o_aE


o_5
28w


T.
T.


T


oo.o
m


m
-


oo=
E


=
m


:_
E


w
e:


o_nE
o:3


23m
-


.
oo.o


.
xm


h
oE


oo:_
22w


E
m


sm
m


m coz
oo.o


xm
._.wE


ooc_
28w


8d
xm


._.EoE
>


o_aE
m


_5
_m


..oum
n_


ood
?coeam


m
m


o:£m
_m


m
<


_..::_E
m


._n_$500


8...
m


m
-


._u<xssw
28622


8...
T


m
m


-xssw
98622


2:.
m


m
-._u<98:55.


vm
dm


od
T


m
m


-
e8__8s_


m
m


.w
~o.m


m
m


-
98__8s_


cod
m


m
-_u<a_s8w


_m
_8m


23
m


m
-


a_58m
_«._8m


8...
m


m
-


z__a$
_m


_8w


00.0
m


m
o:m


>
u<H5050


m
E


oo:_
cm


E
m


w
.


xm
05.50:


9.0
0


@
8300


M
Q


X
N


P


m
sm


aoaoB
u


_>
_n_$”o:2§m


Q
m


s_»
S


m
2o~:u8>


E
o


S
om


zgoém
o


m
a


E
om


aoaoém
o


>
m


n_
T


9%
_$>


>


em
aeoo m


_o>
oua....m


.8>
.>


532
oc_8n_


E
ooug?o


8_am
w


xoeo
as.5


:5
-


>
>


o<
é§_soo


E
G


E
E


S
W


_m
o_um


_t3w


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #H


.


Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $284,459.87 (Audit C
om


...
Page 137 of 153







Payment Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kotike, Sandy
Run Date: 02/08/2019 11:56:13 AM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwire


Status:
Transaction Number:


Debit Account Information


Pending Approval
1928C5559BZVOR78


Debit Bankz-
Debit Account?-


Debit Account Name:
Debi! Currency:


Beneficiary Details


Beneficiary Name:
Beneficiary Address:


Beneficiary City:
Beneficiary Postal Code:


Bene?ciary Cou ntry:


Payment Details


Credit Currency:
Credit Amount:


Optional Information


Sendefs Reference Number:


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control Information


Input:


Treas Checking
USD


MATRIXTRUST COMPANY /
NA
NA
NA
US — United States of America


USD /
21,187.60 /


CITY MILLCREEK


sankottke


MerrillLynch


Template Name: MATRIX/MEBT
Template Code: WILTRUST


Beneficiary Account‘
Beneflclary Bank iD:—


JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, NA
1111 POLARIS PKWY
COLUMBUS
US ~ United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Valua Date: 02/08/2019


Beneficiary infonnatlon: Ciiy of MillCreek n3177e


Receiver Information:


Input Time:02/08/2019 11:56:05 AM CST


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $284,459.87 (Audit Com... Page 138 of 153







Payment Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek


Requester: Kottke, Sandy


Run Date: 02/08/2019 11:55:22 AM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Category:UrgentIWire


Status: Pending Approval
Transaction Number: 1928C5502ClOV2R44


Debit Account information


Debit Bank—'
Debit Account:


Dablt Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Beneficiary Details


Beneficiary Name:
Beneficiary Addres . .


Beneficiary City: Baltimore
Beneficiary Postal Code: 212644553


Beneficiary Country: US - Uniled States of America


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD / ,


Credit Amount: 1,762.87


Optional information


sender's Reference Number: 302029


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control Information


Input: sankollke


Bankof America
MerrillLynch


Template Name: ICMA457 Plan
Template Code: ICMA


Beneficiary Account-
Beneficiary Bank lD:—


MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TR C
ONE M AND T PLAZA, 15TH FL
BUFFALO
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Value Date: 02/08/2019 /


Beneficiary Information: City of MillCreek 302029


Receiver Information:


input Time: 02/08/2019 11:55:13 AM CST


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $284,459.87 (Audit Com... Page 139 of 153







RplBatchSumViewF0rm Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 02/08/2019


City of MillCreek Report Time: 12:03:18 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill01 Effective Date: 02/11/2019


ACH ID: F Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAG


Batch Status: Entered Created By: SANKO'|'|'KE


Released By:


Name it; B __c Bank ID Account # ‘Iii: ?ggg


BAC EENEHTADM“
$1,778.00


.7


c j g c
/


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 / 0


Credits $1.778.00 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1,778.00 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


htips://cpo-ach.banko1%merica.com/wcmpr/rptbalchsumviewlbrm.jsp?sourcc=BATCHSUM...2/8/2019


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $284,459.87 (Audit Com... Page 140 of 153







RptBatchSumViewForm


ACH Cash Pro Online


City of Mill Creek


Company Name: City of Mill 01


ACH ID: -0
Application Name:


Batch Status: Entered


Released By:


Name Q


BAC (B:ENEFlTADMIN


/"
Debits


Credits


Prenotes


Debits


Credits


Prenotes


CCD Payments and Collections


Effective Date:


Batch Sequence:


Amount C Bank ID


$324.98


1


Total Amount in Batch


$0.00


$324.98


$0.00


Grand Total Amount


$0.00


$324.98


$0.00


Database Name:


Created By:


Report Date:


Report Time:


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


02/11/2019


2


BAC


SANKOTTKE


Account#


c-ea


Total Count in Batch


0


1


0


Grand Total Count


0


1


O


/


o —«>8‘,,..


Page 1 of 1


02/08/2019


12:04:13 PM


Trace #


https://cpo-ach.bank0famerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewform.jsp?sou1'ce=BATCHSUM...2/8/2019


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $284,459.87 (Audit Com... Page 141 of 153







Payment Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke.Sandy


Run Date: 02/08/2019 11:57:06 AM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Category:UrgentIWire


Status:
Transaction Number:


Debit Account information


Debit Bank:
Debit Accoun


Debit Account Name:
Debit Currency:


Beneficiary Details


Beneficiary Name:
Beneficiary Address:


Beneficiary City:
Beneficiary Postal Code:


Beneficiary Cou ntry:


Payment Details


Credit Currency:
Credit Amount:


Optional information


sender's Reference Number:


Additional Routing


intermediary Bank ID:


Control information


Input:


Pending Approval
1928C56507WTOP45


E.
Treas Checking
USD


MillCreek Police Of?cer Guild
PO Box 13261
MillCreek
98082
US - United Slates of America


USD
2,040.00


/


Police Guild


sankollke


Template Name:
Template Code:


Beneficiary Account
Beneficiary Bank I


Bank ofAmerica
MerrillLynch


GUILD DUES
GUILD


%"
BANKOF AMERICA, NA
1424 164TH ST SW
LYNNWOOD
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Value Date:


Beneficiary Information:


02/08/2019


Police Guild Dues Direct Deposit


Receiver Information:


Input Time: 02/O8/201911256257 AM CST


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $284,459.87 (Audit Com... Page 142 of 153







October 9, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


MINUTES
City Council Regular Meeting
6:00 PM - Tuesday, October 9, 2018
Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
 


 


Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting.


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. 
The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here.


CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE


ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:
Pam Pruitt, Mayor
Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem
Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember
Mike Todd, Councilmember
Mark Bond, Councilmember
Jared Mead, Councilmember
John Steckler, Councilmember


Councilmembers Absent:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
A. There were no comments from the audience. 


STUDY SESSION
B. Surface Water Rate Setting Fundamentals 


 
Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa reviewed the current 
surface water utility rate, the scope of services provided by FCS Group, and the 
surface water aging infrastructure program included in the proposed Capital 
Improvement Program. 
 
Director Hortillosa introduced FCS Group consultants Sergey Tarasov and John 
Ghilarducci who walked Council through a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the 
City's surface water system, surface water rate study steps, capital facility charges, 
and goals of the study. 
 
Council engaged in Q&A with the consultants. 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 9, 2018 Page 143 of 153



https://www.cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2018/Audio%2010-9-18.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/26192





October 9, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


PUBLIC HEARING
C. 2019-2024 Transportation Improvement Plan 


 
Mayor Pruitt opened the Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m. and introduced Director of Public 
Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa who presented a PowerPoint 
presentation that briefed Council on elements of the proposed Transportation 
Improvement Plan including funded and unfunded projects; and funding opportunities. 
 
Mayor Pruitt opened the Public Hearing for comments:
 


1. Wil Nelson, a Mill Creek resident, expressed to Council his lack of 
understanding regarding a need for an Opportunity Fund shown in the 
proposed Capital Improvement Plan and expressed concern over money being 
spent to beautify Mill Creek Blvd instead of putting more money towards 
surface water infrastructure. Mr. Nelson stated he does not want to see the 
pavement cut at 35th & 132nd St SE, and would like to see the County fund 
the proposed HAWK signal on 132nd. 


2. Sherrie Brunsther, a resident of unincorporated Snohomish County introduced 
her 10 year old daughter, Elana, who asked Council to build a sidewalk on the 
east side of Bothell Everett HWY between 173rd and Seattle Hill Road. Ms. 
Brunsther left a handout with the Clerk to be entered into record. 


 
Mayor Pruitt closed the public comment portion of the hearing. 
Mayor Pruitt opened the hearing for discussion among the Council. Council engaged 
in discussion. 
Mayor Pruitt closed the public hearing at 7:40 p.m. 


NEW BUSINESS
D. Adoption of the 2019-2024 Transportation Improvement Program


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to approve Resolution 2018-575 
adopting the 2019-2014 Transportation Improvement Plan for the City of Mill 
Creek as presented with a caveat to amend the description justification for 
project #3. Councilmember Todd seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


E. Surface Water Aging Infrastructure (Grade F Pipe Repairs) Project - Professional 
Services Contract 
 
Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa reviewed findings 
from the Mill Creek Storm Pipe Assessment performed by Perteet that identified pipe 
faults and graded their severity on a 3-tiered level of granularity. 
 
Director Hortillosa explained the scope of work for the surface water aging 
infrastructure professional services contract including tasks, locations, bid schedule, 
repair methods, project schedule, and funding. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 9, 2018 Page 144 of 153



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/26198/10-9-18%202019-2024_TIP_Presentation.pdf

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/27508/10-9-18%20Brunsther%20-%20Audience%20Communication.pdf





October 9, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


Councilmember Cavaleri made a motion to authorize the Interim City Manager to 
execute a contract for professional services of the Surface Water Aging 
Infrastructure (Grade F Pipe Repairs) Project with Perteet, Inc. in an amount not 
to exceed $119,980. Councilmember Mead seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously.  


F. Revised Interlocal Agreement with Snohomish County for Reciprocal Mitigation of 
Transportation Impacts


Interim City Manager Bob Stowe explained traffic mitigation impacts and 
compensation by developments. Director Stowe introduced Director of Public Works & 
Development Services Gina Hortillosa who explained how trips are calculated and 
briefed Council on projected growth over the next 5 year period and highlighted active 
and anticipated growth in Snohomish County and the City of Mill Creek. 


Councilmember Steckler made a motion to authorize the City Manager to sign 
the revised interlocal agreement with Snohomish County for reciprocal 
mitigation of transportation impacts. Councilmember Mead seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


G. Executive Search Firm Request for Proposal 
 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe explained the benefits of issuing a Request for 
Proposal (RFP) rather than simply reaching out to executive search firms to conduct a 
search for a City Manager. City Manager Stowe reviewed the proposed RFP including 
the anticipated time frame and expected costs. 
 
Council engaged in discussion.


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to authorize the issuance of an 
Executive Search Firm Request for Proposal for City Manager Recruitment with 
modifications as discussed. Councilmember Todd seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.  


OLD BUSINESS
H. Appointments to the Design Review Board 


 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw announced that he, Councilmember Steckler and 
Councilmember Todd interviewed three candidates to fill two vacancies on the Board 
and encouraged the candidate not selected to apply for the Art & Beautification Board 
vacancy. 


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to appoint Dave Gunter and Beverly 
Tiedje to serve a three-year term on the Design Review Board. Councilmember 
Todd seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


RECESS
I. Council recessed for a five minute break at 8:12 p.m. 


RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 9, 2018 Page 145 of 153







October 9, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


J. Council reconvened to regular session at 8:17 p.m.


Mayor Pro Holtzclaw made a motion to extend the meeting up to 9:30 p.m. 
Councilmember Steckler seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


STUDY SESSION CONTINUED
K. 2019-2024 Capital Improvement Plan 


 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe presented the preliminary Capital Improvement 
Project (CIP) and noted key projects including the Mill Creek Sports Park turf and 
lighting replacement, pavement preservation, planning/vision process for Mill Creek 
Blvd, EGUV "spine road," and the surface water aging infrastructure program. City 
Manager Stowe explained that this plan is a living document, highly dependent on 
present economic conditions and is subject to change. 
 
Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa and Finance 
Director Peggy Lauerman joined Council and City Manager Stowe for the study 
session. Council engaged in discussion and requested additional information on 
several projects at the next CIP study session. 


L. Ordinance to Amend Section 10.08.030 of the Mill Creek Municipal Code Lowering the 
Speed Limit on State Route 96 within the City Limits to 35 MPH
 
Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa reviewed the 
proposal to lower the speed limit on SR 96 within the City limits to 35 MPH. Director 
Hortillosa reviewed the area growth, residential uses, frequency of crashes, and dates 
provided by WSDOT. Director Hortillosa briefed Council on the HAWK (High Intensity 
Activated Crosswalk) signal project being pursued by her department. 
 
Director Hortillosa explained that an adopted Ordinance is a required step in 
WSDOT's official approval process for lowering speed limits on State Routes and that 
Ordinance adoption does not guarantee that the speed reduction will be approved by 
the State. 
 
Council engaged in discussion and requested additional information on alternative 
solutions and coordination with the County and State. Chief of Police Greg Elwin 
answered speed related crash questions. 


CONSENT AGENDA
M. Approval of Checks #59209 through #59268 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount 


of $244,889.67
(Audit Committee: Mayor Pruitt and Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw)


N. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $313,398.92
(Audit Committee: Mayor Pruitt and Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw)


O. City Council Meeting Minutes of August 2, 2018
P. City Council Meeting Minutes of August 22, 2018
Q. Interim City Manager Extension Agreement 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 9, 2018 Page 146 of 153







October 9, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to approve the consent agenda. 
Councilmember Todd seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


REPORTS
R. Mayor/Council


 
Councilmember Steckler reported that the Mill Creek Kiwanis and People's Bank are 
co-sponsoring a document shredding event on October 27 in the parking lot of City 
Hall North and asked everyone to spread the word. 
 
Councilmember Todd reported that EASC is hosting a Public Officials Reception at the 
new Paine Field terminal on October 16 and encouraged Council to attend.


S. City Manager
 Council Planning Schedule 


T. Staff
 Veterans Day Events


 
Director of Communications & Marketing Joni Kirk announced this year's theme "100 
years of honor" and reported that the parade has 65+ participants.


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
U. Jon Ramer, a Mill Creek resident, asked Council if the City Manager recruiting process 


would be open to anyone, or exclusive to an executive search firm. Interim City 
Manager Bob Stowe advised the position would be open to anyone. 


ADJOURNMENT
With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 9:42 p.m.


Pam Pruitt, Mayor


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 9, 2018 Page 147 of 153







October 23, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


MINUTES
City Council Regular Meeting
6:00 PM - Tuesday, October 23, 2018
Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
 


 


Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting.


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. 
The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here.


CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE


ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:
Pam Pruitt, Mayor
Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem
Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember
Mike Todd, Councilmember
Jared Mead, Councilmember
John Steckler, Councilmember


Councilmembers Absent:
Mark Bond, Councilmember
 
 
 
 
 


Councilmember Cavaleri made a motion to excuse Councilmember Bond due to 
vacation. Councilmember Mead seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda.


 
David Lee, owner and developer of Clock Tower Self Storage in Mill Creek, expressed 
his frustration with the litter and loitering on the trail on the north end of the storage 
facility; and is concerned about his liability as he is required to maintain it. 
 
Jennifer Pawlowsci, a Mill Creek resident, expressed concern over congestion, 
overcrowding and possible strain on emergency services that would come with the 
development of The Farm. 
 
Wil Nelson, a Mill Creek resident, echoed the comments of Ms. Pawlowsci and let 
Council know that he is in disagreement with The Farm development. 


OLD BUSINESS


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2018 Page 148 of 153



https://www.cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2018/Audio%2010.23.18.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/26280





October 23, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


B. Capital Improvement Plan


Interim City Manager Bob Stowe explained the increased dollar amount of the Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) since last reviewed by Council. City Manager Stowe reviewed 
and responded to the 14 issues identified by Council during the October 9 study 
session and reviewed the proposed Opportunity Fund in detail. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. 


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to approve Ordinance 2018-837, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A 
REVISED AND UPDATED 6-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR YEARS 
2019-2024 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY'S BIENNIAL BUDGET PROCESS, 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT ACT. Councilmember 
Steckler seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


NEW BUSINESS
C. Yakima County Technology Services Inter-Local Agreement 


 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe briefed Council on the City's data backup system and 
secondary backup appliance. City Manager Stowe reviewed best practices and the 
need to locate the secondary backup in a geographically diverse location. IT Manager 
James Busch answered questions from Council. 


Councilmember Cavaleri made a motion to authorize the City Manager to 
execute the Interlocal Agreement with Yakima County Technology Services. 
Councilmember Todd seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


STUDY SESSION
D. Panhandling Issues 


Police Chief Greg Elwin reviewed the City's primary issues related to panhandling 
including homelessness in general, public sleeping, and traffic interference and the 
tools available to the police department that would address the concerns of the 
community while protecting the rights of all citizens. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. Police Chief Elwin and City Attorney Scott Missall 
answered questions from Council. 


E. Ordinance Updating the City of Mill Creek Traffic Mitigation Fee Program - 2018


Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa briefed Council on 
traffic mitigation fees and how they are calculated. Director Hortillosa explained that 
the proposed update utilizes the same methodology that was utilized previously and 
supplies new input values for the variables of the formula that control the amount of 
the fee. 
 
Director Hortillosa introduced Perteet Engineering consultants Peter De Boldt and 
Mike Hendrix who walked Council through a PowerPoint presentation that explained 


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2018 Page 149 of 153







October 23, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


traffic mitigation fees in detail, eligible projects for mitigation fees, process for 
development of revised fee, and results of analysis and recommended fee. 


CONSENT AGENDA
F. Approval of Checks #59269 through #59272 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount 


of $1,286,241.30
(Audit Committee: Mayor Pruitt & Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw)


G. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $227,213.97
(Audit Committee: Mayor Pruitt & Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw)


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to approve the consent agenda. 
Councilmember Cavaleri seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


REPORTS
H. Mayor/Council


 
Mayor Pruitt reported that she met with Dr. Singh from Edmonds Community College 
to discuss ways for them to be more involved in the community.   
 
Mayor Pruitt reported that she met with Everett Public Schools Superintendent Dr. 
Gary Cohn to discuss upcoming bond issues.
 
Mayor Pruitt reported that she and Councilmember Todd attended the AWC 
Legislative Update. 
 
Councilmember Steckler reminded Council of the upcoming Shred-It event and 
encouraged them to attend. 
 
Councilmember Mead reported that he and Councilmember Todd attended an event 
at Paine Field and toured the new facility. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw reported that he met with Everett Public Schools 
Superintendent Dr. Gary Cohn to discuss upcoming bond issues. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw reminded Council of the upcoming Trunk-or-Treat event 
and encouraged them to attend.
 
Councilmember Todd reported that he and Mayor Pruitt attended the AWC Legislative 
Update and encouraged Council to read the handout he provided.
 
Councilmember Todd encouraged Council to attend the Snohomish County Cities 
(SCC) legislative priorities brainstorming session on November 15 and to think about 
issues that would be impactful to the City and Region.
 
Councilmember Todd reported that the first part of ST3 light rail work is currently 
underway and will provide freeway ramp routes for buses. 


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2018 Page 150 of 153



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/27587/10-23-18%20AWC%20Legislative%20Priorities.pdf





October 23, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


 
Councilmember Todd reported on his visit to the new Paine Field facility. 


I. City Manager
 Council Planning Schedule 


J. Staff
 Pursuit Policy 
 Party in the Parks Recap 
 Q3 2018 Financial Reports


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
K. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda. 


Ron Christensen, a Mill Creek resident, would like panhandlers in the City be required 
to obtain a peddlers permit. 


ADJOURNMENT
With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 7:43 p.m.


Pam Pruitt, Mayor


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2018 Page 151 of 153







Tentative Council Meeting Agendas
Subiectto change without notice


Last updated: February 20, 2019


(Agenda Summary due February 25)
- Presentation: Bond Introduction
- Study Session: Community Funding Update
- Report: Quarterly Financial Report


(Agenda Summary due March 4)
0 Presentation: Waste Management


Presentation: Northshore Senior Center
Report: Procurement Procedures Manual
Report: Hawk Signal Update
Executive Session: Review of City Manager
Candidate Applicants


I I
' A


1 1


March 5 2019
3 4 5 6 1 3 9


Council


10 ll 11 13 14 I5 15


“°“"°" March 12. 2019
17 15 15 10 21 11 13


C


24 25 25 17 23 '


U.
March 22 2019


- City Manager Finalists — Community & Staff
Engagement


March 23.2019


Council


10 11 H 13 14 15 16


Council


17 15 19 ID 21 21 23


24 3‘ 25 26 27 2a 29 so


Cou ncil


7 3 9 10 11 :2 13


Council


14 15 15 17 1a :9 2a


12 23 1: 26 17


Council


28 15 30


- City Manager Finalists — Council Interviews


March 26 20l9
(Agenda Summary due March I 8)


- Park & Recreation Board Appointment
a Sports Park Concession Stand Contract
o Reading/Approval of Reimbursement


Resolution
- Study Session: Compensation Strategies


AGENDA ITEM #L.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Council Liaison Positions Page 152 of 153







5 s 7 a 9 1o 11


Council


12 13 24 15 25 27 12


Council


19 2o 21 22 23 24 25


25 27 2a 29 so 31


2 3 4 5 6 7 3


Council


5 1a 11 12 1: 1-: 15


Council


16 27 15 29 20 21 22


23 5° 24 25 25 21 22 29


10 11 12


14 15 17 20


21 14 15 26


Council


29 31


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion
Business signs
MCCA storm water discussions
Utility Project Management
Hotel/MotelTheater Tax
Mill Creek Blvd Vision
ST3 Stations
Hawk/SR96 — Consideration of Speed
SG Presentation
Legislative Retreat
Gold Star Memorial
Dobson Remillard Property
Fleet Program
Public Works Month Proclamation
Bike Lanes


AGENDA ITEM #L.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Council Liaison Positions Page 153 of 153





		Agenda

		C. Ordinance Amending the MCMC Related to Code Enforcement

		D. 2019 Street Pavement Marking Program - Construction Contract Award

		E. Study Session - The Farm Development Agreement

		F. Indoor Facility Use Policy and Ordinance

		G. Check Vouchers

		H. Payroll Vouchers

		I. Regular Council Meeting - 09 Oct 2018 - Minutes - Html

		J. Regular Council Meeting - 23 Oct 2018 - Minutes - Html

		L. Council Planning Schedule




